
liii

10012678



it



aa



BLACKROCK BLACKROCK

BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

On December 2009 BlackRock and Barclays Global Investors BOIl merged to form the worlds largest

investment management company At year-end we managed approximately $3346 trillion on behalf of

institutional and retail investors worldwide

Our product mix changed substantiaLly as result of the BGI transaction At year-end 50% of our assets under

management AUM were in index products 35% in actively managed portfolios l00/n in cash management and

5% in advisory mandates

Investment performance was competitive across broad range of equity fixed income and multi-asset

products with 71 of index products achieving returns within of their benchmarks and 63% of active AUM

outperforming their benchmarks or peer medians.1

On pro forma combined basis over 1000 clients in more than 100 countries awarded BlackRock $21 9.2 biLlion

of net new business in long-dated products and advisory mandates partially offset by $59.4 billion of net

outflows in cash management.2

BlackRock is global firm with over 40% of our employees based outside the U.S managing portfolios or

serving our clients in EMEA3 Asia Pacific and Latin America/Iberia At year-end we managed approximately

$1 .305 trillion or 39% of total AUM for these clients

Institutional investors including pension plans insurance companies and official institutions turned to

BlackRock for innovative investment solutions resulting in $1 19.6 bilLion of net new Long-dated business and

$2462 trillion in total AUM at year-end

AUM for retail and high net worth investors reached $388.7 billion driven by $27.9 billion of net inflows in

long-dated products results that earned us recognition as the third and eighth largest asset gatherer in

cross-border and U.S mutual funds respectively

Our exchange-traded fund platform iShares maintained its leadership position adding $64.6 billion of net new

assets to close the year at $495.5 billion in AUM as the industry surpassed the $1 trillion mark for the first time

Demand for BlackRock Solutions remained strong closing the year with more than $9 trillion of positions on the

platform and adding 48 net new outsourcing Aladdin risk management and advisory assignments

Founded in 1988 and listed on the New York Stock Exchange on October 1999 BlackRock marked its 10th

anniversary as public company

We ended the year with employees in 74 offices across 24 countries working together to identify investment

opportunities develop innovative investment solutions and capture the benefits of scale for our clients

PLease see importont Notes on page
122

Uniess stated otherwise references to AUM fiows in the annual report are based on pro forma combined resuLts which are suppLementaL information

prooided to enhance discussion of oar business and cLient trends

Europe the Middie East and Africa IEMEA.J
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FNANCAL HGHUGHTS
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BLACKROCK BLACKR0CK

MY FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS

1lobal
financial system is coming out of the

most difficult period since the Great Depression crisis

that will profoundly reshape banking and capital markets

worldwide The story is still unfolding am proud to say

that BlackRock distinguished itself throughout the crisis

and is one of very few firms to emerge stronger and

even more differentiated Though we were not perfect

we never lost our focus on serving clients and helping

them navigate treacherous conditions We continued

to reinvest in our business and to reinvent ourselves

constantly striving to improve our ability to help create

better financial future for our clients We achieved strong

investment performance especially on our international

equity platform robust turnaround in fixed income

and alternative investment products and continued

double-digit growth in our BlackRock Solutions business

Clients awarded us $219.2 billion of net new business in

tong-term and advisory mandates in 2009 We achieved

adjusted net income growth of l9% and adjusted operating

margins in excess of 38% Our stockholders realized

77% return for the year capping our first decade as

public company with compounded annual return of 33%

versus 0.4% on the SP 500 over the same time period.2

During the past two years we also continued to focus

on the longer term and how we wanted to evolve our

business to be better positioned to serve our clients in

the future As we looked past the crisis we perceived

ongoing legislative and regulatory pressure to shrink

bank balance sheets the increasing importance of capital

markets worldwide shift in the balance of global

economic power growth of the middle class in developing

economies the inexorable move toward globalization

significant fiscal pressures particularly across the U.S

and Europe massive shortfall in retirement savings and

the need for new asset allocation strategies and innova

tive investment solutions We remained as enthusiastic

as ever about our business model globally integrated

firm focused exclusiveLy on investment and risk manage

ment and on serving our clients as fiduciary
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In 2009 we prioritized our resources invested to enhance

our existing capabilities with key lateral hires and the

addition of R3 Capital Partners and capitalized on our

strong position to pursue what we believe was unique

and transformational opportunity the acquisition of

Barclays Global Investors BGI We announced the BGI

transaction on June 11th and closed on December 1st

BC was of particular interest because of their deep

capabilities in index and quantitative investments the

quality of their people and their record of innovation

Historical accomplishments have included the first index

fund the first target date portfolios and the industry-

leading exchange-traded fund ElF platform iShares

Their disciplined investment processes integrate

systematic security selection risk management and

transaction cost management to minimize tracking error

and deliver efficient beta on index products and to realize

attractive risk-adjusted returns on scientific and model-

based portfolios

BGIs products complement BlackRocks fundamental

active strategies that employ bottom-up security

selection process led by portfolio managers who use

quantitative and fundamental analysis and their market

experience to inform their judgment They work closely

with our Risk and Quantitative Analysis team to ensure

that their risk exposures are deliberate and appropriately

scaled Producing alpha for our clients remains central to

our business and our track record is strong.3

Over 86% of our fundamental active equity AUM out

performed their benchmarks or peer medians for the

past five years Our international equity teams have

been exceptional with 18 funds in the top quartile

including nine in the top decile last year and equally

strong performance over the past three- and five-

year periods

Similarly more than 87% of multi-asset class AUM

outperformed their indices or peers over the past five

years These products offer clients the most direct

way to leverage BlackRocks scale and expertise

in global markets and risk management to deliver

comprehensive and/or customized solutions for

clients ranging from funds on our $60 billion Global

Allocation platform to LifePath target date portfolios

liability-driven investment strategies and fiduciary

outsourcing services
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In fixed income weak results in 2008 were drag on

the Longer-term track record but we were pleased

with the strong turnaround in 2009 when 79% of AUM

exceeded its benchmarks or peer medians During

the year we refined the structure of our fixed income

effort to enhance focus and accountability for per

formance We also made significant investments to

augment our capabiLities incLuding adding extensive

credit Leveraged finance and distressed expertise

through the addition of the R3 team

By delivering what we promise to investors we

strengthen our ability to sustain and deepen our cLient

relationships and to attract new clients Further the

range of strong products represents diverse toolkit

upon which we can draw to help cLients soLve their

investment problems believe these capabilities wilL

increasingly differentiate BlackRock

At year-end 2009 BlackRock managed $3.35 trillion of

assets for clients worldwide up $2.04 trillion or 156%

from reported AUM at December31 2008 The majority of

that increase $1.54 triLLion or 75% was in index products

added through the BGI transaction The magnitude of

the shift in our product mix is telLing index management

is scale business and we believe that index products

including iShares will be an important building block in

overall asset allocation More specifically we believe that

investors will increasingly barbell their asset allocation

blending index strategies to gain efficient market expo

sures with wide range of active strategies to enhance

portfolio returns We pursued this unprecedented

combination because we believe it will enable us to be

more effective more holistic problem solvers for inves

tors and to deliver the benefits of scale to our clients

The BGI transaction also brought model-based fixed

income and scientific active equily capabilities including

both Long-only and alternative products The success of

the model-based fixed income effort has been under-

appreciated The team met or exceeded their objectives

last year and every year since they started the business

in 2004 In contrast difficulties in the quantitative equity

industry have been heavily reported The coverage

reminds me of Mark Twains famous line Reports of

my death are greatly exaggerated In fact our results

in 2009 were mixed with our U.S large cap and Japan

strategies underperforming while global U.S small cap

emerging market and many regional strategies outper

formed number of our competitors have exited the

business but we remain convinced that the approach is

viable and we are devoting considerable resources to

developing the next generation signals and models for

these products

After an extremely difficult 2008 many pundits were

predicting the demise of the alternative investment

industry To the contrary we believe alternatives will

be an important component of future asset allocation

strategies We added number of strategies during the

year including BOls premier global macro team active

currency management and range of hedge funds Many

of our products including our BlackRockAlternative

Advisors funds of funds recovered or nearly recovered

their high water marks by year-end Throughout the crisis

we worked hard to ensure that clients had continued

access to their funds even though that positioned

BLackRock as net supplier of Liquidity when many of

our peers gated or suspended redemptions Forward

redemption requests stretched into 2009 but we began to

see inflows Late in the year as investors began to re-risk

their portfolios Unlike other alternatives commercial

real estate has continued its downward trajectory We

were especially disappointed to have let investors down

when the Peter Cooper Village/Stuyvesant Town partner

ship defaulted on its bonds early this year following an

adverse court ruling and hostile market conditions

Cash management products industry-wide suffered

substantial outflows as investors began to reallocate to

fixed income and equities The market crisis that began

in 2007 induced dramatic flight to safety with global

money market fund balances surging to peak of $4.5

trillion in March 2009 before falling back to $3.9 trillion at

year-end Consistent with industry trends we had $101.3

billion of net inflows in our cash management products

in 2007 and 2008 followed by $49.7 billion of net outflows

in 2009 Still global cash balances remain well above

their average for the five years preceding the crisis My

expectation would be for continued outflows in favor of

higher return assets and other corporate uses

Globalization increased regulation the need for proper

risk management capabilities and fiduciary obligations

are changing the investment management business

Scale has never been more important and may well

be the catalyst that drives consolidation in our highly



fragmented industry BlackRock is in unique position

to leverage ts scale to benefit clients We seek to do this

in variety of ways For example we use our financial

scale to enhance our global prese ce aiiu our operating

scale to ensure that we gain the benefit of that presence

through information sharing and consistent processes

VVe also leverage longstanding investments in risk

management trading research and trade execution

capabilities to support wide range of value-added

services for clients such as transition management

securities lending securities finance and our BlackRock

Solutions offerings

Demand for BlackRock Solutions products and services

remained robust in 2009 as clients sought to enhance

their risk management infrastructure and work with us

to understand and address variety of balance sheet or

portfolio exposures We added 48 net new assignments

during the year including four Aladdin implementations

and 43 advisory assignments The latter include the

long-term portfolio liquidation assignments we report

as advisory AUM which increased by $1 6.2 billion last

year We ended the year with over $9 trillion of positions

on Aladdin for more than 130 clients worldwide We

continue to build these capabilites to serve BlackRock

and our clients

In early 2010 we acquired Helix Financial Group to

augment our commercial real estate analytics and

workout capabilities and we have already won new

assignments that capitalize on these resources We are

also very excited about the potential to extend 801s

transaction cost management system and processes

across global trading platform leveraging our scale to

achieve better execution for our clients Finally as we

complete the ntegration of our operating platform we

expect to incorporate new capabilities that reflect the

broader scale and scope of our investment management

acbvdies into Aladdin Ths will greatly enhance our

BlackRock Solutions offerings and expand the range

of services we can offer clients We believe this will

represent significant new business opportunity over

the coming years

Many clients use BlackRock to manage single product

but growing number turn to BlackRock to access

combination of capabilities investment and risk man

agement passive and active fundamental and scientific

traditional and alternative We work to bring together

expertise across the capital structure and across the

globe to help clients meet their investment objectives

Historically our investments have focused primarily on

developed economies which have the deepest capital

markets believe that clients will increasingly cast

wider net for attractive nvestments and that global

economic growth will depend on the growth of the global

captal markets and on trade policies that facilitate the

free flow of capital across borders In short believe that

globalization is our collective destiny It will no doubt

progress in fits and starts as protectionist tendencies

nevitably crop up but do not believe it is possible to

turn back the dial on the level of interconnectedness

the global economy and capital markets

BlackRocks business strategy has long been informed

by this view Investing requires global perspective and

serving clients requires local expertise At December31

2009 approximately 39c of our AUM was managed for

non-U.S clients and 41% of our employees were based

outside the U.S would expect these totals to reach or

exceed 50c over the next five years in line with expec

tations for growth in GOP savings and regional capital

markets In particular as the global capital markets

evolve would expect to selectively expand our local

nvestment management capaoilities with focus on

developing regions including Asia and Latin America

Further as savings rates increase and the retirement

burden shifts from institutions to individuals would

expect to serve more diverse clientele The combina

tion of an expanding footprint and broader cI ent base

will require that we invest more significantly to build

BlackRocks global name recognition and to support our

brands including iShares

Demographics and industry trends suggest that an

increasing proportion of our AUM will be managed for

retail and high net worth investors in the future Our

retail teams had particularly strong year ending 2009

with $388.7 billion of AUM and $27.9 billion of net new

business in long-term products Our cross-border fund

family BlackRock Global Funds ranked third in net sales

last year and third in total AUM at year-end testament

to the exceptional efforts of our international retail team

Our U.S retail group has made strong and steady prog

ress gaining product placement on distribution pLatforms

and has increased our market position from tenth largest

to fourth largest long-term fund manager in just three

years Key priorites for these groups continue to be
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diversifying the product range capitalizing on improved

fixed income performance and distinguishing ourselves

as thought Leaders and effective colLaborators with our

distribution partners

iShares is the industry leader in ETFs globally Remark

ably our market share of flows increased Last year even

as the industry attracted increased competition iShares

AUM totaled $495.5 billion at year-end driven by strong

markets and $64.6 biLlion of net inflows Investor

acceptance of the product continued to increase but we

have not seen significant disintermediation of mutual

funds Rather we have seen both retail and institutional

investors using iS ha res to establish core and tactical

market exposures aLongside positions in actively

managed strategies that offer the potential for higher

returns As the ETF market evolves we expect Liquidity

and breadth of product range to be among the most

important considerations for investors and their advisors

We will continue to invest to support our industry

Leadership in ETFs globally

Institutional investors represented almost three-quarters

of our total AUM at year-end 2009 was incredibly

gratified by the vote of confidence from these clients and

consultants who awarded us combined net new business

of $1 26.7 bilLion in Long-term and advisory products

Investors outside the U.S and Canada accounted for 56%

of net inflows with institutions in EMEA Europe Middle

East and Africa contributing the most Our institutional

clientele includes tax-exempt taxable and official

institutions as well as cash managers sub-advisory

relationships and institutional funds We were awarded

net new assets from all client types other than institu

tional cash managers in 2009 The most significant driver

of flows was re-risking and many investors chose to use

index funds and ETFs to gain market exposure quickly

pending Longer term allocation to active managers or

alternative strategies

BlackRock recently ranked as the largest independent

manager of insurance assets in the world We are proud

that these clients have turned to BlackRock for our deep

expertise and comprehensive approach to serving their

unique investment and risk management needs Simi

larly pension plans choose BLackRock because of our

ability to offer investment opportunities across the risk

spectrum as well as tailored solutions such as Liability

driven investments and fiduciary outsourcing We are

driven by the work we do with all of our clients We strive

to understand their current and future challenges and to

deliver our best thinking to the development and man

agement of innovative investment products and services

that will help clients achieve their objectives

Over the past two years the world has been through

financial crisis of near-historic proportions The rapid

response of central banks succeeded in preventing

descent into depression but the liquidity they have

poured into the system hasnt been put to work The

money multiplier measure of the degree to which

banks are recycling the money supply to foster economic

activity rather than building excess reserves is at its

lowest point in 26 years As result the recovery feels

flat and substantial headwinds remain Sovereign risk is

on the rise and the need to cut deficits suggests further

contraction State and Local budget issues in the U.S

exacerbated by the new heaLthcare Legislation pose

similar threat Termination of quantitative easing

programs hangs over the bond markets especially the

moribund securitization markets Still investors are sit

ting on huge reservoir of money to be put to work As

result remain selectively positive on equity markets

The transformation of the financial services industry is

still taking shape We know already that new regulation

will change banking as we know it balance sheet risk will

be reduced through higher capital requirements lower

leverage ratios and/or outright prohibitions on certain

activities Smaller balance sheets mean that banks will

have less capital to support market-making activities

and less capital to lend even to the best credits These

changes will have massive implications for the global

capital markets which will have to assume greater role

in financing future economic expansion By extension

investors the providers of capital will be more

important in the future No firm is better positioned than

BlackRock to help clients respond to these changes

Investor interests need to be explicitly considered as

new paradigms are proposed Capital markets partici

pants must be able to rely on contractual rights being

respected and the rule of law being consistently applied

Increasingly investors will need to be able to evaluate

credit directly with reduced reliance on ratings agencies

Transparency and the timely transmission of high quality

information will be paramount Secure transaction and
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include supporting efforts to increase market share in

our established businesses white investing in newer

businesses that can deliver double-digit growth

settlement mechanisms are needed for derivatives

which should be traded or cleared on exchanges and

subject to appropriate margin requirements Systemic

risk oversight regulation of the shadow banking system

and application of counter-cyclical capital and liquidity

safeguards would be beneficial As always unintended

consequences need to be carefully considered Societys

goal is to hold managements responsible for their

actions not to socialize risk so that no one can be held

accountable The safety and soundness of the financial

system will depend on it

We believe in our business model We are publicly traded

and highly regulated We have strong Board with

majority of independent directors One hundred percent

of our revenues come from client business We operate

as fiduciary using our balance sheet only to coinvest

alongside our clients not for proprietary trading

We structure our compensation programs to achieve

appropriate alignment of interest with our clients and

shareholders We invest in our people from recruiting to

retirement and emphasize the importance of vibrant

culture built on shared values and common mission

We pursue our mission with unyielding integrity relent

less drive and unwavering passion We never forget that

we manage money for real people who are relying on

us to deliver what we promise and whose trust we must

earn every day

Our strategic priorities are clear execute our operational

and cultural integration and invest for future growth

Implementation of our operating platform is well under

way and is on target for completion in 2011 The cultural

integration is also well underway although weaving

together robust culture takes years Our success

depends on willingness to keep evolving to borrow

the best from both legacy firms and to write new

script together to adapt our behaviors processes and

governance model to support our larger more complex

business and to engage empower and hold accountable

our talented professionals Our strategic initiatives

The integration is means to an end Our goal is to

enhance our ability to serve our clients We remain clear

and consistent about our top priority achieving alpha in

our active products and tight tracking error in our index

products believe that our ability to deliver on this most

important promise to our clients will be greatly enhanced

by the sharing of insights and information across regions

disciplines and asset classes that has already begun

Truly nothing makes me more excited for the future

than seeing the enthusiasm with which colleagues

throughout BlackRock are coming together energized

by the broad and deep intellectual capital of the firm

and by the potential to raise the bar to help our clients

solve problems and to transform our industry

would like to thank our Board of Directors for their

guidance and support in navigating this most treacherous

period am pleased to welcome Abdlatif Al-Hamad

John Varley and Bob Diamond as members of our Board

and to welcome Barclays as shareholder would also

like to recognize the extraordinary effort of our employees

who have come together quickly to ensure seamless

transition for clients and continuous focus on investment

management risk management and operational

excellence recognize that change can be hard but

also know that change can be rewarding and that new

opportunities will be found thank each of you for your

dedication and commitment Finally thank our clients

for their continued confidence in BlackRock for their

interest in our expanded capabilities and the new ways

we can work together and for the trust they have placed

in us Earning that trust is what motivates us to do more

and try harder every day

Sincerely

Laurence Fink

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Ur te ti Cef Ce AUM ii are ba ea ri

pebi oiler op bea 999 tha op Dc emb Ce trU Cr ordC

Pea rrp art Not pap 122



BLACKROCK OUR CLIENTS

tackRcck manages mo icy or nstit Jtion

and retort investor wortdwrdc Our den base divc

ed by both geography and die it typc Wu cc rvc clients

through /4 offices aci os four rug ons iited states md

Canada Europe thu ddte East id At so MLAI

\sia Pa Ufrc and Latin Trerica id be rio bent in tuc

tax exmp institutions sucl is defined bc nefi md

defined co itribution pension pLans cliii tics foundatior

and ndown ents off ciaf institut ens such is cci

inks overeigri weaLth 1unds supr in itior ats and oth

gover nmen errt ties taxable instit tron icludino

urance oripanic ir ancial institut on orpor ition

and th rd pa ty fund upon ors md rctait an ugh et

worth nvstors We also serve both nsjtut1 nil arid

dat nvcstc rs who aug Ada es iii to cx lianae

wurldw do

GLOBAL PRESENCE

ac kRock serves cl ents more thai 100 cou itr

to ough th Afcirts of profcsiorrats for ated 24 our

ne Our globat presr enab es us to deliver igh

resp mis ye crvicc an Ito tiit our offering to hoc

cci vu the needs of LocaL investors Per tfoi may be

rrrvestc in ocat regional or global capitaL markets

Products may structured to address tocation specif

is ue such as rugul tiu tixation operatiena nfra

tructure ii ci ect Liguidrt id wit pecific is

cli is inve icnt poLicy ti rb
ty

structure arid rat ig

At yem one 209 jets rn wag on beha of cL cnts

dom ii
the Ui dd State and Ca iadi Irnctud ng

off hore invedo totatud 042 tr Ii in or 61 if to at

ACM ai inc osc of $1070 fri tier ver cci rope ted ACM

at lecc 31 2008 Un pro or ia or bi ice bas

ACM increawd 19 $32 bitt on rcludrng $62

biLlion net bu inesc ii $2644 itl on frorni invest

merit perfo iriance md niorkc ppre ation Ofdr rigs

icLu Ic ed end fun Is arid iShar ec aded err do cstic

stcuk cxc hang lulL irige of open id utuaL funds

in rtrvc rr vetmc it mid common truts private fundc

in eparate nccounts Lfiund ivest across the ull

predni trance cv dcn od by tl year end mix of 45

in gm ties frxcd in eric ri Tic Iti as Lass

ilter iativ 13 ch iii rye crc it ar

idv sery md it ii
mdd tien we havc wide var ety

OUR CLiENTS



of Blii kRoca ftolutr or srgnmon fir rnstrtutlo ii

rrVU stor rnJ govornm ntal rtr Uwte Rt ft

and Canada

AUM for ctro it dornrr ned MEA nA th ear at

$936 bllhon 28 total AUM rn ncr easc ft $o9

ot on rr atvo to mportc AUM at Dc srnhc 31 008

Durnng th ents iw irded o4 net new ho ie
$88 bllron on pro forma ombnned ba lud ng

nflowe from cf ent rn 31 oontrre icro4s tOe regron

Dur offe ago nnctude find lam Los rthe Unnted Knnjdo ci

uxembourg ar Dub md r5hare Os cd

Ofl it cc exch ingo throuobout .ME as

wparate cc ou 1t and poo ed nnvostmont prodo

product mnx reftected the evorutron of oor pro lu

if eg on wnth more estabtr rod cqunty iri mol

is et ctasc offrrrng accountnng for and of

to it MFA ch nt IM respe ye ty and nr it vol

newer fixod Income ittrnatnvEs mo Ca4 mar aqe 1101

pr duct reprc4e it ng 36 and MbA nt

\UM ye ir cnd epectnvely In addrtno advn ry AUM

ropre serited ft 55 th of MbA cherit AUM arid

1OVO Al iddrn rnsk ri ar agement and rn incia adv 4or

4ignments to nrr 4trtutronat nvestc ro arid giver nm nI

errtntne th uqhout iropc

Clnents the As Pacnfrc regnon arc erved throc gh

itt rn Jipan 3rnstralr Hor Kong Snngap ire Ianw in

md Korea arid jnnnt ventures rn in and Hdra At

December 31 2009 we managed $347 bnt on of AUM

clnerrts ni the rcyron irr em of or br

rr torroa basro Net ncw br nncs4 contrnbutcd

073 bntlron or the re ci arnd 4r he rr se vas ittr

ft be to no omnt pa or bL

Tiovemen At car nd thc rirx of ir dc rft Ti iagt

fhe cli nts or rn 4g 41 ft xc

ricorcie rn ut o4sat cirw In te natnva

dvns ir an Ic than ci ii management pr idu

Ulac kRoc busrries itrr Ar icr ci ar be

jrew sngnnfn intty durnng the year fm ci 66 orr

epmrtcd AIM it year end 208 to $1 lOn Inc ri if OhM

Deco iibor 31 /009 Un pro to ma corcibrned bis

OUM rncr easd $9 bnllr in 03 Ir cr1 by net new

duo 1055 of brIl on acgurmd is rI of 38b on

re 11 ctr
ig

tOre 801 oc gunort on of tire NAP TRAC IF

piotfo rn xnc to frr alf cf 20 or $3

he of nyc ft cc rma ic 4riu rim ft id

rurg xchirrqc ipprc an Porn Ru rre

manag pn Ion pu ct ri xnc to kerr arid

olori tO cnt u4n iatior of 8l-rckko

br tr arid 10 4r nyc tment ffornng At or

end tO
pr

iduct rnnx ftc 50 Iurtn

frxel orire cut eet rIas and Lcss than

ic ot alterno rvc nnd a4 inagcnia pr iduct

NSTTUTONAL NVESTORS

Oss man4 for nn trtcntno nyc or mtatc

62.462 ill on at or end 200 up 1r tr

trr olativ tc epnrted AUM it year nd 008 Do

ntntc one lncnt5 rn\et tf fuf arige of products

itt od by Bla kR Ic Ot ye or end tutnoria AUM

tuded $2 182 tr rlr on rrv 4tc ado var oty ci

ong deter ir ito lid 281 brl on nyc ted

tcntnr nit ash marl ag roe nt prude Net usrrie

4tcnr nng the fttert Ore inft nnvc st oppetnfe for

hngh eturrc an the eocnitng eolhoratnorr frorci
rn riey

cnarkct nnds to4 fnxed omo riicnl asset is

id altcr notnvr rlvest crcnt Do pro fun rca omb nod

bisn4 AUM nc cc ed $91.0 hi or drnrnng th

year no hod ng $1 26 bnlh of nt 4w lu nr long

ite ts mc va par tnotty
et b0 $37 nllnon of

flows nri ne tn tiona proctuc Or crc rrnng

crro orib nLd gre tO 09.8 bnttnc oreente

ye triront oorfornrion and mark ft in ornrgn

Dir ri tctro ii In rt hise vc Iv ronf

Incnf dc cr .nlo ref cI on4 cgrx Ot Dec

2009 app at ci 61 /It nltnon

rimnaged for ct 4n cl
rr mt titc or

riad 16 hn on for erA ri MFA

33 urn ar rO P-rrrr inru Ir rr

$6. Ii on or cnt rr Lit ni \rnc II md 4rna

DIe Or aity ho ctncn 14 ed broid ng if tax

ox ro rt ix btc rid nit istntcntnon ho ocr bed

Ri kRork ore nj the ra jc riir ago pen on

p1 to tic wo Id wnth 40/ non ir

if n4ttrtoiit OUM rca ogdfor 4efricdte icfnt mid

d.fnedcoi rbit riplir4 Io cirporation publ end4

mn un nmnd at Dc crib 10/ Ar oddntn

ri or 2.a if 4ar nd nn trtution AUM wa

ear aged fo It ix cod ipf nr cc rs udrng

her Inc foun tnon arid eridc wrii Ase to managed

for ic Inc rto gr $313 nor pro orrm.i

roe bnned oons Ic rnng 209 lix cx
roipt

nnyetor

by ott

c1ber 31

AUM we4



reatic .atc.d tc vai ucty at product.i c.iudir gta it

-ma ci aLlot atio oundcxoqutyandfix din

uau ty till fly at fbi to..tCiI/I

evi -I

We auso ian sgcd $240 bittio or it of mu nat

AUM far oil ic aL rstitutic inc tudin en at ink

ieigi ea hi nthsupanatonht mutita Mat

en tics and gcveinmert stn aid ag rhcso

icn oitcnrtquuespecia zedin ctnr poL adv

it -e ustomitod benchmark an It aini mg upp rt

addition ickRc ha been tcd to prc viae

range fina iat mai kcts adv o1 rv ii Ludinq

onj tc -npo tfotiotquidatioia sigume ountcdin

dvi oiyAUM.toi thae tient ing 109 rvcstn nt

ii alvi ory AUM for at instittt on mci ased

ii -i $12.8b

3ackckisaothG argostltaP3g rot ase lot

at companies uch accou ited hi $20 biLl

of in ti utions At Mat ycat
erd As tr mar agc

bc iat ci the ci ents mncrta ed 43.1 ttion during

1009 and nctudcd $283 bitt on bu jin

lrrr tiacontmnutgtreiIto iaid utsou cirgcfsoc

at it th investne it function insunn ompan

gobat As tsminigclfcrother axabc utons

ud nj torpor it ois banks and third pity und

oon rsto vhchwe providE ub alii vice

totat $186 bitt on or 12 in ituti inaL AUM

ity- 31 end

Tic erraini g$26 3bt ioncr ii titu iat

AUM was anaged ich tt taxbt md tax ext IT pt

utonb invcst din ur atli age nent pit duct

cmber 31 0C9

RETAIL AND HIGH NET WORTH

Ba kRockslnve3tmentmaiacr%elt xpc off rd

to eta we tor ghbaItyth ough eparate ounL

pen cnd andctosci endtunds mi lust dirivie

wcstrrnt ind.AtDc emS 31200asic nmnagcd

for retan md ugh etworth nvest tota e1t388

oittoi ip3.3 or$6 tionves sycar end

pottudAUM apio ormacambinc baci wcwcio

awa led netn wbusinasso $27Ib ormint ng dated

assa iich wa partia ty
tiset by niui in 01 ncr

utftcws nmoncyi arcc fun Is tmen PC 1w an-c

and ma appreciation coitribttd $61 on ml

dditic At growtt

Ftaitaidhc ic-v

through nterr mc

titct CiT3P i.a

in iatad ni

funds vticl t44 $1
mmginetw rtiAUMa nb

maindcr cd Irvm

paiatelymnajcdc wit

vcr ifi with .0 Lo

equtes24 r$ Ltu

oaciom ta cc $1

manger en bu -m

mtcrnatc tn tp .1

Thc ctert ii

$llI8biio

eraitaill ci ot

tatc and .3 it tI

badirEW1

biLlion

rcmaining$

orthAUM rv

prmn ira rr cyi

Stae.0

ngictat hi wtl

chedatiity ci in

uni mci thin Ii

ardrquiom

0rretaitaml mgi

BLakR ml ie

mo bord .rudla ii

BI aillLdkl hi II

rctaittuids rt

lilt his irE tin

nutua iwo ar

tatcjeat t-stii tud

3_ctga hi ii

rioigth ac
rour nlcv3t

at

31

Iv

ui

rc

I-

ii

vi

I-

MT

ib

tr ii

it

%iT

ar-i

P4

id

ii

it ii

-t

-1

ar

131 II

Id



lb otrrtc atph produ rntr educed in 2t 13 the

Und Statcs we had ov 50 cm nt

Ho dea or ptctt Jur Ho ar am bac

cur ar rot posrtron from ntt auth ci gest Hnd

aaandg ace we acqu ed Lyr na cot nc at

Mm ag ML iM at 2006 200 BtackR

err the OatH award to cu tome ervic nar

civ cr ha tc rtb oc aror whrch wc rvc bc

rccognrzed or tstandrng hrevomr nt tO

SHARES

At cen her 31 2009 Shares SUM

bit or of which was added rn cnn hon vrth tL

PCI qc citron Oh ares is re ndu tcadrng Elf

atform with re than al market Har the Un

Status 3rd 38 arket char EMEA In aidrt ar ccc arc

the tarqe El nan igcr Mexico ace pioneered the

product Chrte and Per and ave rntraduced adu

azit AuHratia and Ac Pacrhc aarec AUM

crc aced 69.6 bThcn or 37 durng 2001
pr

to ma combmed ba is inctudrnc3 $o4 bitt of

iciness and 810 bit OM arket ar pr ih ar ar

ace abtc 1orr rgn cxc hangc aver ts At ar md

50 are prado nrrx rnctuded $38 rn or 77

cr ty fferrng and $102 or 21 in bcnd fcc Is

ho rr rnarndc cpbt between attcrnat vc nyc

the and cash magr mont
pr

odu

i$3 bit 06 or ccc in

PRODUCT MX

BtackRock not ror qc abt rid mandgcm nt

he puht ark tea tO Sha Our obat

adrs th LT LU oJ Ho

i/c qr drfy nd ía aje ou oduct of year

we aged cc oft tap trvc ofttetopt and

of tie 20 by AUM .r thc markc tptace CL

S/a tfer ag up am 362 at ear end 2008 were

tradcl or 11 xchar throoghoct hm td IF em

lcd 220 fund in ac Oar cd States nd Canada mth

$39 It her or 80 of Stare AUM Asse thcm

and eo 8178 Hr or 48 dun
ag

the year

rr nq $48 hr Urn net rn

hr S/ia cc pUt arra ha mpanMve nt mr atron at

bc rncs th at atro FMI AMa Pacrt

and at Amer cc arid Ibm At Dec ataer 31 2009

$101 brttr
ra at AUM ra anaged rn 197 funds across

acm cgron Irrt aatroraat Stra AtJM eased

$41 ora 65 ILir

P3 009 vrth OloM alt err of

tlac
gr

owtt at hr rahtc ca act nf ow arad 421 tr ar tc

asia abt xiar ket arad fare gn excla
aragc

otc mc cmi nts

rdd err tfac qurs trura of thu NAF1 9AC platform

aM mci ra ar ty 2001 addmd ar tron AUM to the

Share omptcx nd colrd oi our cad
rag pos ton

Mex aal Amw

CUENT TYPE CUENT REGION

MA
Ii ra

6ta iae
7Iv cr

Ac



ackk AUM car

$1 a36 trFIL an 333 cpcrt

Al $203.3 oc at abc 2038 Ice

wa due orFFnar th F3j an.aa huh

untr act $1 183 IL or Pa pu

orm 1mb fli it oqu 3UM 01

138 ho tror 48 FLOe at ar Cli 08

prof aan calVe lad17c bL nFctrcow

Ic aa lId 36 2041 IFCFT mec pa mini

cphlandpoutFvna ito ver a1 bi

al Iii wi
Lcjr ty por Pu hr

An Vm it app oar Ffl aF

undu alt ataL and ac or hr atoc

EQUITY

copt atr ii cc

11 ef FCV

r1 ian cot ii 11

ta rh

thF igt ci

ca

rot fF1

CF 0110 thri to

Li yl ni Fl

Il
Ia 030 Fr

ut ar Li ic

lU dl

ac 1i3

it Hr

Ayaa 32

Li tom 13

taled$3 Le

0E/LdFan

$1 3bFLV1 Fa

eat

tc F3her

9L ha ra ii

att aFt ci

019 na cit

1901 Fl IL ItO

farm OFI1LFF1 ha

$68b cx cai

Luau in Ii

Flit tc.c

Blar cRo aa
llff

ha Fna 01

Dr Fob
111

IF bc

epar IF

rout uat fu ii

fF.F

IF rc1J 03

cccli ix op

$1 /b 01 AtM

1I rghrl VI ti

EQUFFY AUM

nE

tF

Iv

311

10

a3

31



RJt EtA

iiutua fund nd apata man pa

Approxtm Ay 59 or $91 00 qudy 11PM

was non iqed fur ltonf hosed ft Utuf md

Canad ha rematr tnq 41 or $623 alt Pu

AUM tnclu lcd 4445 htthon ITO iqod if

EME $1678 Ihon in Pa

tnvaator at ac and ft

$124 ft on ac pa roc ac ton

56 btfoot if at now on roi ft ntfc

CaiJa$ 35i wi EN 00LE

roar Asta Pi tf lid $2 it

md 1boti

Utobo -naraa aer La th p1 of CIA

react nq the wo yc OW 01 md nq

nut ci er For no 11 th Wor

occhnad 00 trw 27 Mi hefct rat Ira

97 ir 73 ta td it

32 rut rtt tr the to yea ickRc

as oonfa ri IC ta iti

Fm

of dcx

Cc it Ion rc

it rtt ad

uI 37

11111

0tt

rttf

vhrl till

13 rrtmat

rr wh

cm otr rd

01 do

ar a1a

tin ftc
ty ttaq ago

id 03 bal it trg

aap cm mr flail tb

63 AC cm to

Lt at 57 AUM ott ot mtno th

Pu ft fo ic at tat
ty Vt it

ono nq Ira wt Ii it

ttv unl tn to AUM abo ott

cit rt

arL

iitv

bad ipo

truqh

do

St

It
Ott OC

af ct fh ft

it utv op



RXED INCOME

kRo ed ncome UM rnded 2009 at

051 ti Won epi cxc nt nq an in casc of $57 bOSon

over the ou yca ropcitud mIte ftc

HG ction added 17.3 bitt en of AUM Ui pie

ma combined ba fixed inco no AUM ro 18 oi

$131 hittioi Dur ng ft yeai we viei warded net

ow hr vinc of tilt iving of fbi yai

re cc sc in AUM lye tment pci for-n mc and kct

iopre ati on contr cd $80 bittic of thc

curnbned growth

BUckNo offers brold ange of ndx md tivoty

ii iii myod ixcu nour
pi

uduci don gci

mdi qr It fy and maturilie Activc fy xi Ii ago strategies

ix ay einpoy un iamentaf 01 modct riven mv mtme it

pro em The rmc cix phaxi7o controlLed ectei

etlti Ind uii xetcction di von serb experts

111 di nti act wit ii ond arkct -na crc

Ic th otto opteys irodct to idc ntify rf etui

0i riitie and fe appLy ft re .jUs ubj ci pr Ig

atic ow of moW irk systoinotic ba re-s

portfe ox xed in eme manda -e cft taiLr icd

ent sp cificd iab Lit account eq itxtery oi rat ng

ojc icy rogue ci ient other tment to irs Ye mr

md incomc AUM con tcd of $4a9 hi ion 44

in noox tfr ie

lnvcsters cf

mmbxtentiaL Pg ito

catty high Pcd ir

in or oe offcr wax tic

bilLion

iarex ma $14 hi

irewth urIc no

IC ihitity dr

dUG roe rlogi ii

not infteN ro pc L5

L3LaiRu di ACU

86 billion ma

inve tom

S/ aie prod

ii ring 701 11

retoit mrid ll nct

dive ci qe apf L1

xud conic AJM ii
13

di

Ui trd St ii Ii TI

billie of ixe ix im

ariaged liii Mt

ard$805 efoi ir is

1flow 0399 35

md anod ai med SM

UlTu It Lie

mAsaPi tic nd

iglficl Ii

mmcc to rc no rkc

Aigiogat

Ella SHock xi

ben rl vitf

turn wi

cuter fei 11 cii

ti ateg or eic

ndJ

ii
ben tc

all base upc

iv 111 hmc

vihi Im fa cci

ocr mcli

fed Dcccxi .11

md ii

ai

it

Sb

i11

Inc

ci

Lb

fI ixti

IT if

tmc

1i3

ft

11

n/S

.3

.3 ii

HXED INCOME AUM

At

Ii lix

At

11

ii

ro

1111

11

ci- mil



MULThASSET

fly 91 13 lfl1i Ito ill cti

th oct natIon tIxe Income 9L

tlratlae rvc tmc nt Bcc3c qn il IC

op oitt 0IU

rtud at Plo itloi baLm cI iii claim

do cc get of cn ird ic ry oL

ro to ins BLackR ck hr ic UP

tt ar at 81 on in im 64

cm th 17 IL on ic Ii AUNI

tw rpo to as cart gully and hi 31 Cd \jP

it Dc embc 31 2008 TiC Path rIb to

idu Ct rr rjct late lund

ttio argo LdAL On PH ambl dli

rio Lao ri 33 83a ron tic

$1 brto ii oI not larcjJy rv

rota rn 301 it iU uat und mo

pr tOC VO tul th LI ed by at

inc it ko is Ofl ICC ike xc cn1 id Ic

coth $21 hr bor tI 09 tic CaC

01 md hicacc cd ir lit it

$86 in ot total ms

On eribor 7Db Ii me piodu Ii0 ooa Il tin

1cm ci tall nyc IoH ty ompro

Hi wr niL it tcrtr at ar Cl

Lcd Ingttmtcfehit/ pc tt ail rn

3po coMA di ohe ng it

La ALP nt

di ho tr coti tIll cm cit

do tI IC II ct in it

tary iode oP hi

aid flLll 00Cc in cc not

no to poP II Ct icc nq

IT to 01 Ic LI CI ci

Pa okoc ume pon rb
ty

ct all an 103 ICi oP $7

on co attl tlm \LP Ii mc

r2J It c2 fcccc Mm

01 cc

md CIa CtU to 09

MULT ASSET AUM

Id fr Lam

CC 41 ti

.o it IC lie Ii

ol HOE IC

ci din

and tIc yc om cnd

At

iL ot nb ii TIC iqE

Ii cI ct hiC \c Dec cob

Cr3 CV bC it or

tl ii UM lit ctid in It gt

tIc \o to 14 hi Ii

Cf no CI 1100113

9Iil rc va ctydv

\U in

LItI..t oc d7 cr btco

lIla 30 it VO to It

Li Is he or to rd

ME 1r in lb oil Dli yR

at .c 31 ii
tt

vi tr ct Pa It

lOLL 0501

6311 Vcc

Ii nyc



ALTERNATFVE INVESTMENTS

okRo 20 vth II ill

\U ot VU eotment cv or

640 Li 1W Or ii AUM

II nd 008 ic UCI iron Iddu 01

It AUM ty ot UI ii moditu jLot

or hedq tfcrirrg produ ollpLcr cut

UI iv ML 1d of fur eutlt led Ii

pp riur tratr jie Alternoti UM

it ted by out bur OWl pr

Id md tini Lit rr2I

uo ih Lu ii VU rnot Ti rmnr our cc

IL
ti 08 we were ob iv id nd

on thr ph finor ro rc thu p1

10l amp rcd iv lvii ptrur Iw Igc

UI III mnd othedge L1 eobct

aviR of iii tv nv tnl ntp cdi rrotudo

cot tit no or Iv Lv ndu mo rotund

jr
dv thy ti rt

lvi ond no no cur rb

he iv lye tne WI Dl OdOnl

11111/ trt epr nt ny 893 thor

arto natr \LM 9/ rnrrrbe ud tI

AL 0101 tirL in it ret rtr

ci ud Id Or
11119

II 68 lb

mu Ire rop II rveru 101

11 61 10110 or Li ntu

tic Il cc Itr nd bo 10 Am 923 bit on

Oil ML hiLl on or ont in

nc of on ci rut hr ii Ic



KROCK AL FRNAT NV $TM FO

\ssrf ant ot$6 .emit ootct cot nL

smo ica and rio Many of em itte rnotiv cot ot nt

pi duo hod atrong in eoN tent forms 200

sol nombor shd orpo el lb or logo ostn

rarkshjyer ml

it stotc \t yca ot 200 Bi ok rn or aji

213 bi lion
rt vat tot of at tale di and

01 icta fe tq or ode hiq

toe iddod rdoppo tinicti qi yputfA Boo

at etc AUM dmr 000 30 rio jIbe

ceo vet by $A3 bilLi orkt on AL

ion oft co fLos Comm icia cot to

or expectr Ito not nor to Ir ggie lb
iji

10

ends ft on is- At ye or end kRock no oq

42 lb
ti

oof\UM otoit it iii orrdondvrfl

hi Pt/c 01cr native 4dvi or BAA omc or

ic edo Ledg fond note eq sit md oat omit ird

of to ods iLL 05 irvestrner and Ii id ft

ALJM do Li 80 hi ion ring 009 Not stltow

L3 bitt or pi
in ipolLv Ar mo mg fr op

qor ib lotte at or od of dditir to

apwition eta 8020 ret cOo tend foole

tfoLic no re ii no iv of tton

on doe OJ ovi too of port nice art

to- orset ipp ott io

Ige or or IcR ck cod itt 324 ito

AM avartc ci Ito roeondrqttytedo

ood jtoha Os rct od oAt tre od

sod Li tr trg Ott or do

ii cod to ortA 000 otLor prodect od Lose

nifeni that os oh in ted to ski Avon oje of

pecif 01 ti wet di fitted ft onec

nec Oto- mt cor Itt year wo slit 13

hIL rt of AUM throi jtt acqeisiti ii 801 and th

Coptt of Pa too to fotods ortro ombinc

Inn AJMdo teoed$04b1tirow $5 tbitLi oottort

ott ovn Lodir 81.1 bitt ott of ab rotor to from

opporton An ret atm mIs argo ty
of ct by lIe to

oqo red ACM an idd ttoroot $2.8 Oil nec tmcrtt

dent tn Pot oppi otto

Art ito od rnodit ott kt ttd

BLoc kNock to or sq Io.7 icr to it roocy and

oontroodiLy TO it dote tot mo only of whir tow re

iq orctuqfotltn 801 to clot It pro lu

do act teroc it ro soya rio rotel

not Ly gh Ut i0 p510t

it oootoood ty pot odes ito-tsr fete

ott ot do rr 10 to tt ob ito ro so

/0 fir di irtg2OA tvertfy$23bilioootnef

tt ooaitoe od$ bitnro oft tapp or alien

ALTERNA11VE NVESTMENT5 AUM



dl ACKO ILK CASH MAN2 31 MEN

311 II 19 ant

lt p3 Nc rtcr 039 up 0.3 bIt

AUM rep ftd It 12 ltd 201

00 Fl 01 but 1uu

rrq
niaflu jcrnen 1r1 2t

rd elm ry tt at eltt

OL 12 late trF tr
Ije

tel the tc

qh or On pro bI

rtH IN dl94LI utrq rre

fiup tAUMailad EPOXI1 10

cr10 Ar Ml ahvlto 2308

kIlo on lIP .0 etl lit tytr

lot mpH req It ty ape fit

or ft
jlr lut alt Ic

39 merit ncn re jr It in

10 it glat put It lb SI iCE lO 15

NodLa jde taxabtr and ac ox mpt money ma

nr carp or Co

IC tr FL CI
to Cl

ttr Id er 1F

IT Il Ar lot

rrfc Ida ad Far up ortod

tOo
Ij prr lnd

II
p1

nFd 01 E3F art urit

11 tr rt re Ia h1 rc or

tji 1C utuc ra TI VI UL

ittle FLC inc At Sc

Cr mt Fr vltue be cool

ataral CI at nc uded cah manaq mont SUM

ld

Ci 111

an

it

II Il LI

par IlL Po to1 iy

ir
Lf

rj 1F BC

11 ot cara ir dr

URI

SUM

IA
11

El 00 Ct



Ft ifl iaq xteri inteL ci

tttu in th 80 ot 00 htt wh SM

FFfld OLbdSiii FU

tninag At ti try re ye

AiaA dbt onf tJ AUMve mmcii

oduet VI pn

nii tyd miPc FtP 26 Stir IA 11

taged ara Ion ow

S3 LL anmqed tom it rn ent

ilL we mood ML ifS

qntftc ml ci tt ow on .5 It nt iLlo at np

Ci tt let nIt to it

tt mt ha it

xpont at men pm 11 on

LfL iwo Ltkely en tibtl zi at

bat on tie pu In Ftc 10 11 Ct mm it

cOy mt ntet It

Ii tt ive tmc ci

ion on it teout ti md civ ot

cUt chili let eb end iat ii or

it ii 15 ii on

iLd to on wh CC tO
tt

tmettt yt fo

to Ft prow ng 1UF of

IF itton vi OF Lila SRi ii St tin Life

iiprhen FV OK not np VF tIe Se jc

mid ion Iqe net ory nonc tit ía vi

tc em tie yt tO ough 0mw ii Li

ltFddH InI oh tF it tiq
ci

iid tiiwtti nt mm ou tFng Ii nA IL tIFn

Ii kRockbottotistor lvi tfFnin iLt ok

mdi
ry iqap me ito ce Cdi IC art

1Ac MANAGEMENT AUM

uFd eto ttt ii

it cd irtl

ci iii tiC ra ii

tO it

it 11A.til it tnl lid tot

ttt Di mo tO tear

mPh IC
jttri

ttid

it itt tO cit

ddn on aid ft

\Ii or AIM on

Od FALL ws

owtli t5
krt if titan

qi di pi it it

kilo it VeO or icc FF10 hank

PF.Ft 11 it Ii tu on etA

ilii

tiI

Ia vi

Itk5

Cit

Ii mm id

At

51 OFL 1i

mtd$i

ng ri



BLACKRO Bi ACKRO2K Ji 0N0

non md oth to nat ov oct

Am Lurcpc Au tralim

hr Him kR hr Ic ti Ofadd mid chnology eat

ml suppo tin3 kcy to of thc BO in eq

ffoi hi arc cop cot flit

arc Oaf to eatable hing on fied op atmg atf rn

and consi to upon np pm ease oxp tte

inteqt aho of NO extr naivE quar fda or toot sk

2009 BLACKROCK SOLU1ONS ASSGNMENTC

ooanaq 00 cc det and folio on ttu finn

ippt catio wet to onh once thc

ffmldnpaf ito tro Addtonaty wowittoeokto

nope ut of or tn ft of our iunts ft rough

floe aDn fit cbrstjohm ttodiogpaform

TRANSITON MANAGEMENT SERVCES

KROCP oLo furs fr no ft man jc mont serv ceo

ng
floe tc rt ovn ight of or cfo

hey tt aro fr ire onc manag to an thor or from onc

afcj anothot it vid omprc our ow set vice

udc
pt ojc can go inc of pten entat.o

ci
hr of xccut or io wte with floe

oiod otli fit ft cii ci dv oi so th

RIo kRo oding ot arch toom to onage four

to to cc or ttoc or to expm ore

cx cc ti pr in it
if 0001 it avci age

fra to ecutc loin vo wec

ft icjlo lo di ft to oni ot alto fc dcpc

Oi tn si or opic iv miii fir mated

one rff ho or mdc dud AUM unf ma

RI cc kNock on ccci to to san ogc tb nsts

of cr floe ft on fv to ploo

olo

or ii

01



EXECUTWE LEADERSHIP

loft to right Rkhard Kushet Vice Chairman

Kendrick WiLson ifi Vre Chairman

BLake Grossman Vice Ch err an

Laurence Fink Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Robert Kapto President

Rohit Bhagat Vice Chairman

Susan Wagner Von Chaii man Ph of Ooerating Officer

Robert Fairbairn Vice Cha man

CharLes HaLLac Vice Char man Chief Operating Officer



BLACKROCK 24 BLACKROCK

FINANCIAL IN FORMATION

25 Selected Financial Data

26 Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations

63 Reports on Consolidated Financial Statements

66 Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

67 Consolidated Statements of Income

68 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity

69 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

71 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

119 Common Stock Performance Graph

120 Board of Directors

121 Corporate Information

122 Important Notes

IBC BlackRock Offices Worldwide



BLACKROCJ 25 BLACKROCK

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected financial data presented below has been derived in and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

part from and should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated included elsewhere in this Annual Report Prior year data reflects

Financial Statements of BlackRock and Managements Discussion certain reclassifications to conform to the currentyearpresentation

Year ended December 31

Dollar amounts in millions except pershare data 2009 2008 200711 2006111 2005

Income statement data

Total revenue $4700 $5064 $4845 $2098 $1191

Expenses

Restructuring charges 22 38

Termination of closed-end fund administration and

servicing arrangements 128

Fee sharing payment121 34

Other_operating expenses131 3400 3433 3423 1592 850

Total expenses 3422 3471 3551 1626 850

Operating income 1278 1593 1294 472 341

Total non-operating income expense 577 526 53 31

Income before income taxes 1272 1016 1820 525 372

Income tax expense 375 387 463 188 138

Net income 897 629 1357 337 234

Less Net income loss attributable to

non-controlling interests141 22 155 364 16

Net income attributable to BLackRock Inc $875 $784 $993 $321 $231

Per share data51

Basic earnings $6.24 $5.86 $7.53 $3.95 $3.60

Diluted earnings $6.11 $5.78 $7.37 $3.83 $3.45

Book valueISI $1 28.86 $92.91 $90.16 $83.63 $1 4.56

Common and preferred cash dividends $3.12 $3.12 $2.68 $1.68 $1.20

Year ended December31

Dollar amounts in millions 2009 2008 2007 2006111 2005

BaLance sheet data

Cash and cash equivalents $4708 $2032 $1656 $1160 $484

Separate account assetsl8l $119629 $2623 $4670 $4300

Collateral held under securities

lending agreements181 $19335

Goodwill and intangible assets net $30218 $11974 $1 2073 $11139 $484

Total assets $177994 $1 9924 $22561 $20470 $1849

Short-term borrowings $2234 $200 $300

Convertible debentures 243 245 242 238 235

Long-term borrowings 3191 697 697

TotaL borrowings $5668 $1142 $1239 $241 $239

Total stockholders equity $24329 $12069 $11601 $10789

Assets under management

Equity

Index $1183005 $51076 $71381 $61631 $1256

Active 353051 152216 291324 255330 35518

Fixed income

Index 459326 3411 3942 4274 797

Active 596300 477954 506265 441046 300427

Multi-asset class 142029 77516 98623 78601 3425

Alternative 102101 61544 71771 48292 25323

Long-dated 2835812 823717 1043306 889174 366746

Cash management 349277 338439 313338 235453 85936

Sub-total 3185089 1162156 1356644 1124627 452682

Advisoryltl 161167 144995

Total $3346256 $1307151 $1356644 $1124627 $452682

Significant increases in 2006 and 2007 for income statement and AUM data only are primarily
the result of the Merrill Lynch Investment Managers MLIMI

Transaction which closed on September29 2006

Includes 2006 fee sharing payment to MetLife Inc MetLife representing one-time expense related to large institutional real estate equity client

account acquired in the State Street Research SSR Transaction

Includes all other operating expenses

Includes both redeemable and nonredeemable non-controlling interests

Series and non-voting participating preferred stock is considered to be common stock equivalent for purposes of earnings per share calculations

Total BlackRock stockholders equity divided by total common and preferred shares outstanding at December31 of the respective year-end

Significant increases in 2009 are primarily the result of the Barclays Global Investors BOIl Transaction which closed on December 2009

Equal and offsetting amounts related to separate account assets which are segregated funds held for purposes of funding individual and group pension

contracts and collateral held under securities lending agreements related to these assets are recorded in liabilities

AdvisoryAUM represents long-term portfolio liquidation assignments
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

BlackRock Inc BLackRock or the Company is the

Largest pubLicLy traded investment management firm

which as of December31 2009 managed $3346 triL

lion of assets under management AUM on behaLf

of institutional and individual investors worldwide The

Companys products incLude equities fixed income

multi-asset cLass alternatives and cash management

and offer cLients diversified access to gLobal markets

through separate accounts common trust funds mutual

funds exchange traded funds hedge funds and closed-

end funds In addition BlackRock Solutions provides

market risk management financiaL markets advisory and

enterprise investment system services to broad base

of clients FinanciaL markets advisory services include

vaLuation of
illiquid securities dispositions and workout

assignments incLuding Long-term portfolio Liquidation

assignments risk management and strategic planning

and execution

On September 29 2006 Merrill Lynch Co Inc

MerriLL Lynch contributed the entities and assets

that constituted its investment management business

Merrill Lynch Investment Managers MLIM to

BLackRock in exchange for common and non-voting

preferred stock such that immediately after such

closing MerriLL Lynch heLd approximateLy 45% of

BlackRocks common stock outstanding and approxi

mateLy 493% of the Companys capitaL stock on fuLLy

diluted basis the MLIM Transaction On October

2007 BLackRock acquired certain assets and assumed

certain liabiLities of the fund of funds business of

Quellos Group LLC QuelLos for up to $1.71 biLLion

in combination of cash and common stock the

QueLlos Transaction

On January 2009 Bank of America Corporation

Bank of America acquired Merrill Lynch Co Inc

MerriLl Lynch In connection with this transaction

BLackRock entered into exchange agreements with each

of Merrill Lynch and The PNC FinanciaL Services Group

Inc PNC pursuant to which each agreed to exchange

portion of the BLackRock voting common stock they

held for non-voting preferred stock

On December 2009 BlackRock acquired from

BarcLays Bank PLC Barclays alL of the outstanding

equity interests of subsidiaries of BarcLays conducting

the business of Barclays Global Investors BOl in

exchange for capital shares valued at cLosing of $8.53 biL

lion and $6.65 biLlion in cash both of which are subject

to certain adjustments

As of December31 2009 equity ownership of BlackRock

was as follows

common stock Capital stock

Bank of America

MerriLl Lynch

100.0% _____1O0.0%

Voting

PN

Barclays

Other

3.7%

35.2%

4.8%

563

34 2%

24.5%

19.8%

21.5%
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The foLlowing tabLe summarizes BlackRocks operating performance for the years ended December31 2009 2008

and 2007

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Total revenue

Total expenses

Operating income

Operating margin

Non-operating income expense

net of non-controlling interests

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc

Diluted earnings per common share el

Effective tax rate

As adjusted

Operating income11 $1570

Operating margin11 38.2%

Non-operating income

net of non-controlling interests Ill bl
$1461

Net income attributable to

BlackRock Inc cl dl
$1021

Diluted earnings per

common share ldL Id

$7.13

Other

Diluted weighted-average common
shares outstandingNl

Assets under management
Book value per share

Cash dividends declared and

paid per share $3.12

NM Not Meaningful

Dollar amounts in millions

Operating income GAAP basis

Non-GAAP adjustments

BGI transaction/integration costs

MLIM/Ouellos integration costs

ENC LTIP funding obligation

Merrill Lynch compensation contribution

Restructuring charges

Termination of closed-end fund administration and

servicing arrangements

Compensation expense related to

appreciation on deferred compensation plans

Operating income as adjusted

Closed-end fund launch costs

Closed-end fund launch commissions

Operating income used for operating margin measurement

Revenue GAAP basis

Non-GAAP adjustments

Distribution and servicing costs

----
Year ended December31

Dollar amounts in millions

except per share data 2009 2008 2007 Amount

GAAP basis

Variance

2009 vs 2008 2008 vs 2007

Amount

$219 5%

$180

$299 23%

4.8% 18%

$4700 $5064 $4845 $1364

$3422 $3471 $3551 $149
$1278 $1593 $1294 $1315
27.2% 31.5/s 267%

$1281 $1422 $162 $394

$875 $784 $993 $91

$6.11 $5.78 $7.37 $0.33

30.0% 330% 31 .8/s

93%

2%

6%

$1662

38.7%

$1584

$1209

$11.59

1.2%

$1518

3740/0

NM

4%

$1384 $150

$856 $1077

$192 6/s $144 9%

05% 1% 1.3/s 40/0

$338 88% $534 NM

$165 19% $1221

139481449

$3346256

$128.86

$6.30 $7.99 $0.83 13% $11.69

131376517

$1307151

$92.91

$3.12

131378061

$1356644

$90.16

81 04932

$2039105

$35.95

6%

156% $149493

390/5 $2.75 3%

$2.68 $0.44 16%

i.I

Includes net income loss attributable to
non-controlling interests redeemable and nonredeemable related to investment and non-investment activities

BlackRock reports its financial results on GAAP basis however management believes that
evaluating the Companys ongoing operating results may be

enhanced if investors have additional non-GAAP basis financial measures Management reviews non-GAAP financial measures to assess ongoing operations
and for the reasons described below considers them to be effective indicators for both management and investors of BlackRocks financial performance over

time BlackRock management does not advocate that investors consider such non-GAAP financial measures in isolation from or as substitute for financial

information prepared in accordance with GAAP

Certain prior period non-GAAP data has been reclassified to conform to the current presentation Computations forall periods are derived from the Companys
consolidated statements of income as follows

Operating income as adjusted and operating margin as adjusted

Operating income as adjusted equals operating income GA.4P basis excluding certain items deemed
non-recurring by management or transactions that

ultimately will not impact BlackRock book value as indicated in the table below
Operating income used for operating margin measurement equals operating

income as adjusted excluding the impact of closed-end fund launch costs and commissions Operating margin as adjusted equals operating income used for

operating margin measurement divided by revenue used for operating margin measurement as indicated in the table below

Year ended

2009 2008

$1278 $1593

183

59 59

10 10

22 38

18 38

1570 1662

$1573 $1671

$4700 $5064

14771

100

$4123 $4322

27.2% 31.5/s

2007

$1294

20

54

10

128

12

1518

36

$1560

$4845

$4171

26.7%

Amortization of deferred mutual fund sales commissions

Reimbursable property management compensation

Revenue used for operating margin measurement

Operating margin GAAP basis

Operating margin as adjusted 38.2% 38.7% 37.4%
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Notes to table continued

Management believes that operating income as adjusted and operating margin as adjusted are effective indicators of BlackRockis financial performance over

time As such management believes that operating income as adjusted and operating margin as adjusted provide useful disclosure to investors

Operating income as adjus ted

Restructuring charges recorded in 2008 and 2009 consist of compensation costs occupancy costs and
professional

fees MLIM and Guellos integration costs

recorded in 2007 consist principally
of certain professional fees rebranding costs and compensation costs incurred in conjunction with these integrations HG

transaction/integration costs recorded in 2009 consist principally of certain advisory fees compensation expense legal fees and consulting expenses incurred

in conjunction with the 861 transaction The expenses associated with Ii the 2008 and 2009 restructuring Iii BGI transaction and integration costs iii MUM

and Quellos integration costs and iv the 2607 termination of the closed-end fund administration and servicing arrangements with Merrill Lynch have been

deemed non-recurring by management and have been excluded from operating income as adjusted to help
enhance the comparability of this information to

prior periods As such management believes that operating margins exclusive of these costs are useful measures in evaluating BlackRockA operating perfor

mance for the respective periods

The portion of compensation expense associated with certain long-term incentive plans LTIP that will be funded through the distribution to participants of

shares of BlackRock stock held by PNC and Merrill Lynch cash compensation contribution portion
of which has been received have been excluded because

these charges ultimately do not impact BlackRockd book value

Compensation expense associated with appreciation depreciation on assets related to certain BlackRock deferred compensation plans has been excluded

as returns on investments set aside for these plans which substantially offset this expense are reported in non-operating income

Operating margin as adjusteth

Operating income used for measuring operating margin as adjusted is equal to operating income as adjusted excluding the impact of closed-end fund

launch costs and commissions Management believes that excluding
such costs and commissions is useful because these costs can fluctuate considerably

and revenues associated with the expenditure of these costs will not fully impact the Company results until future periods

Operating margin as adjusted allows the Company to compare performance from period-to-period by adjusting for items that may not recur recur infrequently

or may fluctuate based on market movements such as restructuring charges transaction/integration costs closed-end fund launch costs and fluctuations

in compensation expense based on mark-to-market movements in investments held to fund certain compensation plans The Company also uses operating

margin as adjusted to monitor corporate performance and efficiency and as benchmark to compare its performance to other companies Management uses

both the GAAP and non-GAAP financial measures in evaluating the financial performance for BlackRock The non-GAAP measure by itself may pose limitations

because it does not include all of the Company revenues and expenses

Revenue used for operating margin as adjusted excludes distribution and servicing costs paid to related parties and to other third parties Management

believes that excluding such costs is usefulto BlackRock because it creates consistency
in the treatment for certain contracts forsimilar services which due to

the terms of the contracts are accounted under GAAP on net basis within investment advisory administration fees and securities lending revenue Amortiza

tion of deferred mutual fund sales commissions is excluded from revenue used for operating margin measurement as adjusted because such costs over time

offset distribution fee revenue earned by the Company Reimbursable property management compensation represented compensation and benefits paid to per

sonnel of Metric Property Management Inc Metric subsidiary of BlackRock RealtyAdvisors Inc Realty Prior to the transfer in 2008 these employees

were retained on Metricy payroll when certain properties were acquired by Realtys clients The related compensation and benefits were fully reimbursed by

Realtyd clients and have been excluded from revenue used for operating margin as adjusted because they did not bear an economic cost to BlackRock For

each of these items BlackRock excludes from revenue used for operating margin as adjusted the costs related to each of these items as proxy for such

offsetting revenues

Ibi

Non-operating income expense less net income loss attributable to non-controlling interests as adjusted

Non-operating income expense less net income loss attributable to non-controlling interests NC as adjusted equals non-operating income expense

GAAP basis less net income loss attributable to NC GAAP basis adjusted for compensation expense associated with depreciation appreciation on assets

related to certain BlackRock deferred compensation plans The compensation expense offset is recorded in operating income This compensation expense has

been included in
non-operating

income expense less net income loss attributable to NC as adjusted to offset returns on investments set aside for these

plans which are reported
in

non-operating
income expense GAAP basis

Year ended December31

Oollaramounts in millions 2009 2008 2007

Non-operating income expense GAAP basis $16 $1577 $526

Less Net income Loss attributable to NC GAAP basis 22 155 364

Non-operating income expense111 1281 422 162

Compensation expense related to appreciation

depreciation on deferred_compensation_plans ________
118

-________
38 121

Non-operating_income expense as adjustedW
________ _______

$146
_______

$384 $150

Includes net income loss attributable to NC redeemable and nonredeemable related to investment and non-investment activities

Management believes that non-operating income expense less net income loss attributable to non-controlling interests as adjusted provides

for comparability
of this information to

prior periods and is an effective measure for reviewing BlackRockA non-operating contribution to its results

As compensation expense associated with depreciation appreciation on assets related to certain BlackRock deferred compensation plans which

is included in operating income offsets the gain/floss on the investments set aside for these plans management believes that non-operating income

expense less net income loss attributable to NC as adjusted provides
useful measure for both management and investors of BlackRock

non-operating results that impact book value
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Notes to table

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc as adjusted

Management believes that net income attributable to BlackRock Inc as adjusted and diluted
earnings per common share as adjusted are useful measures

of BlackRock profitability
and financial performance Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc as adjusted equals net income attributable to BlackRock

Inc GAAP basis adjusted for significant non-recurring items as well as charges that ultimately will not impact BlackPock book value

Year ended December31

Dollar amounts in millions 2009 2008 2007

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc GAAP basis $875 $784 $993

Non-GAAP adjustments net ot tax01

BGI transaction/integration costs 129

PNCs LTIP tunding obligation
41 39 34

Merrill Lynch compensation contribution

Restructuring charges
14 26

MLIM/Quellos integration costs 13

Termination ot closed-end fund administration and

servicing arrangements
82

Income tax law changes 45 51

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc as adjusted $1021 $856 $1077

Allocation of net income attributable to BlackRock Inc as adjusted/tI

Common shares $995 $828 $1049

Participating RSUs 26 28 28

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc as adjusted $1021 $856 $1077

Diluted weighted average common shares outstandingldl 139481449 131376517 131378061

Diluted earnings per common share GAAP basislel $6.11 $5.78 $7.37

Diluted earnings per common share as adjustedldl $7.13 $6.30 $7.99

The restructuring charges and the BGI MLIM and Quellos integration costs reflected in GAAP net income attributable to BlackRock Inc have been deemed

non-recurring by management and have been excluded from net income attributable to BlackRock Inc as adjusted to help enhance the comparability of this

information to prior reporting periods

The portion of the compensation expense associated with LTIP awards that will be funded through the distribution to participants of shares of BlackRock stock

held by PNC and the Merrill Lynch cash compensation contribution portion of which has been received have been excluded from net income attributable

to BlackRock Inc as adjusted because these charges ultimately do not impact BlackRocks book value The termination of the closed-end fund administra

tion and servicing arrangements with Merrill Lynch has been excluded from net income attributable to BlackRock Inc as adjusted as the termination of the

arrangements is deemed non-recurring by management

During third quarter 2009 legislation was enacted primarily with respect to New York City corporate income taxes effeclive January 2009 which resulted in

revaluation of deferred income tax assets and liabilities The resulting decrease in income taxes has been excluded from net income attributable to BlackRock

Inc as adjusted as it is non-recurring it does not ultimately impact cash flows and to enhance comparability
to prior reporting periods

During third quarter 2007 the United Kingdom and Germany enacted legislation reducing corporate income taxes effective in April and January of 2008

respectively which resulted in revaluation of certain deferred tax liabilities The resulting decrease in income taxes has been excluded from net income

as adjusted as it is non-recurring it does not ultimately impact cash flows and to enhance comparability to current and prior reporting periods

dl For the
years

ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007 non-GAAP adjustments were tax effected at 30% 33% and 36% respectively which reflect the blended

rate applicable to the adjustments

Ic
Series and non-voting participating preferred stock are considered lobe common stock equivalents

for purposes of determining basic and diluted

earnings per share calculations Certain unvested restricted stock units are not included in this number as they are deemed participating securities in accor

dance with required provisions
of Accounting Standards Codification ASC 260-10 Earnings per

Share 260-10

lii

Allocation of net income attributable to BlackNock Inc as adjusted to common shares and participating Restrcted Stock Units RSUs is calculated

pursuant to the two-class method as defined in ASC 260- 10
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BlackRock has portfolio managers located around the

world including the United States the United Kingdom

the Netherlands Japan Hong Kong Australia and

Germany The Company provides wide array of taxable

and tax-exempt fixed income equity and balanced invest

ment funds including exchange traded funds and mutual

funds and separate accounts as well as wide assort

ment of index-based equity and alternative investment

products for diverse global clientele BlackRock

provides global advisory services for investment funds

and other non-U.S equivalent retail products The Com
panys non-U.S mutual fUnds are based in number

of domiciles and cover range of asset classes includ

ng cash management fixed income and equities The

BlackRock Global Funds the Companys primary retail

fund group offered outside the United States are autho

rized for distribution in more than 35 jurisdictions world

wide In the United States the primary retail offerings

include various open-end and closed-end funds Addi

tional fund offerings include structured products real

estate funds hedge funds hedge funds of funds private

equity funds and funds of funds managed futures funds

and exchange funds These products are sold to both

U.S and non-U.S high net worth retail and institutional

nvestors in wide variety of active and passive strategies

covering both equity and fixed income assets

BlackRocks client base consists of financial institutions

and other corporate clients pension fLinds high net

worth individuals and retail investors around the world

BlackRock maintains significant sales and marketing

presence both inside and outside the United States that

is focused on establishing and maintaining retail and

institutional investment management -elationships by

marketing its services to retail and institutional inves

tors directly and through financial professionals pension

consultants and establishing third-party distribution

relationships BlackRock also distributes its products and

services through Merrill Lynch under global distribution

agreement which following Bank of Americas acquisi

tion of Merrill Lynch runs through January 2014 After

such term the agreement will renew for one automatic

three-year extension if certain conditions are met

See Note 17 Related Party Transachons to the consoli

dated financial statements beginning on page 71 of

this Annual Report

BlackRock derives substantial portion of its revenue

from investment advisory and adminislration fees which

are recognized as the services are performed Such fees

are primarily based on pre-determinecl percentages of

the market value of AUM percentages of committed

capital during investment periods of certain alterna

tive products or in the case of certain real estate equity

clients net operating income generated by the underlying

properties and are affected by changes in AUM including

market appreciation or depreciation foreign exchange

gains or losses and net subscriptions or redemptions Net

subscriptions or redemptions represent the sum of new

client assets additional fLindings from existing clients

including dividend reinvestment withdrawals of assets

from and termination of client accounts purchases and

redemptions of investment fund shares and distributions

to investors representing return of capital and return on

investments to investors Market appreciation or depre

ciation includes current income earned on and changes

in the fair value of securities held in client accounts

BlackRock also earns revenue by lending securities on

behalf of clients primarily to brokerage institutions

Such revenues are accounted for on an accrual basis

The security loans are secured by collateral in the form

of cash and securities ranging from approximately

1O2P/0 to lO8% of the value of the loaned securities The

net income earned on the collateral is shared between

BlackRock and the funds or other third- party accounts

managed by the Company from which the securities

are borrowed

Investment advisory agreements for certain separate

accounts and BlackRocks alternative investment prod

ucts provide for performance fees based upon relative

and/or absolute investment performance in addition to

base fees based on AUM Investment advisory perfor

mance fees generally are earned afier given period

of time and when investment performance exceeds

contractual threshold As such the timing of recogni

tion of performance fees may increase the volatility of

BlackRocks revenue and earnings

BlackRock provides variety of risk management

investment analytic and investment system and advi

sory services to financial institutions pension funds

asset managers foundations consLiltants mutual fund

sponsors real estate investment trusts and government

agencies These services are provided under the brand

name BlackRock Solutions and include wide array of

risk management services valuation services related to

Liquid securities disposition and workout assignments

including long-term portfolio liquidation assignments

strategic planning and execution arid enterprise invest

ment system outsourcing to clients Fees earned for

BlackRock Solutions and advisory services are determined

using some or all of the following methods fixed fees

ii percentages of various attributes of advisory assets

under management and hi performance fees if contrac

tual thresholds are met

The Company also earns fees for transition management

services comprised of referral fees or agency commis
sions from acting as an introducing broker-dealer in

buying and selling securities on behalf of its customers

Commissions and related clearing expenses related to

transition management services are recorded on trade-

date basis as securities transactions occur

Operating expenses reflect employee compensation and

benefits distribution and servicing costs amortization

of deferred mufual fund sales commissions direct fund

expenses general and administration expenses and

amortization of finite-lived intangible assets

Employee compensation and benefits expense reflects

sataries commissions deferred and incentive compen
sation employer payroll taxes and related benefit costs

Distribution and servicing costs include payments

made to Merrill Lynch-affiliated entities under global

distribution agreement and to PNC-affiliated entities

as well as other third parties primarily associated with

the distribution and servicing of client investments in

certain BlackRock products

Direct fund expenses consist primarily of third party

non-advisory expenses incurred by BlackRock related

to certain funds for the use of certain index trade

marks reference data for certain indices custodial

services fund administration fund accounting trans

fer agent services shareholder reporting services

legal expenses audit and tax services as well as other

fund related expenses directly attributable to the

non-advisory operations of the fud These expenses
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may vary over time with fluctuations in AUM number

of sharehoLder accounts or other attributes directly

related to volume of business

BlackRock holds investments primariLy in sponsored

investment products that invest in variety of asset

cLasses including private equity distressed credit/mort

gage debt securities hedge funds and real estate Invest

ments generally are made for co-investment purposes to

estabLish performance track record to hedge exposure

to certain deferred compensation plans or for regulatory

purposes Non-operating income expense and other

comprehensive income for available-for-sale investments

includes the impact of changes in the valuations or pick

ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT

AUM for reporting purposes is generally based upon how

investment advisory and administration fees are calcu

lated for each portfoLio Net asset vaLues total assets

committed assets or other measures may be used to

determine portfoLio AUM

Year ended December 31 Variance

Dollaramounts in millions 2009 2008 2007 2009 vs 2008 2008 vs 2007

MIX OF ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT BY ASSET CLASS11

Equity

Index

Active

Fixed income

Index

Active

Multi-asset class

Alternative

Long-dated

Cash management

Sub-total

Advisory121

2007

4% 5%

11% 22%

1%

36% 37%

6% 7%

3%__ 5_ ----
77%

10% 26% 23%

95% 89%

5% 11% _%

Total

Data reflects the reclassification of AUM into the current period presentation

21
AdvisoryAUM represents tong-term portfolio liquidation assignments

AUM increased approximately $2039 trillion or 56%

to $3346 trillion at December 31 2009 compared to

$1307 trilLion at December 31 2008 The growth in AUM

was primarily attributable to $1 .849 triLLion acquired in

the BGI Transaction $1 billion acquired from R3 Capital

00%

Management LLC $145 billion in net market apprecia

tion and foreign exchange movements $82 billion of

net subscriptions in long-dated mandates $12 billion

of net new business in advisory assignments offset by

$49 biLlion of outflows in cash management products

up of equity method earnings of these investments as

weLL as interest income and interest expense

ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENTt11 BY ASSET CLASS

Equity

Index

Active

Fixed income

Index

Active

Multi-asset class

Alternative

Long-dated

Cash management

Sub-total

Advisory121

Total

$1183005 $51076 $71381 NM 28%l

353051 152216 291324 32% 48%

459326 3411 3942 NM 13%

596300 477954 506265 25% 6%
142029 77516 98623 83% 21%

102101 61544 71771 66% 14%

2835812 823717 1043306 244% 21/o

349277 338439 313338 30/s 8%

3185089 1162156 1356644 174% 4%

161167 144995 11% NM

$3346256 $1307151 $1356644 56% 4%

NM Not Meaningful

Data reflects the reclassification of AUM into the current period presentation

121

.4dvisoryAUM represents long-term portfolio liquidation assignments

Year ended December31

2009 2008

35%

14%

18%

4%

85% 63%

100% 100%

00%
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Net market appreciation of $144 billion included $104 class products offset by $5 billion market depreciation in

biltion of net appreciation in equity products due to alternative products primarily in real estate products

an increase in global equity markets $29 billion in fixed

The following table presents the component changes
income products due to current income and changes

in BlackRock AUM for the years ended December31
in interest rate spreads and $16 billion in multi-asset

2009 2008 and 2007

COMPONENT CHANGES IN ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT

Year ended December 31

Dollar amounts in millions 2009 2008 2007

Beginning assets under management $1307151 $1356644 $1.1 24627
Net subscriptions/redemptionsF1

Long-dated 81542 2822 62367

Cash management 49122 25670 75272

Advisoryl2l 11642 144756

Total net subscriptions 44062 167604 137639

Acquisitions131 1850252 21868

Market appreciation depreciation 143706 188950 60132

Foreign exchange21 1085 28147 12378

Total change 20391U5 49493 232017

Ending assets under management $3346256 $1307151 $1356644

Percent change in total change in

AUM from net subscriptions 2Io NM 59%

Percent change in total AUM 156% 4% 21%

NM Not Meaningful

Includes distributions
representing

return of
capital and return of investment to investors

AdvidoryAUM represents long-term portfolio liquidation assignments

IS
Includes AUM acquied from Barclays in December 2009 R3 Capital Management LL.C in April 2009 and Ouellos Group LLC in October 2007usd acqisition

adjustments to conform to current period combined AUM policy

Foreign eachange reflects the impact of converting non-U.S dollar denominatedAUM into U.S dollars for reporting purposes

BlackRock has historically grown aggregate AUM through by focusing on strong investment performance and client

organic growth and acquisitions Management believes service and by developing new products and new distribu

that the Company will be able to continue to grow AUM tion capabilities

The following table presents the component changes in BlackRocks AUM111
by product type during 2009

Net Market

Dollar amounts December31 subscriptions appreciation Foreign December 31
in millions 2008 redemptions121 Acquisitions11 depreciation exchangeidl 2009

Equity

Index $51076 $32274 $1055456 $49060 $14361 $1183005
Active 152216 9778 132205 55169 3683 353051

Fixed income

Index 3411 6393 467340 111184 6634 459326

Active 477954 25559 49918 39614 3255 596300

Multi-asset class 77516 11979 36408 15756 370 142029

Alternative 61544 4441 49395 4717 320 102101

Long-dated 823717 81542 1790722 143698 33671 2835812
Cash management 338439 491 22 59530 161 591 349277

Sub-total 1162156 32420 1850252 143537 3185089
Advisory151 144995 11642 169 4361 161167

Tota $1307151 $44062 $1850252 $143706 $1085 $3346256

Oala reflects the reclassification of AUM into the current period preseniatain

Includes distributions representing return of capital and return on investment to investors

ii
Includes AUM

acquired from Barclays in Oecember 2009 and 03 Capital Management LLC in April 2009 and
acquisition adjustrner is to conform in cu mni

period combined AUM
policy

Foreign exchange reflects the impact of converting non-US dollar denominated AUM into US dollars for reporting purposes

AdvisoryAUM represents long-ierm portfolio liquidation assignments
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The Company began 2010 with substantially increased

AUM base as result of the BOl Transaction and strong

market and organic growth in 2009 At the same time

domestic and international markets continue to be vola

tile as result of investor concerns that the global econ

omy is weaker than investors expected The U.S housing

market employment levels debt levels in European

nations and the stability of certain foreign currencies are

heightening investor anxiety in the early part of 2010 The

timing and direction of these volatile markets investment

performance and the level of new client asset flows will

have direct impact on the Companys revenue With the

BOl Transaction the Company offers an expanded range

of products with investment objectives to track various

indices and others that target returns in excess of speci

fied benchmarks as well as liquidity funds Consequently

BlackRock should be well positioned to meet these chal

lenges as well as navigate the following issues that may

also impact the Companys results in 2010

The levels of institutional liquidity assets may continue

to decline from year-end levels These assets are

expected to be redeployed to direct investment bank

deposits or longer-dated strategies as market condi

tions stabilize The Companys diversified global prod

uct offerings client service and independent advice

may enable it to retain portion of these assets

Additionally as investors shift their preferences

between active and passive investment styles the

Companys broad active and passive product profile

ability should enable it to retain and capture AUM as

it has wide array of offerings in both product styles

The regulatory environment is evolving for financial

institutions The SEC has enacted reforms to Rule 2a-7

under the Investment Company Act governing money

market funds with the intent to protect the industry

and our clients The SEC indicated there is likely to be

second round of changes governing money market

funds These changes should they be enacted may

affect the margins of the money market industry and

may affect industry participants differently depending

on scale Other financial services reforms may favor

the separation of fiduciary management and banking

activities from proprietary investing BlackRock acts as

an independent asset manager and does not engage in

proprietary trading or deposit taking activities

The liquidity crunch and associated market disruption

gave
rise to greater demand for our advisory services

combining our extensive capital markets and struc

turing expertise with rigorous modeling and analyti

cal capabilities While the demand for these services

remained high through the volatile markets demand

for short-term advisory services may decline as

market concerns ease meaningful percentage of

BlackRock Solutions and advisory revenues in 2009

was composed of one-time advisory and portfolio

structuring fees At the same time as markets have

stabilized we have seen clients investing in longer-

term risk and systems solutions

return to higher market levels may enable the Com
panys alternative investment products with absolute

return objectives to contribute additional performance

fee revenue However such fees are dependent on

achieving investor high water marks

The global exchange traded funds market is expected

to continue to grow BlackRock has large array

of products and assets under management in this

market As first mover in several products many

of the iShares products have achieved critical mass

providing both liquidity to investors and minimizing

the difference between the unit exchange traded

market values and the underlying unit net asset

values As additional asset managers enter the

marketplace to offer exchange traded funds the

Companys market share may decline even while

the overall market grows

The Company will continue to assess the appropri

ateness of its cost structure as it integrates BOl The

Company may decide to take additional measures to

reduce costs The benefits of any cost reduction mea

sures may be realized over time and may or may not

require upfront costs

At the same time the Company plans to invest in

future growth opportunities There may be opportuni

ties where the cost the current period will precede

the expected future revenue

Certain costs such as direct fund expenses and

cash incentive compensation will tend to move in line

with revenue As stock awards are expensed subse

quent to their grant date the associated expense will

not vary with future revenues The stock awards related

to 2009 performance will be expensed in 2010 and

subsequent years

Real estate costs are expected to increase We leased

new space most notably in London on which we will

begin incurring rent expense even though we will not

move into that space until it is fully built out in 201

The Company has not completed analyzing its require

ments in all other locations impacted by the acquisition

of BGI

Marketing expenses including travel and entertain

ment are expected to increase to levels which reflect

our increased client base more geographically

diverse firm and additional client opportunities

The effective tax rate of the Company is affected

among other things by the geographic distribution of

earnings and global changes in tax legislation includ

ing efforts by governments to raise taxes to reduce

projected deficits The effective tax rate may vary from

period to period as result of these factors
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OPERATING RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2009

AS COMPARED WITH THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008

Revenue

Do/tar amounts in mi/lions

Investment advisory administration fees

and securities tending revenue

Equity

Index

Active

Fixed income

ex

Active

MuLti-asset cLass

A/tern at ive

Cash management

Iota

Investment advisory performance fees

Equity

Fixed income

Mu/ti-asset c/ass

A/ternative

TotaL

B/ackRock Solutions and advisory

Distribution fees

Other revenue

Tota/ revenue

NM Not Mooning tui

35

865

479

400

625

3826

46

21

20

115

202

477

100

95

$4700

Totat revenue for the year ended December 31 2009

decreased $364 mi/Lion or 7% to $4700 miLLion com

pared with $5064 miLlion for the year ended December31

2008 TotaL revenue for the year ended December 31 2009

inc/udes $312 mi/Lion of incremental revenue reLated to

the BOl acquisition The $364 million decrease was the

result of $431 miLlion decrease in tota/ investment advi

sory administration fees and securities Lending revenue

$39 mil/ion decrease in distribution foes and $3 miL

lion decrease in other revenue offset by an $84 milLion

increase in BlackRock Solutions and advisory revenue

and $25 mi//ion increase in performance fees

Investment Advisory Administration Fees and

Securities Lending Revenue

Investment advisory administration fees and securities

lending revenue for the year ended December 31 2009

included approximate/y $278 million of fees reLated to

the BGI acquisition The decrease in investment advisory

administration fees and securities fencing revenues of

$431 miLlion for the year ended December 31 2009 com

pared with the year ended December 31 2008 consisted

of decreases of $357 mi/Lion in active equity products

$40 miLlion in multi-asset class products $141 miLLion

in alternative investment products $7 million in active

fixed income products and $83 miLLion in cash manage
ment products primariLy associated with market driven

reduction in average AUM for equity muLti-asset cLass

and aLternative products and net redemptions in cash

management products The decrease is offset by $164

miLLion increase in equity ndex products and $33 miL

lion increase in fixed income index products primariLy

reLated to products acquired in the BGI acquisition

.33

40
141

708 33

4257

86 40
16

12

78 37

177

393

139

98

$5064 $364

Performance Fees

NM

0/

260/

20/s

50/a

47%

14%

21 0/

3%

70/

Investment advisory performance fees increased $25 mil

Lion or 14% to $202 miLlion for the year ended Decem
ber 31 2009 as compared to $177 mi/Lion for the year

ended December 31 2008 primarily due I.e an increase in

performance fees in aLternative equity hedge funds fixed

income and multi-asset class separate accounts offset

by decrease in internationa/ equity separate accounts

The year ended December 31 2009 included $24 milLion

of performance fees reLated to the EGI acquisition

BlackRock Solutions and Advisory

B/ackRock So/unions and advisory revenue for the year

ended December 31 2009 increased $84 miLlion or 21%

compared with the year ended December 31 2008 The

increase in BlackRock Solutions and advisory revenue was

primariLy the result of additionaL advisory assignments

during the period as well as additional Aladdin and risk

management mandates Revenue earned on advisory

assignments was comprised of advitsory and portfolio

structuring assignment fees and ongoing fees based on

AUM of the respective portfoLio assignments

Distribution Fees

Distribution fees decreased $39 million to $100 mi//ion

for the
year ended December 31 2009 as compared to

$139 miLLion for the year ended December 31 2008 The

decrease in distribution fees was primarily the result

of lower sales redemptions and AUIv1 in certain share

c/assets of open-end mutual funds

Year ended December 31

2008 Amount

Variance

2009

$192

1230

$164

357

$28

1587

872

519

541

NM
22%

25

34

39
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Other Revenue

Other revenue of $95 million for the year ended Decem

ber 31 2009 decreased $3 million or 3% compared with

the year ended December 31 2008 Other revenue for the

year ended December 31 2009 included $10 million of

incremental revenue related to the operations of BGI

The decrease in other revenue was primarily the result

of $31 million decline in property management fees

Expenses

in millions 2009

Expenses

Employee compensation and benefits

Distribution and servicing costs

Amortization of deferred mutual fund

sales commissions

Direct fund expenses

General and administration

Restructuring charges

Amortization of intangible assets

Total expenses GAAP $3422

Total expenses GAAP

Less Non-GAAP adjustments

BGI transaction/integration costs

Employee compensation and benefits

General and administration

Total BGI transaction/integration costs

PNC LTIP funding obligation

Merrill Lynch compensation contribution

Restructuring charges

Compensation expense
related to appreciation

depreciation on deferred compensation plans

Total non-GAAP adjustments
292

Total expenses as adjusted $3130

Employee compensation and benefits as adjustedt11 $1655

Total GAAP expenses decreased $49 million or to

$3422 million for the year ended December31 2009

compared to $3471 million for the year ended Decem

ber 31 2008 Excluding certain items deemed non

recurring by management or transactions that ultimately

will not effect the Companys book value total expenses

primarily related to the outsourcing in the fourth quarter

of 2008 of Metric contracts with BlackRock real estate

clients partially offset by $14 million increase in

BlackRocks share of underlying earnings from certain

operating and advisory company investments and

$9 million increase in fees earned for transition

management services

NM

42%

56 NM

223 323%

$272 8%

$129 7%

as adjusted decreased $272 million or 8% The decrease

in total expenses as adjusted is primarily attributable to

decreases in employee compensation and benefits dis

tribution and servicing costs and amortization of deferred

mutual funds sales commissions

Year ended December31 Variance

Dollaramounts in millions 2009 2008 Amount

Other revenue

Commissions revenue $28 $26

Transition management service fees 22 13

Equity method investment earn ngsM1 15

Fund accounting

Property management fees 32

Other miscellaneous revenue 20 15

Total other revenue $95 $98

NM Not Meaningful

Related to operatiog
and advisory company investments

$2

14

31

$3

8/c

690/

NM

18%
97%

3%

3%

Year ended December31 Variance

2008 Amount

$1802 $1815 $13 1%
477 591 114 19%

100 130 30 23%

95 86 10%

779 665 114 17%

22 38 16 42%

147 146 1%

$3471 $49 1%

$3471 $49 1%$3422

60

123

183

59

10

22

18

NM

NM
60

123

183

16

59

10

38

38

69

$3402

$1784

NM Not Meaningful

Adjusted for BGl integration costs PNC LTiP funding obligation Merrill Lynch compensation cash contribution and compensation expense related to apprecia

tion depreciation on certain deferred compensation plans
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Employee Compensation and Benefits

EmpLoyee compensation and benefits expense decreased

$13 miLLion or 1% to $1802 million for the year ended

December31 2009 compared to $1815 miLLion for the

year ended December 31 2008 Employee compensation

and benefits expense for the year ended December 31

2009 incLuded $89 miLlion of incremental expense reLated

to an increase in the number of empLc.yees related to BGI

The decrease in empLoyee compensation and benefits

expense was attributable to $118 million decrease

in saLaries benefits and commissions $12 miLLion

decrease in incentive compensation associated with

Lower operating income partially offset by $60 miL

Lion increase reLated to the BGI integration costs and

$57 miLLion increase in deferred compensation which

is offset primariLy by an increase in non-operating

ncome related to appreciation on assets associated with

certain deferred compensation pLans The $118 miLLion

decrease in salaries benefits and commissions is due

to lower empLoyment Levels as resuLt of the Companys

cost controL efforts and outsourcing of Metric services

partialLy offset by one month impact of the increase in

empLoyees related to the BGI Transaction EmpLoyees at

December 31 2009 totaLed 8629 as compared to 5341 at

December 31 2008

Distribution and Servicing Costs

Distribution and servicing costs decreased $114 miLlion to

$477 miLLion for the year ended December 31 2009 com

pared to $591 miLlion for the year ended December31

2008 These costs incLude payments to Bank of America

MerriLl Lynch under gLobaL distribution agreement and

payments to PNC as well as other third parties primariLy

General and Administration Expenses

fDoUar amounts in millions

GeneraL and administration expenses

ProfessionaL services

Occupancy

PortfoLio services

Tech no Logy

Closed-end fund Launc costs

Marketing and promotionaL

Other general and administration

TotaL generaL and adminirexpenses

Total general and administration expenses

as adjusted111

71 Adjusted for $123 mi/lion of BGI tranooction aid integration costs in 2009

GeneraL and administration expenses increased

$114 milLion or 17% for the year ended December 31

2009 compared with the year ended December 31 2008

The year ended December31 2009 included $91 milLion

$11 miLlion $7 milLion $1 milLion and $13 miLLion of

professionaL services marketing and promotionaL tech

noLogy occupancy and other general and administration

expenses respectively reLated to the acquisition and

integration of BGI ExcLuding these expenses general and

administration expenses decreased $9 milLion or for

the year ended December 31 2009 corripared to the year

ended December31 2008

associated with the distribution and servicing of

client investments in certain BLackRock products

The $114 miLLion decrease primarily related to lower

leveLs of average AUM serviced by related parties

across aLL asset cLasses and an increase in waivers

within certain cash management funds resuLting

in Lower distribution payments

Distribution and servicing costs for the year ended

December 31 2009 incLuded $349 miLlion of costs attrib

utable to Bank of America/Merrill Lynch and affiLiates

and $19 miLLion of costs attributable to PNC and affiliates

as compared to $464 miLLion and $30 milLion respec

tiveLy in the year ended December 31 2008 Distribu

tion and servicing costs related to other third parties

increased $12 miLLion to $109 miLlion for the year ended

December31 2009 as compared to $97 miLlion for

the year ended December 31 2008 due to an expansion

of distribution pLatforms

Amortization of Deferred Mutual Fund Sales Commissions

Amortization of deferred mutuaL fund sales commissions

decreased $30 miLlion to $100 million for the year ended

December 31 2009 as compared tci $130 million for the

year ended December 31 2008 The decrease in amor
tization of deferred mutuaL fund sales commissions was

primarily the resuLt of Lower sales and redemptions in

certain share classes of U.S open-end mutual funds

Direct Fund Expenses

Direct fund expenses incurred by BlackRock related

to non-advisory operating expenses of certain funds

increased $9 miLLion primarily related to the addition of

BOl funds with these arrangements

Year ended December31 Variance

2009 2008 AmoLint

$162 $76 $86 113%

165 139 26 19%

100 88 12 14%

114 116 2/o

78%
85 154 69

151 83 68 82/o

$779 $665 $114 17%

$656 $665 $9

TotaL generaL and administration exaenses for the year

ended December31 2009 incLuded $43 milLion of incre

mental BGI expenses incurred in December subsequent

to the cLose of the 801 Transaction

Marketing and promotionaL expenses decreased $69 mil

Lion dir 45% primariLy due to decLine in traveL and

promotionaL expenses Occupancy increased $26 miLLion

which incLuded an $1 miLLion expense reLated to the

write-off of certain leasehoLd improiements Portfolio

service costs increased $12 million or 14% to $100 mil

Lion due to fund expense reimbursements ProfessionaL

services increased $86 milLion or 113% to $162 million
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compared to $76 million for the year ended December31

2008 primarily related to legal advisory and consulting

costs incurred in connection with the BOl Transaction

Other general and administration expenses increased

$68 million or 82% to $151 million from $83 million

primariLy related to $61 million increase in balance

sheet related foreign currency remeasurement costs

$21 million increase to provision related to an out

standing Loan to Anthracite Capital Inc and $10 million

expense for potentially uncollectible fee receivables

partially offset by reduction of various expenses

primarily the result of cost control efforts

Restructuring Charges

For the year ended December31 2009 BlackRock

recorded pre-tax restructuring charges of $22 million

primarily related to severance outplacement costs occu

pancy costs and accelerated amortization of certain previ

ousLy granted stock awards associated with reduction in

work force and reengineering efforts For the year
ended

December31 2008 BlackRock recorded pre-tax restruc

turing charges of $38 million primarily related to sever

ance outplacement costs and accelerated amortization of

certain previously granted stock awards associated with

9% reduction in work force See Restructuring charges

discussion in Note 20 to the consolidated financial state

ments beginning on page 71 of this Annual Report

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Amortization of intangible assets increased $1 million

to $147 million for the year ended December 31 2009

as compared to $146 million for the year ended Decem

ber 31 2008 The increase in amortization of intangible

assets reflects amortization of finite-lived management

contracts acquired in the BOl Transaction

NON-OPERATING RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31 2009 AS COMPARED WITH

THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008

Non-Operating Income Expense Less Net Income Loss

Attributable to Non-Controlling Interests

Non-operating income expense less net income loss

attributable to non-controlling interests for the years

ended December 31 2009 and 2008 was as follows

56 NM

$338 88%

The components of non-operating income expense less net income loss attributable to non-controlling interests

for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 were as follows

Year ended December 31 Variance

2009 2008 Amount
Dollar amounts in millions

Net gain loss on investments111

Private equity

Real estate

Distressed credit/mortgage funds

Hedge funds/funds of hedge funds

Other investments121

$28 $37 NM

127 13 10%

141 241 NM

53 71 NM

30 19 63%

379 381 NM

2009

$16

22

Year ended December 31 Variance

Dollaramounts in millions 2008 Amount

Non-operating expense GAAP basis $577 $571 99%

Less Net income loss attributable to Nd OAAP basis

Non-operating expenseW 281

Compensation expense related to appreciation

depreciation on deferred compensation plans 18 38

Non-operating expense as adjustedW $146 $384

NM Not Meaningful

Includes net income lass attributable to non-controlling interests and nonredeemable related to nvestment and non-investment activities

155

422

177

39/I

NM

93

$9

114
100

18

11

18 38

20 417

56 NM

L37 NM

Sub-total

Investments related to deferred

compensation plans

Total net gain loss on investmentsH

Net income loss attributable to other

non-controlling interests11

Interest and dividend income 20 65 45

Interest expense

Total non-operating income expenseW

Compensation expense related to depreciation

appreciation on deferred compensation plans 181

Non-operating income expense as adjustedH $146 $384

NM Not Meaningful

i1
Includes net income loss attributable to non-controlling interests redeemable and nonredeemable related to investment and non-investment aciivities

21
Includes net gains/ related to equity and fixed income investments and BlackRock seed capital hedging program

131

Includes non-controlling interests related to operating entities non-investment activities

100%

69%

68 69 1%

28 422 39/4 93%

38 56 NM

$338 88%
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Non-operating expense less net income Loss attribut

abLe to non-controlling interests decreased $394 million

to $28 million for the year ended December 31 2009

as compared to $422 million for the year ended Decem

ber31 2008

The $20 miLlion net gain on investments Less

non-controlling interests reLated to the Companys

co-investment and seed investments included valuation

gains in distressed credit/mortgage funds of $100 million

investments related to deferred compensation plans

of $18 million hedge funds/funds of hedge funds of

$18 miLlion and private equity products of $9 milLion

offset by net Losses in real estate products of $114 miLlion

and other investments of $11 million

Net interest expense was $48 miLlion an increase

of $44 milLion primariLy clue to decline in interest rates

Dollar amounts in millions 2009

Private equity

ReaL estate

Distressed credit/mortgage funds

Hedge funds/funds of hedge funds

Other investments

Total net economic investment expcsure 737

Deferred compensation investments 71

Hedged investments 36

Total net economic investments $844

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense was $375 million and $387 million

for the years ended December 31 20Ci9 and 2008 respec

tively The effective income tax rate for the year ended

December31 2009 was 30.0% as compared to 33.0% for

the year ended December 31 2008 The year over year tax

rate decrease is primarily attributable to approximateLy

$45 million of tax benefits related to legislation which was

enacted in 2009 with respect to New york City corporate

income taxes

Operating Income and Operating Margin

GAAP

Operating income totaled $1278 million for the year

ended December 31 2009 which was decrease of

$315 million compared to the year ended December 31

2008 Year ended December 31 2009 operating income

included $141 miLLion resulting from incrementaL

revenue and expenses related to the cperations of BGI

and $183 million of BGI transaction arid integration costs

The transaction and inteqration expenses are not part

of the on-going business and are priniipally comprised

of advisory fees compensation expense legal fees and

consulting expenses

Operating income for the year ended December 31 2009

included the effect of $431 million decrease in invest

ment advisory administration fees and securities Lending

revenue associated with market driven reduction in

average AUM for all asset classes for the year ended

December31 2009 as compared to the year ended

December 31 2008 $42 million reduction in distribu

tion fees and other revenue offset by an $84 million

earned on cash equivalents and interest rates paid on its

line of credit offset by an $8 million increase in interest

expense related to $2.5 billion in issuances of long-term

notes in December 2009

Net Economic Investment Portfolio

The Company reviews its net econcmic exposure to its

investment portfolio by reducing its GAAP investments by

the net assets attributable to non-controlling interests of

consolidated sponsored investment funds Changes in the

investment portfolio are due to purchases sales maturi

ties distributions as well as the impact of valuations The

following table represents the carrying value by asset

type at December31 2009 and 2008

Year ended December 31 Variance

2008 Amount

$220 $16

166

12

49 13

$1011 $167

increase in BlackRock Solutions and advisory revenue

$25 million increase in performance fees revenue and

$49 million net decrease in operating expenses primarily

due to declines in employee compensation and benefits

distribution and servicing costs amortization of deferred

mutual fund sales commissions and restructuring

expenses offset by increases in direct lund expenses and

general and administration expenses

The Companys operating margin was 27.2% for the year

ended December31 2009 compared to 31.5% for the

year ended December 31 2008 The reduction in operat

ing margin in 2009 as compared to 2008 included the

effect of $183 million of BOl transation arid integration

costs and change from $50 million of toreign currency

remeasurement benefits in 2008 to $1 million of foreign

currency remeasurement costs in 2009

As Adjusted

Operating income as adjusted totaled $1570 million for

the year ended December 31 2009 which was decrease

of $92 million compared to the year ended December

2008 The decline of operating income as adjusted for

the year ended December 31 2009 as compared to the

year ended December 31 2008 is related to the effect

of the $364 million decrease in total revenue offset by

$272 million decrease in operating expenses due

to decreases in employee compensation and benefits

distribution and servicing costs anc general and

administration expenses

Operating margin as adjusted was 38.2/o and 38.7% for

the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

The reduction in margin includes the effect of the $61 mil

lion increase in expenses related to the change in foreign

$236

44

197

108

152

157

176

126

224

903

59

113
21

18
72

70/0

72%
2/

2/o

18/
20%

27/

7/o
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currency remeasurement offset by reduction of certain

expenses as result of additional cost controls in 2009

Operating income as adjusted and operating margin

as adjusted are described in more detail in the Overview

to Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations

Net Income Attributable to BlackRock Inc

The componer.t nf net income attributable to BlackRock

Inc and net income attributable to BlackRock Inc as

adjusted for the years ended December 31 2009 and

2008 are as follows

Dollaramounts in millions

except pershare data

Operating income

Non-operating expenseiW

Income tax expense

Net income attributable to

BlackRock Inc

Allocation of net income

attributable to BlackRock Inc

Common shares

Participating RSUs

Net income attributable to

BlackRock Inc

Diluted weighted-average

common shares

outstandingl2l

Diluted earnings per

common share

Change

88%
9/o

9%

GAAP

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc for the year

ended December31 2009 includes operating income

of $1278 million or $5.75 per diluted common share

non-operating expenses less net income attributable

to non-controlling interests of $28 million or $0.13 per

diluted common share and $70 million or $0.49 per

diluted common share of tax benefits related to local

income tax law changes favorabLe tax ruling and the

final resolution of outstanding tax matters Net income

attributable to BlackRock Inc totaled $875 million or

$6.11 per diluted common share for the year ended

December 31 2009 which was an increase of $91 million

or $0.33 per diluted common share compared to the year

ended December31 2008

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc for the year

ended December 31 2009 included the after-tax effect of

the portion of LTIP awards which will be funded through

capital contribution of BlackRock stock held by PNC

of $41 million BGI transaction/integration costs of $129

million restructuring charges of $14 million and an

expected cash contribution portion of which has been

paid by Merrill Lynch in third quarter 2009 of $7 million

to fund certain compensation of former MLIM employees

In addition net income for the year ended December31

2009 included $45 million one-time reduction in income

tax expense as result of enacted legislation primarily

with respect to New York City corporate income taxes

which resulted in revaluation of certain deferred income

tax assets and liabilities

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc of $784 million

for the year ended December 31 2008 included the after

tax effect of the portion of certain LTIP awards which will

be funded through capital contribution of BlackRock

stock held by PNC of $39 million restructuring charges

of $26 million and an expected contribution by Merrill

Lynch of $7 million to fund certain compensation of for

mer MLIM employees portion of which was received by

BlackRock in third quarter 2009

As Adjusted

Exclusive of the items discussed above diluted earnings

per common share as adjusted of $7.13 for the year

ended December31 2009 increased $0.83 or 13%

compared to the year ended December31 2008

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc as adjusted

for the year ended December 31 2009 includes operating

income of $1570 million or $7.35 per diluted common

share non-operating expenses less net income attribut

able to non-controlling interests of $46 million or

$0.22 per diluted common share

Diluted earnings per common share as adjusted is

described in more detail in the Overview to Managements

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations

Year ended December31

2009 2008

Year ended December31

2009 2008

0/ As As

GAAP GAAP Change adjusted adjusted

$1278 $1593 20% $1570 $1662

128 422 93% 46 384

1375 387 3% 503 422

$875 $784 12% $1021 $856

$853 $759 12% $995 $828

22 25 12% 26 28

$875 $784 12% $1021 $856

139481449 131376517 6% 139481449 131376517

$6.11 $5.78 6% $7.13 $6.30

20%

70/0

9%

6/n

13

Includes net income loss attributable to non-controlling interests redeemable and nonredeemable related to investment and non-investment activities

21
Series and

non-voting participating preferred stock are considered to be common stock equivalents for purposes of determining basic and diluted

earnings per share calculations Certain unvested restricted stock units are not included in this number as they are deemed
participating

securities in accor

dance with required provisions of ASC 260-70
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OPERATING RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31 2008 AS COMPARED WITH

THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2007

AUM decreased $49 billion or 4% to $1307 trillion at

December31 2008 compared with $1367 trillion at

Equity

Index

Active

Fixed income

Net market depreciation of $189 billion was primarily

due to depreciation in equity products of $141 billion as

equity markets declined during the year ended Decem

ber 31 2008 net depreciation on fixed income products

of $16 billion depreciation on multi-asset products of $20

billion and alternative investment products of $13 billion

The $28 billion reduction in AUM from foreign exchange

was across all asset classes due to the strengthening

of the U.S dollar which resulted in foreign exchange

Revenue

Index

Active

Fixed income

Index

Active

Multi-asset class

Alternative

Cash management

Total

Investment advisory performance fees

Equity

Fixed income

Multi-asset class

Alternative

Total

BlackRock Solutions and advisory

Distribution fees

Other revenue

Total revenue

December 31 2007 The decline in AUM was attributable

to $189 billion in net market depreiiation and $28 billion

in net foreign exchange movements partially offset by

$168 billion in net subscriptions

The following table presents the component changes in

BlackRocks AUM111 for 2008

Foreign December 31

exchangel2l 2008

81
5930
6060

997

translation loss from converting non U.S-dollar denom
inated AUM into U.S dollars Net subscriptions of

$168 billion for the year ended December 31 2008

were attributable to net new business of $145 billion in

long-term advisory liquidation assignments $26 billion

in cash management products $5 billion in multi-asset

class products and $5 billion in alternative investment

products partially offset by $6 billion and $7 billion of net

outflows in equity and fixed income products respectively

3%
24%

45%

35%

13 13%
17%

Net Market

December 31 subscriptions appreciation

Dollar amounts in millions 2007 redemptions1 depreciation

$11183

17204

$71381

291324

3942

506265

98623

71771

$1134

12037

$31 354

109867

162

16134

20134

13201

190528

1339

189189

Index 612
Active 6247

Multi-asset class 5087

Alternative 4971

Long-dated 1043306 2822 26 239

Cash management ________
313338 25670 908

Sub-total 356644 22848 28 147

Advisory11 144756 239

Total $1356644 $167604 $188950 $28147

Includes distrthu5ons representing return of capita and return on investment to investors

i21

Foreign exchange reflects the .mpact of converUng non-U.S dollar denominatedAUM into U.S dollars for
reportiog purposes

AdvisoryAUM represents Iong.term portfolio liquidation assignments

$51076

152216

3411

477954

77516

61544

823717

338439

1162156

144995

$1307151

Year ended December31

Dollaramounts in millions 2008 2007

Investment advisory administration fees and

securities Lending revenue

Equity

Variance

$28 $35

1587 1791

872 895

519 419

541 372

708 523

Amount

204

23
100

169

185

220

200/x

11 0/s

4257 4037

86 99

78 236

177 350

393 190

139 123

98

158

173
203

16

47

$219

145

$4845

11

67%

49%
07%

13

2%

5%$5064



BLACKROCK 41 MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION

Total revenue for the year ended December 31 2008

increased $219 million or 5% to $5064 million com

pared with $4845 million for the year ended Decem

ber 31 2007 The $219 million increase was primarily

the result of $220 million increase in total investment

advisory administration fees and securities Lending rev

enue $203 million increase in BlackRock Solutions and

advisory revenue and $16 million increase in distribu

tion fees offset by $173 million decrease in investment

advisory performance fees and $47 million decrease in

other revenue

Investment Advisory Administration Fees and

Securities Lending Revenue

The increase in investment advisory administration fees

and securities lending revenue of $220 million for the

year ended December 31 2008 compared with the year

ended December 31 2007 consisted of increases of $169

million in alternative investment products $185 mil

lion in cash management products and $100 million in

multi-asset class products offset by decreases of $21

million in active and index equity products and $23 million

in active fixed income products Investment advisory and

administration base fees increased for the year ended

December 31 2008 primarily as result of increased

average
AUM in 2008 compared to 2007 for cash manage

ment products due to net subscriptions and alter

native investment products due to the full year effect

of the Quellos Transaction offset by tower fees in

equity products due to the impact of market depreciation

on AUM

Investment Advisory Performance Fees

Investment advisory performance fees decreased by

$173 million or 49% to $177 million for the year ended

December 31 2008 as compared to $350 million for the

year ended December 31 2007 primarily as result of

lower investment advisory performance fees earned on

alternative investment products including real estate

funds and fixed income hedge funds and international

equity products

BlackRock Solutions and Advisory

BlackRock Solutions and advisory revenue of $393 million

for the year ended December 31 2008 increased $203

million or 107% compared with the year ended Decem

ber 31 2007 The increase in BlackRock Solutions and

advisory revenue was primarily the result of additional

advisory assignments and Aladdin assignments during

the period portion of the revenue earned on advisory

assignments was comprised of one-time advisory and

portfolio structuring fees and ongoing fees based on AUM

of the respective portfolio assignments

Distribution Fees

Distribution fees increased by $16 million to $139 million

for the year ended December31 2008 as compared to

$123 million for the year ended December 31 2007 The

increase in distribution fees was primarily due to the

full-year effect of the acquisition of distribution financing

arrangements from PNC in second quarter 2007 which

resulted in the Company receiving distribution fees from

such arrangements as well as an increase in contingent

deferred sales commissions as result of redemptions in

certain share classes of open-ended funds

Other Revenue

Other revenue

Fund accounting

Commissions revenue

Property management fees

Transition management service fees

Other advisory service fees

Other miscellaneous revenue

Total other revenue

Other revenue of $98 million for the year ended Decem

ber 31 2008 decreased $47 million or 32% compared to

the year ended December31 2007

The decrease in other revenue of $47 million for the

year ended December 31 2008 as compared to the year

ended December 31 2007 was primarily the result of

decrease in fees earned for fund accounting services

of $16 million $14 million decline in other advisory

service fees earned in 2007 $1 million decline in unit

trust and class mutual fund commissions revenue

and $6 million decline in property management fees

primarily related to the termination in the fourth quarter

of 2008 of certain Metric contracts with BlackRock real

estate clients Certain Metric employees have been trans

ferred to third party which provides real estate clients

the property management services formerly provided by

Metric At December 31 2008 Metric had no remaining

employees The decreases discussed above were offset

by $5 million increase in fees for transition manage
ment services

Dollar amounts in millions

Year ended December 31

2008 2007 Amount

$11 $27 $16
26 37 11
32 38

13

14 14
16 21

$98 $145 $47

Variance

59%
30%

6%
63%

00%

24%

______
32%



Dollar amounts in millions

Expenses

Employee compensation and benef ts

Distribution and servicing costs

Amortization of deterred mutual fund

sales commissions

Direct fund expenses

General and administration

Restructuring charges

Termination of closed-end fund administration

and servicing arrangements

Amortization of intangible assets

Total expenses GAAP

Total expenses GAAP

Less Non-GAAP adju stments

Restructuring charges

PNC LTIP funding obligation

Merrill Lynch compensation contribution

MLIM/Quellos integration costs

Termination of closed-end fund administration

and servicing arrangements

Compensation expense related to depreciation

appreciation on deferred compensation plans

Total non-GAAP adjustments

Total expenses as adjusted

Employee compensation and benefits as adjustedt1t

NM Nit Meanngfi

Adjuoted the PNC LT/P tundng obLgat an Merr 11 Lyn rrp000atioo

once ti deterred compcnsat on piano

ntrbuiion and omj rout xpe 1110 ipp

134 117

NM

NM

91

1201 100

Total GAAP expenses decreased $80 million or 2c to

$3471 million for the year ended Deccmber 31 2008

compared to $3551 million for the year ended Decem

ber 31 2007 Excluding certain items deemed non

recurring by management or transact ons that ultimately

will not affect the Companys book value total expenses

as adjusted increased $75 million or 2% The increase

was attributable to increases in distribution and servic ng

costs employee compensation and benefits amortization

of deferred mutual fund sales commissions and amorti

zation of intangible assets

Employee Compensation and Benefits

Employee compensaton and benefits expense
increased

$48 million or 3% to $1815 million at December31

2008 compared to $1767 million for the year ended

December 31 2007 The increase in employee compensa
tion and benefits expense was primarily attributable to

$91 million increase in salaries and benefits offset by

$38 million decrease in deferred compensation which

was primarily linked to depreciation on assets related

to certain deferred compensation plans The increase of

$91 mill on in salaries and benefits was primarily due

to an increase in headcoLint throughout the majority of

2007 and 2008 including the effect associated wth the

fund of funds acquisition in 2007 Full time employees

at December 31 2008 totaled 5341 including the effect

of reduction in force in the fourth quarter as compared

to 5952 including Metric at December 31 2007 The

decline in deferred compensation of $38 million was

substantially offset by the change in valuations of

investments set aside for these pLans which are uded

in non-operating ncorne expense

Distribution and Servicing Costs

Distr bution and servicing costs increased $52 mill on

or lOo to $59 million during the year ended Decem

ber 31 2008 compared to $539 milLion for the yeai ended

December31 2007 These costs include payment0 to

Merrill Lynch under the global stribution agreement

and payments to PNC as well as other th rd part es

primarily associated th the distribution and servicing

of client investments in certain Blat kRock products

The $52 million increase related pr mai ly to highvm

levels of average AUM in cash management products

Distribution and servicing costs for the year ended

December31 2008 iniluded $464 miLlion of costs sttrib

utable to Merrill Lynch and affliates and $30 mill on of

costs attributable to PNC and affiliates as compared to

$444 million arid $28 million respectively in the year

ended December31 2007 The increaseo costs attribut

able to Merrill Lynch was offset by approximately $10

Ilicin expense reduction associated th the 2007 term

nation of closed end fund administration and servIcing

arrargements Distribution and servicing osts me ated to

other non-related third parties ncraased $30 on as

result of an expansion at stnibution platforms

Amortization of Deferred Mutual Fur Sales Commissions

Amortization of deterred mutual fund sales comrr osions

increased by $22 millon to $130 Ition for the ye ir

ended December31 2008 as compare to $108 ttion

Expenses
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Year ended December 31 Var ance

10

20

2008 2007 Amount

$1815 $1767 $48

591 539 52

130 108 22

86 80

665 799

38 38

128

146 130

$3471 $3551

$3471 $3551

38

59 54

10 10

20

128

38 12

69 224

$3402 $3327 $75

$1784 $1691 $93

128

16

$80

$80

38

10071

120

ei

2n

1128

50

155

100

NM

1690

2o
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for the year ended December31 2007 The increase in

amortization of deferred mutual fund sales commissions

was primarily the result of the acquisition of distribution

financing arrangements from PNC in second quarter

2007 as well as higher sales and redemptions in certain

share classes of open-ended funds

General andAdministration Expenses

Dollar amounts in millions

General and administration expenses

Marketing and promotional

Portfolio services

Technology

Closed-end fund launch costs

Occupancy

Professional services

Other general and administration

Total general and administration expenses

General and administration expenses decreased $134 mil

lion or 17% for the year ended December 31 2008

compared with the year ended December31 2007 Other

general and administration costs decreased $80 mil

lion or 49% to $83 million from $163 million primarily

related to $49 million decrease in foreign currency

remeasurement costs and $26 million decrease in costs

associated with the support of two enhanced cash funds

Closed-end funds launch costs decreased $27 million as

compared to the year ended December 31 2007 due to

three closed-end funds launched during the year ended

December 31 2007 which generated approximately

$3.0 billion in AUM as compared to two closed-end funds

launched in the year ended December 31 2008 which

generated approximately $400 millon in AUM Profes

sional services decreased $18 million or 19% to $76 mil

lion compared to $94 million for the year ended Decem

ber 31 2007 primarily due to decreases in accounting

tax and other consulting costs related to the MLIM

integration in 2007 Marketing and promotional expenses

decreased $15 million or 9% primarily due to decline

in travel and promotional expenses The decreases dis

cussed above were partially offset by $9 million or 7%
increase in occupancy expenses to $139 million com

pared to $130 million for the year ended December 31

2007 as result of expansion of offices worldwide includ

ing the full-year effect of the Quellos Transaction

Restructuring Charges

For the year ended December 31 2008 BlackRock

recorded pre-tax restructuring charges of $38 million

Dollar amounts in millions

Non-operating income expense GAAP basis

Less Net income loss attributable to Nd
GAAP basis

Non-operating expense111

Compensation expense related to appreciation

depreciation on deferred compensation plans

Non-operating expense as adjustedH

Direct Fund Expenses

Direct fund expenses increased $6 million or 8%

to $86 million during the year ended December 31

2008 compared to $80 million for the year ended

December31 2007

$15 9%
0/

2%

75%
7%

19

490/

17%

primarily related to severance outplacement costs and

accelerated amortization of certain previously granted

stock awards associated with 9% reduction in work

force See Restructuring charges discussion in Note 20

to the consolidated financial statements beginning on

page 71 of this Annual Report

Termination of Closed-End Fund Administration and

Servicing Arrangements

For the year
ended December 31 2007 BlackRock

recorded one-time expense of $128 million related to

the termination of administration and servicing arrange

ments with Merrill Lynch on 40 closed-end funds with

original terms of 30-40 years

Amortization of Intangible Assets

The $16 million increase in the amortization of intangible

assets to $146 million for the year ended December 31

2008 compared to $130 million for the year ended

December 31 2007 primarily reflects the full-year

impact of the amortization of finite-lived intangible

assets acquired in the Quellos Transaction

Non-Operating Income Expense Less Net Income

Loss AttributabLe to Non-ControlLing Interests

Non-operating income expense less net income loss

attributable to non-controlling interests for the years

ended December31 2008 and 2007 was as follows

2008 2007 Amount

$577 $526 $1103

155 519

4221 584

$384 $150 $534

Year ended December31

2008 2007 Amount

Variance

$154

88

116

139

76

83

$665

$169

89

118

36

130

94

163

$799

27

18
80

$134

Year ended December 31 Variance

364

162

1238

NM

NM

NM

NM

NM

50

NM Not Meaningful

Includes net income Ioosl atiribuiable to non-controlling inieresto redeemable and nonredeemablel related to investment and non-investment activities
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The components of non-operating income expense Less net income Loss attributable to non contrc 1mg interests for

the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 were as follows

Year ended December 31 Variance

NM Not Meaningful

In ludes net income attributable to non-controllirg interests and nonredeernable rd ited nyc tment viti

Includes net
gains

reiated to equity and fixed income investments collateralized debt obligN ons CPOs md BI No ii up ti

hedging program

Includes non-controlling interests related to opcrating cntities investment activities

Dollaramounts in millions

Net gain loss on investments5

Private equity

Real estate

Distressed credit/mortgage funds

Hedge funds/funds of hedge funds

Dther investments

Sub-total

Investments related to deferred

compensation plans 38

Total net gain loss on investments

Net income loss attributable to oher

non-controlling interests131

Interest and dividend income

Interest expense

Total non-operating income expense
13I 422

Compensation expense related to depreciation

appreciation on deferred compensation plans 38

Non-operating income expense as adjusted $384

Non-operating income expense lest net income loss

attributable to non-controlling interests decreased $584

million to $422 million expense for the year ended

December31 2008 as compared to ron-operating

income less net income loss attributable to non-

controlling interests of $162 million for the year ended

December31 2007 The decrease in net non-operating

income expense less net income loss attributable to

non-controlling interests primarily reflects declines in

valuations from seed investments and co-investments in

real estate funds private equity and hedge funds/funds of

hedge funds which includes the impact of $141 million

decline in valuations of distressed credit products and

$50 million decline in vaiuations of imestments associ

ated with certain deferred compensation plans In addi

tion net interest expense increased $26 million primarily

related to incremental interest expense related to the full

year effect of the $700 million issuance of long-term debt

in September 2007

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense was $387 million and $463 million

for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respec

tively The effective income tax rate for the year ended

December 31 2008 was 33.D% as compared to 31 .8%

for the year ended December 31 2007 The increase in

the effective income tax i-ate was primarily the result of

one-time tax benefit of $51 million recognized in 2007

due to tax legislation changes enacted in the third quarter

2007 in the United Kingdom and Germany which resulted

in revaluation of certain deferred tax abilities Accord

ingly BlackRock revalued its deferred tax liabilities in

these jurisdictions Excluding this deferred income tax

benefit the 2007 adjusted effective tax rate was 35.3

The effective ncome tax rate fot the year ended Decem

ber 31 2008 declined as compared to the 2007 adjusted

effective tax rate primarily as ret of the impact of

foreign taxes

Operating Income and Operating Margin

GAAP

Dperating income totaled $1593 millicn for the year

ended December 31 2008 which was an increase of

$299 million compared to the year ended December31

2007 The Companys operating margin was 31.5 for

the year ended December 31 2008 compared to 6.7

for the year ended December31 2007 Operaf ng incomm

and operating margin for the year ended December 31

2008 included $50 million fore
gri currency remeasure

ment benefit and $38 million deferred compensation

benefit due to depreciation on assets related to curtain

deferred compensation plans offset by $38 mill on of

restructuring charget Operating income and operating

margin for the year ended December31 2007 nc uded

the termination of certain closed end fund servic ng and

administration arrangements of $128 million $42 million

of closed-end fund launch costs and commissions and

$20 million of MLIM integration costs

2008

$28
127

141

53

30

379

2007

$65

34

23

130

12

142

74

52

162

12

$150

Amount

$93
161

141

76

38

.509

50

559

17

584

50

$534

417

65

69

NM

NM

NM

NM

NM

NM

NM

NM

50

12

33

NM

NM

NM



BLACKROCK 45 MANAGEMENTS DSCUSSlON

As Adjusted

Operating income as adjusted totaled $1662 million

for the year ended December 31 2008 which was an

increase of $144 million compared to the year ended

December 31 2007 Operating margin as adjusted was

38.7% and 37.5% for the years ended December 31 2008

and 2007 respectively The growth of operating income

as adjusted and operating margin as adjusted for the

year ended December 31 2008 as compared to the year

ended December31 2007 is primarily related to $219

million of revenue growth including the fulL year impact

of the Quellos Transaction and $49 miLLion decLine

in foreign currency remeasurement costs offset by

$91 milLion increase in salaries and benefits and

$16 million increase in amortization of finite-lived

intangible assets primariLy associated with the

QueLlos Transaction

Operating income as adjusted and operating margin

as adjusted are described in more detail in the Overview

to Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations

Net Income Attributable to BlackRock Inc

The components of net income attributabLe to BLackRock

Inc and net income attributable to BlackRock Inc as

adjusted for the years ended December 31 2008 and

2007 were as follows

Dollaramounts in millions

except pershare data

Operating income

Non-operating income expense111

Income tax expense

Net income attributable to

BLackRock Inc $784

Allocation of net income attributable

to BLackRock Inc

Common shares $759

Participating RSUs 25

Net income attributable to

BLackRock Inc

DiLuted weighted-average

common shares

outstanding121

Diluted earnings

per common share $5.78

NM Not Meaningful

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc for the year

ended December 31 2008 included operating income

of $1593 million or $7.86 per diluted share and non-

operating losses less net income loss attributable to

non-controlling interests of $422 million or $2.08 per

diluted common share versus $0.78 gain per diluted

common share in 2007 Net income attributable to

BlackRock Inc totaled $784 million or $5.78 per diluted

common share for the year ended December 31 2008

which was decrease of $209 million or $1.59 per

diluted common share compared to the year ended

December 31 2007

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc for the year

ended December 31 2008 included the after-tax impact

of the portion of LTIP awards which will be funded

through capital contribution of BLackRock stock held by

PNC an expected contribution by Merrill Lynch to fund

certain compensation of former MLIM employees por

tion of which has been received by BLackRock in 2009

and restructuring charges of $39 million $7 million

and $26 million respectively

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc of $993 million

for the year ended December 31 2007 included the after-

tax effect related to the termination of certain closed-end

fund administration and servicing arrangements of $82

million the portion of certain LTIP awards which will be

funded through capital contribution of BlackRock stock

held by PNC of $34 milLon MLIM integration costs of

$13 million and an expected contribution by Merrill Lynch

of $6 million to fund certain compensation of former

MLIM employees portion of which has been received by

BlackRock in 2009 In addition the United Kingdom and

Germany enacted legislation reducing corporate income

tax rates resulting in one-time decrease of $51 million

in income tax expense which is included in net income

Exclusive of these items in both periods diluted earnings

per common share as adjusted for the year ended

December31 2008 decreased $1.69 or 21 5/a to $6.30

compared to the year ended December 31 2007 Diluted

earnings per common share as adjusted is described

in more detail in the Overview to Managements Discus

sion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results

of Operations

Year ended December31

2008 2007

GAAP

$1593

422

387

Year ended December31

2008 2007

As As

adjusted adjusted

$1662 $1518

384 150

422 591

GAAP change

$1294 23%

162 NM

463 6%

$993 21%

change

9%

NM

29%

$856 $1077 21%

$968

25

$993$784

22%

21

$828

28

$1049 21%
28

131376517 131378061

$856 $1077 21%

$7.37 22%

131376517 131378061

Includes net income loss attributable to non-controlling interests redeemable and nonredeemable related to investment and non-inveslment activities

12
Series Band non-voting participating preferred stock are considered to be common stock equivalents for purposes of determining basic and diluted

earnings per share calculations Certain unvested restricted stock units are not included in this number as they are deemed participating
securities in

accordance with required provisions
of ASC 260-10

$6.30 $7.99 21%
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

BlackRock Cash Flows Excluding the Impact of

Consolidated Sponsored Investment Funds

accordance with GAAP certain BlackRock sponsored

investment funds are consolidated into the nancial

statements of BlackRock notwithstanding the tact that

BlackRock may only have minority economic interest

in these funds As result BlackRocks consolidated

statements of cash flows include the cash flows ot

consolidated sponsored investment funds The Company

uses an adjusted cash flow statement wbch excludes the

mpact of consol dated sponsored investment funds as

supplemental non-GAAP measure to assess liquidity and

capital requirements The Compan he ieves that is cash

flows excluding the impact ot the cons dated .rc

investment funds prov do invest its wiC useful

tion cn the case flows ot BlackR mk relit ng to ibil tv

to fund additional opeiating nvesting finan

activit es BlackRocks management dot not advi ate

that nvestors consider such non GAAP measurE so

tat ion from or as substitute tor it ow po nnted

accordance with GAAP

The following table presents re onc fiat ion of thE Uom

panys consolidated statements cash flows prenntrd

on I3AAP has to the Companys iOns dated tIe

ments of cash flows excluding thu mp ct of the sd

tlcws of consol dated sponsored nestn ant fun

Year endea December31

amounts millions

Cash flows from

operating activities

Cash flows from

investing activit es

Cash flows from

financ ng activities

Effect of exchange rate changes

on cash and cash equivalents

Net change in cash and

cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalen.s

beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalen

end of period

NM tMvamgt2

5519 31

6749 185

vol or

Cash and cash equivalents excluding cash held by con

solidated sponsored investment funds at December

2009 increased $2662 Ilion from December 2008

pr manly resulting from $1231 million of cash inflows

from operating activities $o934 Lion of cash inflows

from financing activities $5550 mllicn of cash outflows

from invest ng activities and $47 million increase due to

the effect of foreign exchsnge rate changes

Operating Activities

Sources of BlackRocks operating cash primarily include

investment advisory edministration fees and securities

lending revenue revenues from BlackRock Solutions and

advisory products and services and mutual fund dstribu

tion fees BlackRock uses its cash to pay compensation

and benefits distribution and servicing costs general

and administration expenses interest and princ pal

on the Companys borrowings income taxes and divi

dends on BlackRock capital stock arid to purchase

cc investnnent0 and seed nvestme its in pay

capital expenditures

Net cash inflows from operating activ cxc ad rig
the

impact of consol dated sponsored nvetrn ent tur to

the year ended December 2019
pri iarily nil Ic

the receipt of investment advisoi md lininistrai un

fees secur tie lending revenue and oti ci reveriu ttsel

by the payment of operat ng expsnes rurred ide

ncirmal course of business In add on Decemi 2009

subsequent to the close of the BGI Transaction it ire

was an operating cast outflow of $35o mill on ii Ged

to the paymen of certa ac rued EIGI mployee

ccmpensation assumed by BlackRock hich wo

funded by cash and investments icquir rn conn te ii

with the BGI ansact on

Investing Activities

Cash outflows frons investing activities oxcludirig he

impact of consolidated sponsored investment fun

2009 2008

Cash flows Ca ows

Impact on excluding cluding

cash flows of mpact of rnpact of

consolidated consolidated ccinsol dated

sponsored sponsored sponsored

GAA vest rn en investment vs st mont

basis funds funds funds

$1399 $168 $1e03

Varia

Amount

$272

1651 NM

5411 NM

$1231

55501

6934

47

2662

1971

$4633

47

2676 14

2032 61

4708 $75

385

306 NM

382 2280 NM

1589 382 24

$1971 $2662 135

Iurth nforn at Or it-ti ampiry in niR psi v-v whit- apdite2 he

nh vor md Os rnbe 2008 vt- hod viii ii SpO hei 17 209
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for the year ended December31 2009 primariLy included

$5.6 billion outflow net of $1055 miWon of cash

acquired related to the BGI Transaction $156 miWon

contingent consideration payment to QuelLos paid in the

second quarter $73 million of purchases of investments

and $65 million of purchases of property and equipment

partially offset by $260 million of net proceeds from sales

and maturities of investments and $89 million of return of

capital from equity method investees

Financing Activities

Cash inflows from financing activities excluding the

impact of consolidated sponsored investment funds for

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents held by

consolidated sponsored investment funds11

the year ended December31 2009 primarily included the

receipt of $2.8 billion from equity raised in connection

with financing the BGI Transaction $2.5 billion of Long-

term note issuances $2 billion of net commercial paper

financing and $25 million receipt of Merrill Lynch

cash capital contribution to fund certain compensation

expense partially offset by $422 million of payments for

cash dividends

Capital Resources

The Company manages its financial condition and funding

to maintain appropriate liquidity for the business Capital

resources at December31 2009 and 2008 were as follows

December 31 Variance

Amount

Subtotal 4633 1971

2007 credit facilityundrawn121 2171 2171

Commercial paper131 2034

Committed access before required

regulatory capital $4770 $4142

Required regulatory capital141 $857 $172

The Company may not be able to access such cash to use in its
operating

activities

Excludes $129 mill/on of undrawn amounts at December31 2009 and 2008 related to Lehman Commercial Paper Inc

The outstanding commercial paper notes that are supported by the 2007 credit facility reduce the availability of ihe facility

i/o

port/on of the required regulatory capital is partially
met with cash and cash equivalents

2008

In addition significant portion of the Companys

$844 million of net economic investments are illiquid
in

nature and as such may not be readily convertible

to cash

Short- Term Borrowings

2007 Facility

In August 2007 the Company entered into five-year

$2.5 billion unsecured revolving credit
facility

the 2007

facility The 2007 facility requires the Company not to

exceed maximum leverage ratio ratio of net debt to

earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amor

tization where net debt equals total debt less domestic

unrestricted cash of to which was satisfied with

ratio of less than ito at December31 2009 At Decem

ber 31 2009 the Company had $200 million outstanding

under the 2007 facility with an interest rate of 0.44% and

maturity date during February 2010 During February

2010 the Company rolled over $100 million in borrowings

with an interest rate of O.43% and maturity date in May

2010 Lehman Commercial Paper Inc has $140 million

participation under the 2007 facility however BlackRock

does not expect that Lehman Commercial Paper Inc will

honor its commitment to fund additional amounts Bank

of America related party has $140 million participa

tion under the 2007 facility

Commercial Paper Program

On October 14 2009 BlackRock established commer

cial paper program the CP Program under which the

Company may issue unsecured commercial paper notes

the CP Notes on private placement basis up to

maximum aggregate amount outstanding at any time of

$3 billion The proceeds of the commercial paper issu

ances were used to finance portion of the BGI Trans

action Subsidiaries of Bank of America and Barclays

both related parties as well as other third parties

act as dealers under the CP Program At year-end the

CP Program was supported by the 2007 facility

The Company began to issue CP Notes under the CP

Program on November 2009 As of December31 2009

BlackRock had approximately $2 billion of outstanding CP

Notes with weighted average interest rate of 0.20% and

weighted average maturity of 23 days Since Decem

ber 31 2009 the Company repaid approximately $1.4 bil

lion of CP Notes with proceeds from the long-term note

issuances in December 2009 and operating cash flow

See Note 13 Borrowings in the consolidated financial

statements beginning on page 71 of this Annual Report

for further discussion As of March 2010 BlackRock

had $596 million of outstanding CF Notes supported by

the 2007 facility with weighted average interest rate

of 0.18% and weighted average maturity of 38 days

The Company expects that the outstanding balance of

CP Notes may fluctuate throughout the year

amounts in millions 2009

$4708

75

$2032

61

$2676

14

2662

2034

$628

$685

132%

23%

135%

NM

55/s

398%
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Japan Commitment-line

In June 2009 BLackRock Japan Co Ltd wholly owned

subsidiary of the Company renewed its five biLLion

Japanese yen commitment-Line agreement the Japan

Commitment-Line for term of one year The Japan

Commitment Line is intended to provice Liqu dity and fLex

ibility for operating requirements in Japan At Decem

ber 31 2009 the Company had no borrow ngs outstand

ing under the Japan Commitment-Line

Conversion of Convertible Debentures

On February 15 2009 the convertibLe debentures became

convertible at the option of the hoLder nto cash and

shares of the Companys common stock at any time prior

to maturity During 2009 hoLders of $7 miLlion of convert

ibLe debentures eLected to convert their holdings into cash

and shares In addition during January and February

2010 hoLders of $148 mil.ion of convertible debentures

eLected to convert their hoLdings into cash and shares

Other Cash Uses

As certain acquired BOl receivables are coLlected durng

2010 it is anticipated that the Company will pay BarcLays

approximateLy $190 milLicn to settLe certain non-interest

bearing notes assumed ir the BGI Transaction

In addition BLackRock Institutional TrList Company
NationaL Association BTC whoLLyowned subsidiary

of the Company expects to purchase approx mateLy $300

miLLion of additionaL FedmmL Reserve Elank stock dur

ng the first quarter of 20 pursuant to its regulatory

requirements

Support of Two Enhanced Cash Funds

In December 2007 BLackRock entered into capital sup

port agreements with the two enhanced cash funds

backed by letters of credit drawn under BLackRocks

existing credit faciLity Pursuant to the apitaL support

agreements BLackRock agreed to make subsequent

capital contributions to the funds to cozer reaLized Losses

up to $100 miLlion related to specified securities heLd

by the funds In December 2008 BLackRocks maximum

potentiaL obLigation under the capitaL support agreements

was reduced to $45 miLLion and in 2009 both capitaL

support agreements were terminated due to the cLosure

of the reLated funds BLackRock provided approximateLy

$4 miLlion of capital contributions to these funds for the

year ended December 31 2009 under the capitaL support

agreements

BLackRock holds debt securities it received in lieu of its

remaining investment in one fund and securities it directLy

purchased from both enhanced cash funds prior to closure

of the funds in 2009 At December 31 2009 the carrying

vaLue of the remaining debt securities was $12 miLLion

In appLying the provisions of ASC 810-1 Consolidation

ASC 810-10 BlackRock concluded toat it was the

primary beneficiary of the two enhanced cash funds at

December 31 2008 which resuLted in consoLidation of the

funds on its consolidated statements of financial cond tion

Barclays Support of Certain Securities Lending Related

Cash Funds

BarcLays has provided capitaL suppcrt agreements to

support certain securit es lending reLated cash man

agement products acquired by BlackRock the Bul

Transaction Pursuant to the terms of the capita upport

agreements Barclays agreed to cocer losses on covered

securities within the products in the aggregate of up to

$2.2 bilLion frorri December 2009 through December

2013 BLackRock and Barclays have procedures ace

to determine Lots events on coverec sec unties wiff in the

products and to ensure support payments from BarcLays

As of February 2010 BarcLays remaining maximum

potential obLigaton in the aggregate unler the capital

suppcirt agreements was $2.2 billioc 31

2009 BLackRock concluded that although these funds

were variabLe interest entities it was not the prim iry

beneficiary of these funds

Capital Activities

On August 2006 BLackRock annocnced that its Board

of Directors had authorized share repurchase program

to purchase an additional 2.1 miLlion shares of BlackRock

common stock Pursudnt to this repurchase program

BlackRock may make repurchases fom irne to me as

market conditions wan-ant in the open market or in pr

vately negohated transactions at the disc on inage

ment The Company repurchased 348oOO shares under

the program in open market transaction ton approx

mateLy $200.9 miLlion through Decernbe 31 2007 and the

Company did not repurchase any adclitio al shares inder

the program during 2008 and 2009 As resuLt the Thm

pany is currently authorized to repurchase an addit nal

751400 shares under its share repurchase program

Net Capital Requirements

The Company is requ red to maintain net apital era

regulated subsidiaries within number lurisdicm ons

which is met in part by retaining each and cash eq eva

Lents in those jurisdictions As mesa Lich subsoli

aries of the Company may be restricted their abisty to

transfer cash between different jurirand to the

parents AdditionaLly transfers of cash between inter

national jurisdctions incLuding repatriation to the United

States may have adverse tax consequences that mId

discourage such transfers

BTC whoLLy-owned subsidiary of the Company
chartered as nationaL bank that dces riot accept ient

deposits and whose powers are mited to trust actvit es

BTC provides investment managemant cervices ii
ad

ng investment advisory and secur ties lending agency

services to institutionaL investors and other clients BTC

is subject to various regulatory capital and liquid asset

requirements admin stered by FedeaL Lranking agencies

At December 2009 the Company wa required

to maintain approximately $857 cc ilLion net cap

at these subsidiaries incLuding BTC an3 in comp

ance with all appLcabLe mgulatory noininium not

capitam requirer ents
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The following table sets forth contractual obligations commitments and contingencies by year of payment at

December 31 2009

Dollaramounts in millions

Contractual obligations and commitments

Short-term borrowingshll

Convertible debentureslC

Long-term borrowings111

2012 notes

2014 notes

2017 notes

2019 notes

Operating leases

Purchase obligations

Investment commitments

Total contractual obligations

and commitments

Contingent obligations

Contingent distribution obligations

Contingent payments related to

business acquisitions

Total contractual obligations commitments and

contingent obligations121

Amounts include principal repayments and interest payments

Long-Term Borrowings

At December 31 2009 long-term borrowings were

$3.2 billion Debt service and repayment requirements

are $140 million in each of 2010 and 2011 $640 million

in 2012 $129 million in 2013 and $1129 million in 2014

2017 Notes

In September 2007 the Company issued $700 million in

aggregate principal amount of 6.25% senior unsecured

notes maturing on September 15 2017 the 2017 NotesL

portion of the net proceeds of the Notes was used to

fund the initial cash payment for the acquisition of the

fund of funds business of Quellos and the remainder was

used for general corporate purposes Interest is payable

semi-annually in arrears on March 15 and September 15

of each year or approximately $44 million per year The

2017 Notes may be redeemed prior to maturity at any

time in whole or in part at the option of the Company at

make-whole redemption price The 2017 Notes were

issued at discount of $6 million which is being amor

tized over the ten-year term

2012 2014 and 2019 Notes

In December 2009 the Company issued $2.5 billion in

aggregate principal amount of unsecured and unsubor

dinated obligations These notes were issued as three

separate series of senior debt securities including

$0.5 billion of 2.25% notes $1.0 billion of 3.50% notes and

$1.0 billion of 5.0% notes maturing in December 2012

2014 and 2019 respectively Net proceeds of this offering

were used to repay borrowings under our commercial

paper program which was used to finance portion of

the BGI Transaction and for general corporate purposes

Interest on these notes of approximately $96 million per

year is payable semi-annually in arrears on June 10

and December 10 of each year beginning June 10 2010

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Thereafter Total

$2234

249

533

1175

44 44 44 44 44 831 1051

50 50 50 50 50 1250 1500

135 121 111 108 90 538 1103

45 26 11 83

70 16 11 37 173 311

303 773 242 1256 2792 8239

242 242 242 242 968

750 759

$3124 $1295 $1015 $484 $1256 $2792 $9966

These notes may be redeemed prior to maturity at any

time in whole or in part at the option of the Company at

make-whole redemption price These notes were

issued collectively at discount of $5 million which

is being amortized over approximately weighted

6.6 year term

Convertible Debentures

In February 2005 the Company issued $250 million

aggregate principal amount of convertible debentures

due in 2035 and bearing interest at rate of 2.625% per

annum Interest payments are approximately $6 million

per year and are payable semi-annually in arrears on

February 15 and August 15 of each year Beginning

in February 2009 the convertible debentures became

convertible at the option of the holders at any time

At December 31 2009 convertible debentures outstand

ing were $243 million and on and after February 20

2010 became callable by the Company at any time fol

lowing not more than 60 but not less than 30 days notice

On the contractual obligations table above the remaining

$243 million principal balance of the convertible deben

tures is assumed although not determined to be fully

repaid in 2010

Short- Term Borrowings

2007 Facility

At December 31 2009 the Company had $200 million

outstanding under the 2007 facility
with an interest rate

of 0.44% and maturity during February 2010 During

February 2010 the Company rolled over $100 million in

borrowings with maturity date in May 2010

Commercial Paper Program

At December 31 2009 BlackRock had approximately

$2 billion of outstandmg CP Notes with weighted

$2234

249

11 11 511

35 35 35 35 1035

2873

As of December 31 20D9 the Company had $225 million of net unrecognized tax benefits Due to the uncertainty of timing and amounts that will ultimately be

paid this amount has been excluded from the table above
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average nterest rate of 0.200 and seighted average

maturity of 23 days Since December31 2009 the Com
pany repaid approximately $1.4 billion of CP Notes with

proceeds from the Long-term note issuances in December

2009 as well as operating cash flow As of March 2010

BlackRock had $596 mill on of outstanding CP Notes with

weighted average interest rate of 0.18/0 and weighted

average maturity of 38 days The Company expects to

repay the remaining balance with operating cash flow

Operating Leases

The Company leases its primary office space under

agreements that currently expire through 2023 In con
nection with certain lease agreements the Company is

responsible for escalation payments The contractual

obligations table above ncludes only cuaranteed mm

mum lease payments for such leases snd does not pro

ject potential escalation cr other lease related payments

These leases are classified as operating leases and

as such are not recorded as liabilities on the consoli

dated statements of financial condit on

In January 2010 the Company entereo nto an agree

ment for lease in London which began in February 2010

and will continue for tvverity five years with the option to

renew for an additional five-year term The lease provides

for total annual base rental payments of approximately

$22 million which is subject to increase on each fifth

anniversary of the beginning of the lease

Purchase Obligations

In the ord nary course of business BlackRock enters

nto contracts or purchase obligations with third par

ties whereby the third parties provide services to or on

behalf of BlackRock Purchase obligations included in the

contractual obligations table above represent executory

contracts which are either non-cancelable or cancelable

with penalty At December 31 2009 he Companys

obligations primarily reflect standard service contracts

for portfolio market data and office re.ated services

Purchase obligations are recorded on he Companys

financial statements when services are provided and

as such obligations for servces not rece ved are not

included in the Company consolidated statement of

financial condition at December 31 2009

Investment/Loan Commitments

At December 31 2009 the Company had $311 million of

various capital commitments to fund sponsored invest

ment funds This amount excludes adoitional commit
ments made by conso.idated funds of funds to underlying

third party funds as third party non-controlling interest

holders have the legal obligation to fund the respec

ye commitments of such funds of funds Generally the

timing of the funding cf these commitments is unknown

Therefore amounts are shown to be paid upon the expi

ration date of the commitment Actual payments could

be made at any time prior to such expiration date and

not called by that dam such comm trnents would

expire These commitments have not been recorded

on the Companys con statements of financial

condition at December 31 2009 The above schedule

does not include potential future commitments approved

by the Companys Captal Committee but which are not

yet Legally binding commitments The Company intends

to make additional capital commitments from time to

time to fund additional investment products for and

with its clients

At December 31 2009 the Company was ommittr to

provide financing of up to $60 mm licn cm March LOlL

to Anthracite Capital Inc Anthr acite specie lv corn

mercial real estate nance company thetis managed

by cubsidary of BlackRock The nan ng ccl item

ized by Ant bra ite pledging its owrcrship ntere

real estate debt investment fund which also mor aged

by BlackRock At Decs rnber 31 2009 $23 mill or of

financing was outsIaning and main outstandir

of March 10 2010 which is past ts fine rniatur ty rite

of March 2010 At December 21 2009 the va uc of

the collateral was estimated to be $12 million Inich

resulted in $21 mil inn reduct on in dire tmrom routed

parties on the Comparys cnrsolidaled iternent finan

cial condition and an equal amount moor ed in per oral

and administration expense in the year nded Decm
ber 31 20019 The Company has in obI cletion to ci

additional amounts to Anthrac te ur dec th facrIrt

The Company continues to evaluste the ollecteb fy

of the outslanding hon owings by reviewirrg the en ying

va ue of the net assets of the cc literal erhch ii rates

each period

As general irtner in certain pr vote equity partrrr

ships the Company receives certa
rr car ned inter

distributions from the partnersh acc rding to tI

provisions of the partnership agreemenlo The orirpany

may from time tot me be required to return all

porticin of such distrib itions to the limited partner in thi

event the limited partners do not ach eco certa otijrr

as specified the various partnership agreement

Contingent Distribution Obligations

BlackRock has entered nto an amended sod restored

global distribution agreement with Merrill Lynch cob oh

requires the Company to make payments to Merri Lynch

contingent upon sales of products and level of assets

under managerrtent ma ntained in certa ri BlackR

products The economic terms nt the agrent co

remain in Effect until January2014 Aft uch tenor

the agreement II renew for one autornetic three year

extension if certain concitions ar setist ed The ave

schecule reflects the Companys esimoired paynnents

for 2010 which due to uncerta nty of as leve and

future additional sales has been held or tant for 011

through 2013

Contingent Payments Related to Business Acquisitions

SSRM Holdings

In January 2005 the Company closed it acquisitior of

SSRM Holdings Inc from MetLife fcr ad i-ted onsider

ation of approximately $265 million in cash and 550000

restricted shares of BlackRock common stock and ertain

addit onal contingent payments In anu cry 2010 the frftt

anniversary of the closing of the SSR Transact on MetLife

was entitled to neceive an additional payrrent of $9 rnil

lion which is expected to be paid March 2010 bused or

the Companys reta ned AUM associated with the MetLife

defined benefit and delmned contrihutior plans

Hue I/cs

In connection with the Qoellos Tnencact ii Duel

entitled to receive two ontingent payne nts sub to

ach eying certain investment adv
soi-y

base and per er

mance fee measures through Dc ember 31 2011 iota np

up to an additional $969 million iii combinatroin otm ash

and stock
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During second quarter 2009 the Company determined

the amount of the first contingent payment to be $219

million of which $1 million was previously paid in

cash during 2008 Of the remaining $208 million during

second quarter 2009 $156 million was paid in cash and

$52 million was paid in common stock or approximately

330000 shares based on price of $1 57.33 per share

The second contingent payment of up to $595 million is

payable in cash in 2011 Quellos may also be entitled to

catch-up payment in 2011 if certain investment advisory

base fee measures are met through 2010 as the value of

the first contingent payment was less than $374 million

portion of the second contingent payment not to exceed

$90 million may be paid to Quellos based on factors

including the continued employment of certain employees

with BLackRock Therefore this portion not to exceed $90

million would be recorded as employee compensation

The contractual obligation table above includes both the

maximum potential remaining payment of $155 million

related to the catch up payment associated with the first

contingent payment and $595 million related to the

second contingent payment

The following items have not been included in the contrac

tual obligations commitments and contingencies table

Compensation and Benefit Obligations

The Company has various compensation and benefit

obligations including bonuses commissions and incen

tive payments payable defined contribution plan match

ing contribution obligations and deferred compensation

arrangements that are excluded from the table above

primarily due to uncertainties in their payout periods

These arrangements are discussed in more detail in

Notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements

beginning on page 71 of this Annual Report Accrued

compensation and benefits at December 31 2009 totaled

$1482 million and included incentive compensation of

$1132 million including $481 million related to BOl

deferred compensation of $1 12 million and other com
pensation and benefits related obligations of $238 mil

Lion Incentive compensation was primarily paid in

the first quarter of 2010 while the deferred compensation

obtigations are payable over periods up to five years

Separate Account Liabilities

The Companys two wholly-owned registered life insur

ance companies in the United Kingdom maintain separate

account assets representing segregated funds held for

purposes of funding individual and group pension con

tracts The net investment income and net realized and

unrealized gains and Losses attributable to these separate

account assets accrue to the contract owners and as

such an offsetting separate account liability is recorded

At December 31 2009 the Company had $1 19.6 biLlion

of assets and offsetting liabilities on the consolidated

statement of financial condition The payment of these

contractual obligations is inherently uncertain and varies

by customer As such these liabilities have been excluded

from the contractual obligations table above

Indemnifications

In many of the Companys contracts including the BOl

MLIM and Quellos Transaction agreements BlackRock

agrees to indemnify third parties under certain circum

stances The terms of the indemnities vary from contract

to contract and the amount of indemnification liability

if any cannot be determined and has not been included

in the table above or recorded in the Companys consoli

dated statement of financial condition at December 31

2009 See further discussion in Note 14 to the consoli

dated financial statements beginning on page 71 of this

Annual Report

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements

in conformity with GAAP requires management to make

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contin

gent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated

financial statements and the reported amounts of rev

enues and expenses during the reporting periods Actual

results could differ significantly from those estimates

Management considers the following critical account

ing policies important to understanding the consolidated

financial statements For summary of these and addi

tional accounting policies as well as recent accounting

developments see Note to the consolidated financial

statements beginning on page 71 of this Annual Report

Consolidation

The accounting method used for the Companys invest

ments is dependent upon the influence the Company has

over its investee For investments where BlackRock can

exert control over the financial and operating policies of

the investee which generally exists if there is 50% or

greater voting interest or if partners or members of cer

tain products do not have substantive rights the investee

is consolidated into BlackRocks financial statements

Pursuant to ASC 810-10 for certain investments where

the risks and rewards of ownership are not directly linked

to voting interests interest entities or VIEs
an investee may be consolidated if BlackRock is con

sidered the primary beneficiary of the VIE The primary

beneficiary of VIE is the party that absorbs majority

of the entitys expected losses receives majority of the

entitys expected residual returns or both as result of

holding variable interests

Significant judgment is required in the determination of

whether the Company is the primary beneficiary of VIE

If the Company together with its related party relation

ships is determined to be the primary beneficiary of

VIE the entity will be consolidated within BlackRocks

consolidated financial statements In order to determine

whether the Company is the primary beneficiary of

VIE management must make significant estimates and

assumptions of probable future cash flows and assign

probabilities to different cash flow scenarios Assump
tions made in such analyses include but are not limited

to market prices of securities market interest rates

potential credit defaults on individual securities or default

rates on portfolio of securities gain realization liquidity

or marketability of certain securities discount rates and

the probability of certain other outcomes

As of December 31 2009 the Company was the primary

beneficiary of one VIE private equity fund of funds

resulting in the consolidation of the fund on its consoli

dated financial statements

The Company as general partner or managing member
of its funds is generally presumed to control funds that

are limited partnerships or limited
liability companies
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Pursuant to ASC 810 20 Control of Partnerships and

Similar Entities ASC 81 0-20 the Company reviews such

nvestment vehicles to determine if such presumption

can be overcome by deterrn ning if other non-affil ated

partners or members of the limited partnership or Limited

iiability company have the substantive ability to dissolve

liquidate the investment vehicle or otnerwise to remove

Bl3ckRock as the general partner or managrig member

ojithout cause based on ample unaffiiated malority

vote or have other substantive part pal rig rights the

investment vehicle is not VIE arid the esumpt or of

control is not overcome the investment eb cle wit he

consolidated into BlackRocks fin incial atemenI

At December 31 2009 md 2008 cc rec of coc Ida

tion of various investment products undir the curie

dat on policies desci bed above thr Con puny id in

following balances cn ii
consolidated at ilement

financ al conditicn

Cash and cash equivalents

nyc 51 mont

Other net assets liabilities

Non controlling interests

Fotal expo to cons elidated investment funds

December 31 2009

$75

463

2733

$258

Do mber .008

$i

491

531 fl

the Company has reta ned the specialimd accounting of

hese nvestment fund pLirsuant to ASC 810- 10

Investments

Equity Method Investments

For equ ty
investment where BlackRock does not control

the investee and where the Company is not the primary

beneficiary of VIE but can exert signi icant influence

iver the financial and opeating policies of the investee

the Company uses the equity method of accounting The

evaluation of whether he Company exerts control or

go ficant influence over l.he financial and operational

policies of its investee requres significant judgment

based on the facts and circumstances surrounding

each individual investment Factors considered in these

eva uations may include the type of nvstment the legal

structure of the investee the terms and structure of the

investment agreement including investor votng or other

ghts the terms of Bhck9ocks advisory agreement or

other agreements with the investee ary influence

BlackRock may have on the governing board of the

nvestee the legal rights of other investors in the entity

pursuant to the funds ope rating documents and the

relationship between EllackRock and oher investors

in the entity

Substantially all of BlackRocks equity method investees

are investment companies which recor2 their underlying

nvestments at fair valje fherefore under the equity

method of accounting BlackRocks share of the investees

underlying net income predominantly represents far

value adjustments in the investments held by the equity

method investees BlakRocks share cf the investees

underlying net income or .oss is based upon the most

currently available information and is recorded as non

operat ng income expense for investments in investment

companies or as otbe revenue for operating or advisory

ornpany investments which are recorded in other assets

nce such operating or advisory companies are cons

ered to be connected to BlackRocks ccre business

At Decembe 31 2000 the Compay had $405 million

and $34 million of equity method investments including

equity method investmenls held for deferred compen
sat on reflected within investments and other assets

respectvely arid at December 31 2008 the Company had

$531 llion and $14 million of equity method investees

reflected investments end other assets respectively

Impairment of Investments

The Companys mnaragem nt per rid cal assesse its

equ ty method va lable-for sale hetd- a-maturity

and cost investrcents for unnail out numstar es

ndicate that maairmeit may exict nec tnrents ai

evaluated using mai ket values wfie -e a/a able tie

expected future cash flaws of the ineeste cut It tOt unit

counted expected Lture cash flows re wer than ihe

Companys cariying va ue of the investnrr an uniw

ment charge is recorded to the rrsalid atact stater ents

of income

When the fa vu ue of rr available far silt sec ii us

lower than ts cost or amort zed ci si value the Jr rpany

evaluates the secLir ty to determ ne hether thu ua

ment considered otner than ti mporry

In making th deter minat on for equdy cc untie

Company considers among other factor lengtn ol

time the securily has been in loss oosit on the esten

to which the securitys market va ue is less than ost

the financial condition and near-tcrrrr pi eupects at rae

securtys issuer and the Company abi it and nh at to

bold toe security for ner od oft me sutticient to IOVv

for reiovery of such unrealized mses If imp-ri merit

is considered other than-temporary charge is re orded

to the consolidted statements of n-orr

In macPg this deter minatuon for iebt sc rut on ti

Company considers if it has the nterrt to sell tl

secur ty is more kely than nut fiat ir entity ii be

required to sell the security befu ecoiry or i.l

not expect to recover the entire amorfiz ost br
of the security the Company dccc not rtend to en Is

security and it is not more kely than not hat the ntity

will be requ red to sell the security but the secur na

suffered credit loss the mpairme it ct argo will fi

separated into the credit loss conipriner which uld be

recorded in earrings arid the rernainunc port on uld bc

recorded in other comprehens ye ni omi-

For the years ended December31 2009 2108 and 10
the Company rccorded other than ternl im

iry
in

ments of $o lion in luding $2 Ilion nrated redit

loss impairments oa dcbt secur tc $5 Lltor $16

million respectively re ated to di-bt sectri ties in DO

available-for sale investments he vvi in reco

in non-operating incorrie experic art II onso inted

statements of income
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The $2 million credit Loss impairment in 2009 was deter

mined by comparing the estimated discounted cash flows

versus the amortized cost for each individual security

The other-than-temporary impairments related to debt

securities were due to adverse credit conditions for debt

instrument that was purchased from an enhanced cash

management fund in which the Company determined

that it did not have the ability to hold the securities for

period of time sufficient to allow for recovery of such

unrealized Losses

Evaluations of securities impairments involves significant

assumptions and management judgments which could

differ from actual results and these differences could

have material impact on the Companys consolidated

statements of income

Fair Value Measurements

BlackRock adopted the appLicabLe provisions of

ASC 820-10 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

ASC 820-1 as of January 2008 which require

among other things enhanced disclosures about assets

and liabilities that are measured and reported at fair

value The provisions of ASC 820-10 establish hierarchy

that prioritizes inputs to valuation techniques used to

measure fair value and requires companies to disclose

the fair value of their financial instruments according

to fair value hierarchy i.e Level and inputs

as defined The fair value hierarchy gives the highest

priority to quoted prices unadjusted in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest prior

ty to unobservable inputs Additionally companies are

required to provide enhanced discLosure regarding instru

ments in the Level category which have inputs to the

valuation techniques that are unobservable and require

significant management judgment including reconcili

ation of the beginning and ending balances separately

for each major category of assets and liabilities

Financial instruments measured and reported at fair

value are classified and disclosed in one of the following

categories

Level Inputs Quoted prices unadjusted in active

markets for identical assets or Liabilities at the report

ing date Level assets include Listed mutual funds

and equities

Level Inputs Quoted prices for similar assets or

liabilities in active markets quoted prices for identicaL

or similar assets or liabilities that are not active and

inputs other than quoted prices that are observable

such as models or other valuation methodologies

Assets that generally are included in this category may

include debt securities short-term floating rate notes

and asset-backed securities securities held within

consolidated hedge funds certain limited partnership

interests in hedge funds in which the valuations for

substantially all of the investments within the fund are

based upon Level or Level inputs restricted public

securities valued at discount as well as over-the-

counter derivatives including interest and inflation rate

swaps and foreign exchange currency contracts that

have inputs to the valuations that can be generally

corroborated by observable market data

Level Inputs Unobservable inputs for the valuation

of the asset or liability which may include non-binding

broker quotes Level assets include investments

for which there is little if any market activity These

inputs require significant management judgment or

estimation Assets included in this category generally

include general and limited partnership interests in

private equity funds funds of private equity funds

real estate funds hedge funds and funds of hedge

funds direct private equity investments held within

consolidated funds and certain held for sale real estate

disposal assets

Level inputs include BlackRock capital accounts for

its partnership interests in various alternative invest

ments BlackRocks $687 million of Level investments

at December 31 2009 primarily include co-investments

in private equity fund of funds and private equity funds

funds of hedge funds as welL as funds that invest in

distressed credit and mortgage securities and real estate

equity products Many of these investees are investment

companies which record their underlying investments

at fair value based on fair value policies established by

management of the underlying fund which could include

BlackRock employees Fair value policies at the under

lying fund generally utilize pricing information from

third party sources however in some instances current

valuation information for illiquid securities or securities

in markets that are not active may not be available from

any third party source or fund management may conclude

that the valuations that are available from third party

sources are not reliable In these instances fund manage
ment may perform model-based analytical valuations

that may be used to value these investments

The Companys assessment of the significance of par

ticular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety

requires judgment and considers factors specific to the

financial instrument

During the year ended December 31 2009 the Company

reclassified approximately $22 million of net investments

out of Level The majority of the net reclassification

was related to an equity method investment for which

the Company determined that the capital account of

the investment fund no longer represented fair value as

determined under fair value methodologies

Changes in value on approximately $932 million of invest

ments will impact the Companys non-operating income

expense approximately $73 million will impact accumu

lated other comprehensive income and the $44 million

remainder are not held at fair value As of December31

2009 changes in fair value of approximately $463 mil

lion of such investments within consolidated sponsored

investment funds will also impact BlackRocks non

controlling interests expense on the consolidated state

ments of income BlackRocks net exposure to changes

in fair value of such consolidated sponsored investment

funds is $258 million

BlackRock reports its investments on GAAP basis

which includes investment balances which are owned

by sponsored investment funds that are deemed Lu

be controlled by BLackRock in accordance with GAAP

and therefore are consolidated even though BlackRock

may not own majority of such funds As result

management reviews its investments on an economic

basis which eliminates the portion of investments that

do not impact BlackRocks book value BlackRocks

management does not advocate that investors consider

such non-GAAP measures in isolation from or as

substitute for financiaL information prepared in accor

dance with GAAP
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The following table represents nvestments measured at fair value on recurring basis at Decor or 709

Goodwill and Intangible Asaets

At December 31 2009 the carrying amounts of the Com
panys goodwilL and intangible assets were as follows

amo into in million Cecember 31 2009

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Indefin te-lived

Management contracts

Trade names/trademarks

Finite-lived net of

accumulated amortization

Management contracts

Other

Total goodwill and intangiole assets

The value of contracts acquired in business acquisit on

manage assets proprietary open- and closed-end

investment funds as well as common trust funds without

specified termination date is classified as an indefinite

lived intangible asset The assignment of indefinite lives

to such investment fund contracts is based upon the

assumption that there is rio foreseeable limit on the

contract period to manage these funds due to the likeli

hood of continued renewal at little or no cost Goodwill

represents the cost of business acquisition in excess of

the fair value of the net assets acquired In accordance

with the applicable provis ons of AGO 350 Intangibles

Goodwill and Other lASC 350 indefin te-lived intan

gible assets and goodwill are not amortized Finite-lived

management contracts are amortized over their remain

ng expected useful lives which at Deember 31 2009

ranged from years to 15 years with weighted average

remaining estimated useful life of 7.2 years

Goodwill

The Company assesses to goodwill for impa rment at

least annually considering such factors as the book value

and the market capitalization of the Company At July31

2009 the impairment test that was per1ormed indicated

no impairment charges were required The Company con

tinues to monitor its book value per share as compared to

closing prices of to common stock for potential indica

tors of impairment At December31 2009 the Companys

common stock closed at 5232.20 which exceeded its

book value of approximately $128.86 per share

/nde and inte-L ived /rtargibi

fhe Company assesse its indef nitt liv manage nerrt

contracts for in pairme nt at least annua on nq

such factors as AUM product prod marq ar

prcjected cash Lows tc determini vahetl the va its

$12570 of each asset are impa red and whether indetir to

life classificat on is st appropriate The fair value

indefinite ved intangible assets is deter ned ba

15163 the discounted valus expected tutor flow Lb

1403 fair value of finite-lived intangible asset reviews at

least annually to determine whether inn umsfani st

which indicate there may be potential orpairmer

1077 In addition if or ch circumstance are on isidered cx of

the Company will perform an impo rment test cci at

undiscounted cash flovv analysis If the a-rt is dot
$30 218

mined to he impaired he difterer between the nk

value of the asset and ts current fair an re is re air izcd

as an expense ir the period wI rb the mpa rroi

determired

Expected future cash owe are tirnatc truing rn ii

variables which require signifira management dg

ment including market nteresf rates cpu ty pr it

credit default ratings discount rates reaer Lie mcli les

inflation rates and AUM growth rates tual result

could differ frorrr these estimate hicfi ould moan

ally impact the impairment concl is on .009

2007 the Company performed impairment tests .t rcb

indicated no impairment charges were ra7uirerl

Company continues to monitor vcir cue furors ii ding

AUM for potential md ators of nr aimni art

In addition management judgmur is reuared ti

estimate the period over wb ch tarrgib assets

contribute to the Companys cash owe and the utter

in which these assets will he con umned change the

remaining useful Ife of any of the assets or the eden

sification of an ndefin to-lived intongib asset fin to

lived intangible asset cu have sign cant imp

on the Companys amcrtization expense which wn
$147 million $146 mlimon and 30 mill on or hit years

e5ecl December 3l 2009 2008 anr 2011 mope

Income Taxes

The Company ad counts ror noon taxe under th as of

and liability methoc prescribed by ASC 741 Defer

tao assets and Iiabi ties are recoqn zed tar the tutirie

tax consequences attributah to ternpor ditte ri ace

Quoted prices Sign ficant

in active other Significant itber

markets for observable unobservable nvestrrrorrts Investments at

identical assets inputs inputs not at December31

Dollar amounts in million Level Level eve fair aalue 2009

Total investments GAAP $193 $84 $687 8o $1049

Net assets for which the Company

does not bear economic

exposure
tI 31 11 163 1205

Net economic investments $162 $73 $524 $85 $844

ret anset iOr vi it to ir ot or te cd

Inc/aide HG kG ck ii ash ii ira equ i/vol ye trrcci atari at art

dated fr rn par imc art fund

mp en of equity meh Imeot wta ii udi iv to rrp arI iea ci ant an

ifaaavo amen irs/i ada cevIh AAP rio rarity elf ovctcc ian to uhf tm

vu mci arcs theref mpa ovas aeon ii anti vu las cm iii

.1
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between the financial statement carrying amount of

existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax

bases using currently enacted tax rates The effect of

change in tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilrties

is recognized in income in the period that includes the

enactment date

BlackRock adopted the applicable provisions of ASC 740

on January 2007 related to uncertainties in income

taxes ASC 740 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in

income taxes recognized in companys financial state

ments ASC 740 prescribes threshold for measurement

and recognition in the financial statements of an asset or

liability resulting from tax position taken or expected to

be taken in an income tax return ASC 740 also provides

guidance on among other things de-recognition of

deferred tax assets and liabilities and interest and penal

ties on uncertain tax positions

The application of ASC 740 requires management to

make estimates of the ranges of possible outcomes

the probability of favorable or unfavorable tax outcomes

and potential interest and penalties related to such

unfavorable outcomes which require significant manage
ment judgment Actual future tax consequences of uncer

tain tax positions may be materially different than the

Companys current estimates At December 31 2009

BlackRock had $285 million of gross unrecognized

tax benefits of which $184 million if recognized

would affect the effective tax rate

In accordance with ASC 740 management is required

to estimate the timing of the recognition of deferred tax

assets and liabilities make assumptions about the future

deductibility of deferred tax assets and assess deferred

tax liabiLities based on enacted tax rates for the appro

priate tax jurisdictions to determine the amount of such

deferred tax assets and liabilities At December31 2009

the Company bad net deferred tax assets of $23 miLlion

and net deferred tax liabilities of approximately $5526

million on the consolidated statements of financial condi

tion Changes in the calculated deferred tax assets and

Liabilities may occur in certain circumstances includ

ing statutory income tax rate changes statutory tax law

changes changes in the anticipated timing of recogni

tion of deferred tax assets and Liabilities or changes

in the structure or tax status of the Company ASC 740

requires the Company to assess whether valuation

allowance should be established against its deferred tax

assets based on consideration of all available evidence

both positive and negative using more likely than not

standard This assessment considers among other mat

ters the nature frequency and severity of recent Losses

forecast of future profitability the duration of statutory

carry back and carry forward periods the Companys

experience with tax attributes expiring unused and tax

planning alternatives

As of December 31 2009 the Company has recorded

deferred tax asset of $163 million for unrealized invest

ment losses however no valuation allowance has been

established because the Company expects to be able to

carry back portion of its unrealized capital losses when

realized hold certain equity method investments which

include fixed income securities over period sufficient

for them to recover their unrealized losses and generate

future capital gains sufficient to offset the unrealized cap
ital Losses Based on the weight of available evidence it

is more likely than not that the deferred tax asset will be

realized However changes in circumstance could cause

the Company to revalue its deferred tax balances with

the resulting change impacting the income statement in

the period of the change Such changes may be material

to the Companys consolidated financial statements See

Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements begin

ning on page
71 of this Annual Report for further details

Further the Company records its income taxes based

upon its estimated income tax
Liability or benefit The

Companys actual tax liability or benefit may differ from

the estimated income tax liability or benefit The Com
pany had current income taxes receivable of approxi

mately $271 million and current income taxes payable of

$96 million at December31 2009

Revenue Recognition

Investment advisory and administration fees are recog

nized as the services are performed Such fees are based

on pre-determined percentages of the market value

of AUM or in the case of certain real estate separate

accounts net operating income generated by the under

Lying properties and are affected by changes in AUM

including market appreciation or depreciation and net

subscriptions or redemptions Investment advisory and

administration fees for investment funds are shown net of

fees waived pursuant to contractual expense Limitations

of the funds or voluntary waivers Certain real estate fees

are earned upon the acquisition or disposition of proper

ties in accordance with applicable investment manage
ment agreements and are recognized at the closing of

the respective real estate transactions

The Company contracts with third parties as well as

related parties for various mutual fund distribution

and shareholder servicing to be performed on behalf of

certain non-U.S funds managed by the Company Such

arrangements generally are priced as portion of the

management fee paid by the fund In certain cases the

fund takes on the primary responsibility for payment for

services such that BlackRock bears no credit risk to the

third party The Company accounts for such retrocession

arrangements in accordance with ASC 605-45 Revenue

RecognitionPrincipal Agent Considerations ASC 605-45
and records ts investment advisory and administration

fees net of retrocessions Retrocessions for the years

ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007 were $611 mil

lion $762 milLion and $780 million respectively The Com
pany has additional contracts for similar services with

third parties which due to the terms of the contracts

are recorded as distribution and servicing costs on the

consolidated statements of income

The Company earns revenue by lending securities on

behalf of clients primariLy to brokerage institutions

Such revenues are accounted for on an accrual basis

The securities Loaned are secured by colLateral in the

form of cash and securities ranging from 102% to 08%

of the value of the loaned securities The net income

earned on the collateral shared between the Company

and the funds or other thrd-party accounts managed

by the Company from which the securities are borrowed

For the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

securities Lending revenue totaled $36 million $25 mil

lion and $27 million respectively and is recorded in

investment advisory administration fees and securities

lending revenue on the consolidated statements

of income
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Investment advisory administration fees and securities

lending revenue are reported together as the fees for

these services are often agreed upon with clients as

bundled fee

The Company may also receive performance fees or

incentive allocations from certain actively managed

investment funds and certain separately managed

accounts which are primarily alternative equity or multi-

asset class products These performance fees generally

are earned upon exceeding specified relative or absolute

investment return thresholds Such tees are recorded

upon completion of the measurement periods which vary

by product or account and could be monthly quarterly

annually or longer For the years ended December 31

2009 2008 and 2007 performance fee revenue totaled

$202 million $177 million and $350 million respectively

In addition the Company may receive carried interest

in the form of an investment capital allocation or cash

from certain alternative investment funds upon exceed

ing performance thresholds However BlackRock may

be required to return all or part of such carried inter

est depending upon performance of these investment

products in future periods Therefore BlackRock records

carried interest subject to such claw-back provisions

as performance fees on its consolidated statements of

income upon the earlier of the termination of the alterna

tive investment fund or when the likelihood of claw-back

is mathematically improbable The Company records

deferred carried interest liability to the extent it receives

cash or capital allocations prior to meeting the revenue

recognition criteria At December 31 2009 and 2008 the

Company had $13 million and $21 million respectively

of deferred carried interest recorded in other liabilities on

the consolidated statements of financial condition The

ultimate recognition of revenue if any for these products

is unknown

Fees earned for BlackRock Solutions which include

advisory services are recorded as services are performed

and are determined using some or all of the follow

ing
methods fixed tees ii percentages of various

attributes of advisory assets under management and

liii performance fees if contractual thresholds are met

Revenue earned on advisory assignments was comprised

of one-time advisory and portfolio structuring fees and

ongoing fees based on AUM of the respective portfolio

assignment For the years ended December 31 2009

2008 and 2007 BlackRoc/ Solutions and advisory revenue

totaled $477 million $393 million and $190 million

respectively

Adjustments to revenue arising from initial estimates

historically have been immaterial since the majority of

BlackRocks investment advisory and administration

revenue is calculated based on the fair value of AUM

and since the Company does not record revenues until

performance thresholds have been exeeded and the

likelihood of claw-back of carried interest is mathemati

cally improbable

Related Party Transactions

See related party transactions discussion in Note 17

to the consolidated financial statements beginning on

page 71 of this Annual Report

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES

ABOUT MARKET RISK

AUM Market Price Risk

BlackRocks investment management revenues are

comprised of fees based on percentage of the

value of AUM and in some cases perfom mance fees

expressed as percentage of the returns realized on

AUM At December 31 2009 the majority of our invest

ment advisory and administration fees were based on

average or period end AUM of the applicable investment

funds or separate accounts Movements in equity market

prices interest rates/credit spreads foreign exchange

rates or all three could cause the value of AUM to

decline which would result in lower investment advisory

and administration fees

Corporate Investments Portfolio Risks

As leading investment management firm BlackRock

devotes significant resources across all of its opera

tions to identifying measuring monitoring managing

and analyzing market and operating risks including the

management and oversight of its own investment port

folio The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted

guideLines for the review of investments to be made by

the Company requiring among other things that all

investments be reviewed by the Companys Capital Com

mittee which consists of senior officers of the Company
and that certain investments may be referred to the Audit

Comnnittee or the Board of Director depending on the

circumstances for approval

In the normal course of its business BlackRock is

exposed to equity market price risk interest rate/credit

spread risk and foreign exchange rate risk associated

with its corporate investments

BlackRock has investments primarily in sponsored

investment products that invest in varety of asset

classes including real estate private equity and hedge

funds Investments generally are made tor co-investment

purposes to establish performance track record to

hedge exposure to certain deferred compensation plans

or for regulatory purposes Currently the Company has

seed capital hedging program in which it enters into

total return swaps to hedge exposure to certain equity

investments At December 31 2009 the outstanding total

return swaps had an aggregate notionai value of approxi

mately $36 million

At December31 2009 approximately $463 million

of BlackRocks total investments wEre maintained in

sponsored investment funds that are deemed to be

controlled by BlackRock in accordance with GAAP and

therefore are consolidated even though BlackRock may

not own majority of such funds Excluding the impact of

investments made to hedge exposue to certain deterred

compensation plans and certain equity investments that

are hedged via the seed capital hedging program the

Companys net economic exposure itc investment

portfolio is as follows



BLACKROCK 51 MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION

amounts in millions

TotaL investments GAAP

Investments heLd by consoLidated sponsored

investment funds

Net exposure to consolidated investment funds

TotaL net economic investments

Deferred compensation investments

Hedged investments

Total net economic investment exposure

The net economic investment exposure of the portfolio

is presented in either the market price or the interest

rate/credit spread risk discLosures below

Market Price Risk

At December 31 2009 the Companys net exposure to

market price risk in its investment portfoLio was approxi

matety $455 miLLion of the Companys net economic

investment exposure Investments that are subject to

market price risk incLude public equity and reaL estate

investments as well as certain hedge funds The Com
pany estimates that 10% adverse change in market

prices would resuLt in decrease of approximateLy

$45.5 miLlion in the carrying vaLue of such investments

Interest Rate/Credit Spread Risk

At December 31 2009 the Company was exposed to

interest-rate risk and credit spread risks as result

of approximateLy $282 miLLion of investments in debt

securities and sponsored investment products that invest

primariLy in debt securities Management considered

hypotheticaL 100 basis point fLuctuation in interest rates

or credit spreads and estimates that the impact of such

fluctuation on these investments in the aggregate wouLd

result in decrease or increase of approximately $5 mil

Lion in the carrying vaLue of such investments

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk

As discussed above the Company invests in sponsored

investment products that invest in variety of asset

cLasses The carrying vaLue of the net economic invest

ment exposure denominated in foreign currencies

primarily the Euro British pound sterling Korean won

and AustraLian doLlars was $89 miLLion 0% adverse

change in foreign exchange rates wouLd resuLt in

approximately $9 million decline in the carrying vaLue

of such investments

RISK FACTORS

As Leading investment management firm risk is an

inherent part of BLackRocks business GLobal markets

by their nature are prone to uncertainty and subject

participants to variety of risks WhiLe BLackRock devotes

significant resources across aLL of its operations to iden

tify measure monitor manage and analyze market and

operating risks BlackRocks business financial condi

tion operating results or non-operating resuLts couLd

be materiaLLy adverseLy affected however by any of the

foLLowing risks

Risks ReLated to BLackRocks Business and Competition

Changes in the value levels of the capital markets or

other asset classes could lead to decline in revenues

and earnings

BlackRocks investment management revenues are

primariLy comprised of fees based on percentage of

the value of AUM and in some cases performance fees

expressed as percentage of the returns earned on AUM

Movements in equity market prices interest rates foreign

exchange rates or all three couLd cause the foLlowing

which wouLd result in Lower investment advisory admin

istration and performance fees or earnings

the vaLue of AUM to decrease

the returns reaLized on AUM to decrease

cLients to withdraw funds in favor of products in

markets that they perceive offer greater opportunity

and that BLackRock does not serve

clients to rebaLance assets away from products

that BlackRock manages into products that it does

not manage

cLients to rebalance assets away from products that

earn higher fees into products with Lower fees and

an impairment to the vaLue of intangibLe assets

and goodwiLL

Poor investment performance could lead to the loss of

clients and decline in revenues and earnings

The Companys management beLieves that investment

performance is one of the most important factors for the

growth and retention of AUM Poor investment perfor

mance relative to appLicabLe portfoLio benchmarks or to

competitors couLd reduce revenues and cause earnings

to decline as result of

existing cLients withdrawing funds in favor of better

performing products which could resuLt in Lower

investment advisory and administration fees

the diminishing abiLity to attract funds from existing

and new clients

the Company earning minimal or no performance

fees and

an impairment to the vaLue of intangibLe assets and

goodwiLL

BlackRock may elect to provide support to its products

from time to time

BLackRock may at its option from time to time support

investment products through capital or credit support

Year ended December31 Variance

2009 2008 Amount 0/

$1049 $1429 $380

4631 728 265 36%

258 310 52 17%

844 1011 167 17%

711 59 12 20%

36 49 13 27%

$737 $903 $166 18%
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See Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations--Liquidity and Capi

tat Resources Such support utilizes capital that would

otherwise be available for other corporate purposes

Losses on such support or failure to have or devote

sufficient capital to support products could have an

adverse impact on revenues and earnirgs

Changes in the value levels of the capital markets or

other asset classes could lead to decline in the value

of investments that BlackRock owns

At December 31 2009 BlackRock held approx mately

$1 billion of investments that are reflected on its state

ment of financial conditior Approximately $0.5 Ilion of

this amount is the result of consolidation of certain spon

sored investment funds BlackRocks eonomic nterest

in these investments is primarily the result of seed

and co-investments in its sponsored investment funds

decline in the prices of stocks or bonds or the value

of real estate or other alternative investments within or

outside the United States could lower the value of these

investments and result in decline of ron-operating

income and increased volatility to earnings

Continued capital losses on investments could have

adverse income tax consequences

The Company may generate realized and unrealized

capital losses on seed investments and co-investments

Realized capital losses may be carried back three years

and carried forward five years and offset against realized

capital gains for federal income tax purposes The Com
pany has unrealized capital losses for vvhich deferred

tax asset has been established In the event such unreal

ized losses are realized the Company may not be able to

offset such losses within the carryback or carryforward

period or from future realized capital gains which case

the deferred tax asset will not be realized The failure to

utilize the deferred tax asset could materially increase

BlackRocks income tax expense

The soundness of other financial instItufions could

adversely affect BlackRock

Financial services institutions are inter-elated as result

of trading clearing counterparty or other relationships

BlackRock and the products and accounts that it man

ages have exposure to many different industries and

counterparties and routinely execute transactions with

counterparties in the financial services industry includ

ing brokers and dealers commercial banks investment

banks mutual and hedge funds and other institutional

clients Many of these transactions expose BlackRock or

the funds and accounts that it manages to credit risk in

the event of default of its counterparty or client There is

no assurance that any such losses would not mater ally

and adversely impact BlackRocks revenues and earnings

The failure or negative performance of products of of her

financial institutions could lead to reduced AUM in similar

products of BlackRock without regard to the performance

of BlackRocks products

The failure or negative performance of products of other

financial institutions could lead to loss of confidence

in similar products of BlackRock without regard to the

performance of BlackRocks products Such negative

contagion could lead to withdrawals redemptions and

liquidity issues in such products and have material

adverse impact on our AUM revenues end earnings

Loss of key employees could lead to te loss of clients and

decline in revenues

The abil ty to attract and retain qualiy personnel con

tributed significantly to BlackRocks groroth and so ecs

and is mportant to attactg and ma
rg

clients rUe

market for qualified fund managers investment or ysts

financial advisers and other professiona is compel

tive There can be no arsurance that the ompany eill

be successful its effc rts to recr Jit and retain required

personnel Loss of key personnel ould Iicve an adverse

effect on the Company

BlackRocks investment advisory con rracts may be

terminated or may not be renewed by clients and

the liquidation of certain funds maybe accelerated

at the option of investors

Separate account and comrninqle tmsl loots or

terminate their investment management nntract

with BlackRock or withdraw fund on sI or note

The Company has from time to time Icr separate

accounts arid could in the future ose ar unts

or significant AUM under various iruLirm fances

as adverse market con itions or poor pe rtor man

Additionally BlickRock manages its U.S mutua nd

and eochanged traded unds under management

tracts with the funds that must be renewed and ap roved

by the funds boards of rectors annuallt majorir ot

the directors of each mutual fund arc ndependerrt Iron

BlackRock Consequently there can be assumor

that the board of directors of each fund rrranage the

Company will approve the funds manogrrrrent niract

each year or will not condition its proval on the terms

of the management contract being rcvrs wa that

adverse to the Company

Further the governing agreements of nr my of the om

panys private investment tunds general pmv do tt at

sub3ect to certa cord tio invetors ii hose

and in some cases independent retor of thos runds

may remove the investment adviser general partner

the equivalent of the fund or liquidate thr fund wrtt out

cause by simple majority vote resulting in redu cc

the management or performance fee an wel the

total carried interest ackRock coo rn

Failure to comply with client contractual requirements

and/or guidelines could result in damage awards against

BlackRock and loss of revenues due to client terminations

When clients reta ackRock to manage assets

provide products or serv ces on tbcir behalf they st ocify

guidel nec or contractual requrree ents hat the imiprny

is required to observe in the prey sion of ts servo

failure to comply with these guideline ci contra tua

requirements could rerult in damaga to BlackRomk

reputcition or in its clients seeking tc rec over los

withdrawing their AUM or terminating thou contra to

any of which could cause the Companys revenuen md

earnings to dec.ine

Competitive fee pressures could reduce revenues and

profit margins

The investment marragement business highly ompeti

tive arid has relatively low barriers to entry To ft tent

that the Company is forced to compete the ba ot

price it may not be able to maintr its urrent tee truc

ture Fee reductions or cx sting or future iow bus rest

could cause revenues and prof marg ic dccl nc
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Performance fees may increase earnings volatility which

could decrease BlackRocks stock price

portion of the Companys revenues is derived from

performance fees on investment and risk management

advisory assignments In most cases performance fees

are based on relative or absoLute investment returns

although in some cases they are based on achieving

specific service standards GeneralLy the Company is

entitled to performance fees only if the returns on the

related portfolios exceed agreed-upon periodic or cumu
Lative return targets If these targets are not exceeded

performance fees for that period wilt not be earned and

if targets are based on cumulative returns the Company

may not earn performance fees in future periods Perfor

mance fees wilL vary from period to period in reLation to

voLatility in investment returns and the timing of revenue

recognition causing earnings to be more voLatile The

voLatiLity in earnings may decrease BLackRocks stock

price Performance fees represented $202 miLlion or

of total revenue for the year ended December31 2009

Additional acquisitions may decrease earnings and harm

the Companys competitive position

BLackRock employs variety of strategies intended to

enhance earnings and expand product offerings in order

to improve profit margins These strategies have incLuded

smaLler-sized Lift-outs of investment teams and acquisi

tions of investment management businesses such as the

MLIM QueLLos and BGI Transactions These strategies

may not be effective and failure to successfuLLy deveLop

and implement these strategies may decrease earn

ings and harm the Companys competitive position in the

investment management industry In the event BlackRock

pursues additional sizeabLe acquisitions it may not be

able to find suitabLe businesses to acquire at acceptabLe

prices and it may not be able to successfuLLy integrate or

realize the intended benefits from such acquisitions

Risks Related to BLackRocks Operations

Failure to maintain adequate infrastructure could impede

BlackRocks productivity and growth

The Companys infrastructure incLuding its technoLogicaL

capacity data centers backup facilities and office space

is vitaL to the competitiveness of its business The faiLure

to maintain an adequate infrastructure commensurate

with the size and scope of its business incLuding any

expansion could impede the Companys productivity and

growth which couLd cause the Compariys earnings or

stock price to decLine

Operating in international markets increases BlackRocks

operational regulatory and other risks

As resuLt of BlackRocks extensive internationaL busi

ness activities the Company faces ncreased operationaL

regulatory reputational and foreign exchange rate risks

The failure of the Companys systems of internaL controL

to properLy mitigate such additional risks or of its operat

ing infrastructure to support such international activities

could resuLt in operationaL faiLures and regulatory fines or

sanctions which couLd cause the Companys earnings or

stock price to decLine

Failure to maintain technological advantage could lead

to loss of clients and decline in revenues

key element to BLackRocks continued success is

the abiLity to maintain technoLogicaL advantage both

in terms of operational efficiency and in providing the

sophisticated risk anaLytics incorporated into BLackRocks

operating systems that support investment advisory and

BlackRock Solutions clients Moreover the Companys

technoLogical and software advantage is dependent on

number of third parties who provide various types of data

The faiLure of these third parties to provide such data

or software could result in operational difficuLties and

adversely impact BLackRocks abiLity to provide services

to its investment advisory and BlackRock Solutions cLients

There can be no assurance that the Company wiLL be able

to maintain this technoLogical advantage or be abLe to

effectiveLy protect and enforce its intelLectuaL property

rights in these systems and processes

Failure to implement effective information security

policies procedures and capabilities could disrupt

operations and cause financial tosses that could result

in decrease in BlackRocks earnings or stock price

BlackRock is dependent on the effectiveness of its

information security poLicies procedures and capabiLi

ties to protect its computer and telecommunications

systems and the data that reside on or are transmitted

through them An externaLLy caused information security

incident such as hacker attack virus or worm or an

internaLLy caused issue such as failure to controL access

to sensitive systems could materiaLly interrupt busi

ness operations or cause discLosure or modification of

sensitive or confidential information and couLd result

in material financiaL Loss regulatory actions breach of

cLient contracts reputationaL harm or LegaL liabiLity

which in turn couLd cause decLine in the Companys

earnings or stock price

The failure of key vendor to BlackRock to fulfill its

obligations could have material adverse effect on

BlackRock and its products

BLackRock depends on number of key vendors for vari

ous fund administration custody and transfer agent roLes

and other operationaL needs The faiLure or inabiLity of

BLackRock to diversify its sources for key services or the

faiLure of any key vendors to fuLfiLL their obLigations couLd

Lead to operationaL issues in certain products which could

result in financiaL losses for the Company and its cLients

The continuing integration of the BGI business

creates risks and uncertainties that could adversely

affect profitability

The BGI business and personnel are in the process of

being integrated with BLackRocks previously existing

business and personneL These transition activities are

compLex and the Company may encounter unexpected

difficulties or incur unexpected costs including

the diversion of managements attention to integration

matters

difficuLties in achieving expected synergies associated

with the transaction

difficuLties in the integration of operations and systems

difficuLties in the assimiLation of empLoyees

chaLlenges in keeping existing cLients and obtaining

new clients incLuding potential conflicts of interest and

cLient imposed concentration Limits on the use of an

investment manager and

chaLlenges in attracting and retaining key personneL
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As resuLt the Company may not be abLe to realize the

expected revenue growth and other benefits that it hopes

to achieve from the transaction In addition BLackRock

may be required to spend additional time or money on

integration that wouLd otherwise be spent on the develop

ment and expansion of its business arid services

Failure to manage risks in operating securities lending

for clients could lead to loss of clients and decline

in revenues and liquidity

The size of BLackRocks securities Lending programs

increased significantLy with the compLetion of the BGI

transaction As part of these programs BLackRock

must manage risks associated with Ii ensuring that

the value of the coLLateral held against the securities on

Loan does not decLine in vaLue or become iLLiquid and

that its nature and vaLue compLies with regulatory

requirements the potentiaL that borrower may not

return security on timeLy basis iiil the potentiaL that

the colLateral held may not be sufficient to repurchase

the loaned security and liv errors in the settlement

of securities daiLy mark-to-market valuations and

collateraL coLLection The faiLure of the Companys

controLs to mitigate these risks could resuLt in financial

Losses for our clients that participate our securities

Lending programs as welL as for the Company

Risks Related to Relationships with

Bank of America/MerriLl Lynch PNC Barclays

and Other InstitutionaL Investors

Merrill Lynch is an important distributor of BlackRocks

products and the Company is therefore subject to risks

associated with the business of Merrill Lynch

Under gLobaL distribution agreement entered into with

MerriLL Lynch MerriLL Lynch provides distribution port

folio administration and servicing for iertain BLackRock

investment management products and services through

its various distribution channeLs The Company may not

be successful in distributing products through MerriLL

Lynch or in distributing its products and services through

other third party distributors If BLack8ock is unabLe to

distribute its products and services sUccessfully or if it

experiences an increase in distribution-related costs

BlackRocks business resuLts of operations or financiaL

condition may be adverseLy affected

Loss of market share with Merrill Lynchs Global

Wealth Investment Management business could

harm operating results

significant portion of BLackRocks revenue has histori

caLly come from AUM generated by MerriLl Lynchs

GLobaL WeaLth Investment Management GWIM
business BLackRocks abiLity to mantain strong

reLationship with GWIM is materiaL to the Companys

future performance If one of the Companys competitors

gains significant additionaL market share within the

GWIM retail channeL at the expense ot BtackRock

then BlackRocks business resuLts of operations or

financiaL condition may be negatively impacted

The failure of Barclays to fulfill its commitments or the

inadequacy of the support provided under certain capital

support agreements in favor of number of securities

lending related cash management funds acquired in

the BGI Transaction could negatively impact such funds

and BlackRock

Barclays has provided capital support agreements to sup

port certain securities Lending related cash management

products acquired by BlackRock in the BGI Transaction

The faiLure of BarcLays to fuLfiLl its obligations under these

agreements or the inadequacy ot tne support provded

couLd cause our cLients to suffer Losses and BLackRock

to suffer reputationaL and other adverse mpacts For

discussion on the captal support agreements see Man-

agement Discussion and AnaLysis-Liquidity and Capital

ResourcesBarcLays Support of Certain Securities Lend

ing Related Cash Funds

For so long as Bank of America/Merrill Lynch PNC and

Barclays maintain certain levels of stock ownership

Bank of America/Merrill Lynch PNC and Barclays will

vote as stockholders in accordance with the recommenda

tion of BlackRocks Board of Directors and certain actions

will require special board approval or the priorapproval

of Bank of America/Merrill Lynch PNC and Barclays

Bank of America/Merrill Lynch PNC and Barclays have

agreed to vote all of their shares in accordance with

the recommendation of BLackRocks Board of Directors

to the extent consistent with the provisions of their

respective stockhoLder agreements with BlackRock

As consequence matters submitted to stockhoLder

vote that require majority or pLuraLity of votes tor

approvaL incLuding eLections of directors will Likely be

approved or disapproved soLely in accordance with the

determinations of the BLackRock Board of Directors so

Long as the shares held by Bank of America/MerrIl Lynch

PNC and Barclays constitute substantial portion of the

outstanding shares This arrangement has the effect

of concentrating control over BtackRock in its Board of

Directors whether or not stockhoLders agree with any

particuLar determination of the Board At December 31

2009 Bank of America/MerrilL Lynch PNC and BarcLays

owned approximately 3.7/o 35.2/a and 4.8/a respectiveLy

of BlackRocks voting common stock

The majority of our stock is held by group of large

shareholders Future sales of our common stock in the

public market by us or our large stockholders could

adversely affect the trading price of our common stock

As of December 31 2009 Bank of America/Merrill Lynch

PNC and BarcLays owned 34.2% 2L.5/D and 19.8% of

our capital stock respectively In ccinnection with the

BGI Transaction 6.4 miLlion shares were soLd to other

institutionaL investors We have entered into registration

rights agreements with Bank of America/MerriLl Lynch

PNC and BarcLays as welL as the institutional inves

tors who purchased shares of BlaccRock capital stock

in connection with the BGI Transacion The registration

rights agreements which include customary piggyback

registration provisions alLow the respective stockholders

to cause us to fiLe one or more registration statements

for the resaLe of their respective shares ot capital stock

and cooperate in certain underwriten ofterings Sales by

us or our Large stockhoLders of substantial number ot

shares of our common stock in the pubLic market pursu

ant to registration rights or otherw se or the perception

that these sales might occur couLd caLise the market

price of our common stock to decli ie
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Legal and Regulatory Risks

BlackRock is subject to extensive regulation in the

United States and internationally

BlackRocks business is subject to extensive regulation

in the United States and around the world See the

discussion under the heading BusinessReguLation

Violation of applicable Laws or regulations could result in

fines temporary or permanent prohibition of the engage

ment in certain activities reputational harm suspensions

of personnel or revocation of their Licenses suspension

or termination of investment adviser or broker-dealer

registrations or other sanctions which could cause the

Companys earnings or stock price to decline

BlackRock may be adversely impacted by legal and

regulatory changes in the United States and internationally

Recent market disruptions have led to numerous pro

posals in the United States and internationally for

changes in the regulation of the financial services indus

try New laws or regulations or changes in enforcement

of existing laws or regulations could adversely impact

the scope or profitability of BlackRocks business activi

ties could require BlackRock to change certain business

practices and could expose BlackRock to additional costs

including increased capital compliance and tax costs as

well as reputational harm Regulatory changes could also

lead to business disruptions could adversely impact the

value of assets in which BlackRock has invested directly

and on behalf of clients and to the extent the regulations

strictly control the activities of financial services firms

could make it more difficult for BlackRock to conduct cer

tain businesses or to distinguish itself from competitors

Failure to comply with the Advisers Act and the

Investment CompanyAct and related regulations

could result in substantial harm to BlackRocks

reputation and results of operations

Certain BlackRock subsidiaries are registered with the

SEC under the Advisers Act and BlackRocks U.S mutual

funds are registered with the SEC under the Invest

ment Company Act The Advisers Act imposes numerous

obligations and fiduciary duties on registered investment

advisers including record-keeping operating and mar

keting requirements disclosure obligations and prohibi

tions on fraudulent activities The Investment Company

Act imposes similarobligations as well as additional

detailed operational requirements on investment advisers

to registered investment companies The failure of any of

BlackRocks subsidiaries to comply with the Advisers Act

or the Investment Company Act could cause the SEC to

institute proceedings and impose sanctions for violations

of either of these acts including censure termination

of an investment advisers registration or prohibition to

serve as adviser to SEC-registered funds and could lead

to litigation by investors in those funds or harm to the

Companys reputation any of which could cause its earn

ings or stock price to decline

Failure to comply with ERISA regulations could result in

penalties and cause the Companys earnings or stock price

to decline

Certain BlackRock subsidiaries are subject to ERISA and

to regulations promulgated thereunder insofar as they

act as fiduciary under ERISA with respect to benefit

plan clients ERISA and applicable provisions of the

Internal Revenue Code impose duties on persons who are

fiduciaries under ERISA prohibit specified transactions

involving ERISA plan clients and provide monetary penal

ties for violations of these prohibitions The failure of

any of the relevant subsidiaries to comply with these

requirements could result in significant penalties that

could reduce the Companys earnings or cause its stock

price to decline

BlackRock is subject to banking regulations that may limit

its business activities

Because the total equity ownership interest of each of

Bank of America and PNC in BtackRock exceeds 25% on

an economic or voting basis BlackRock is deemed to be

non-bank subsidiary of each of Bank of America and

PNC which are both financial holding companies under

the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 as amended

As non-bank subsidiary of Bank of America and PNC
BlackRock is subject to banking regulation including the

supervision and regulation of the Federal Reserve Such

banking regulation limfts the activities and the types of

businesses that BlackRock may conduct The Federal

Reserve has broad enforcement authority over BlackRock

including the power to prohibit BlackRock from conduct

ing any activity that in the Federal Reserves opinion is

unauthorized or constitutes an unsafe or unsound practice

in conducting BlackRocks business and to impose

substantial fines and other penalties for violations Any

failure of either Bank of America or PNC to maintain its

status as financial holding company could result in

substantial limitations on certain BlackRock activities and

its growth In addition BlackRocks trust bank subsidiary

is subject to regulation by the Office of the Comptroller of

the Currency of the United States the OCC parallel in

many respects to that imposed under the Advisers Act and

the Investment Company Act as described above and to

capital requirements established by the 0CC The 0CC has

broad enforcement authority over BlackRocks trust bank

subsidiary Being subject to banking regulation may put

BlackRock at competitive disadvantage because most

of its competitors are not subject to these limitations

Failure to comply with laws and regulations in the

United Kingdom other member states of the European

Union Hong Kong Japan Australia and other non-U.S

jurisdictions in which BlackRock operates could result

in substantial harm to BlackRocks reputation and

results of operations

The Financial Services Authority the FSA regulates

BlackRocks subsidiaries in the United Kingdom Autho

rization by the FSA is required to conduct any financial

services-related business in the United Kingdom under

the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 The FSAs

rules govern firms capital resources requirements

senior management arrangements conduct of business

interaction with clients and systems and controls Breaches

of these rules may result in wide range of disciplinary

actions against the Companys U.K-regulated subsidiaries

In addition these subsidiaries and other European

subsidiaries branches or representative offices must

comply with the pan-European regime established by the

Markets in Financial Instruments Directive which regu

lates the provision of investment services throughout

the European Economic Area as well as the Capital

Requirements Directive which delineates regulatory

capital requirements

In Japan certain BlackRock subsidiaries are subject to the

Financial Instruments and Exchange Law the FIEL and

the Law Concerning Investment Trusts and Investment
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Corporations These Laws are administered and enforced

by the Japanese Financial Services Agency JFSA
which establishes standards for compliance including

capital adequacy and financial soundness requirements

customer protection requirements and conduct of busi

ness rules The JFSA is empowered to conduct adminis

trative proceedings that can result in censure fines the

issuance of cease and desist orders or the suspension

or revocation of registrations and licenses granted under

the FIEL

In Australia BlackRocks subsidiaries are subject to

various Australian federal and state laws and certain

subsidiaries are regulated by the Australian Securi

ties and Investments Commission ASIC and the

Australian Prudential Regulation Authority The ASIC

regulates companies and financial services in Australia

and is responsible for promoting investor creditor and

consumer protection Failure to comply with applicable

law and regulations could result in the cancellation

suspension or variation of the relevant subsidiaries

licenses in Australia

The activities of certain BLackRock subsidiaries in Hong

Kong are subject to the Securities and Futures Ordinance

SF0 which governs the securities and futures

markets and the non-bank retail leveraged foreign

exchange market in Hong Kong The SF0 is administered

by the Securities and Futures Commission SFC
an independent non-Governmental body The relevant

subsidiaries and certain individuals representing them
which conduct business in any of the regulated activities

specified in the SF0 are generally required to be reg

istered or licensed with the SFC and are subject to the

rules codes and guidelines issued by the SFC from time

to time

There are parallel legal and regulatory arrangements

in force in many other non-U.S jurisdictions where

BlackRocks subsidiaries conduct busness or where the

funds and products it manages are orqanized Failure

to comply with laws and regulations in any of these juris

dictions couLd result in substantial harm to BlackRocks

reputation and results of operation

Legal proceedings could adversely affect operating results

and financial condition for particular period

Many aspects of BlackRocks business involve substantial

risks of legal liability The Company and certain of its sub

sidiaries have been named as defendants in various legal

actions including arbitrations class actions and other

litigation arising in connection with BlackRocks activi

ties From time to time BlackRock receives subpoenas or

other requests for information from various U.S and non-

U.S governmental and regulatory authorities in connec

tion with certain industry-wide or other investigations or

proceedings Additionally certain of the investment funds

that the Company manages are subject to lawsuits any

of which could potentially harm the investment returns of

the applicable fund or result in the Company being liable

to the funds for any resulting damages

The legislative and economic effects of climate change

could impact investment strategies and the value of assets

that BtackRock manages

BlackRock invests in variety of sectors on behalf of its

clients To the extent certain of these sectors are nega
tively impacted by climate change or legislation or inter

national agreements related to climate change the value

of and the retLirns realized on the related AUM could

decrease or cause clients to withdraw funds in favor of

products in sectors that BlackRock may not offer

Forward-Looking Statements

This report and other statements tnat BlackRock may

make may contain forward-looking statements within the

mearung of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act

with respect to BlackRocks future linancial or business

performance strategies or expectations Forward-looking

statements are typically identified by words or phrases

such as trend potential opportunity pipehne

believe comfortable expect anticipate current

intention estimate position assume outlook

continue remain maintain sustain seek
achieve and similar expressions or future or condi

tional verbs such as willwould should could

may or similar expressions

BLackRock cautions that forward-looking statements are

subject to numerous assumptions risks and uncertain

ties which change over time Forward-Looking state

ments speak only as of the date they are made and

BlackRock assumes no duty to and does not undertake

to update forward-looking statements Actual results

could differ materially from those anticipated in forward

Looking statements and future results could differ

materially from historical performance

In addition to risk factors previously disclosed in

BlackRocks Securities and Exchan3e Commission

reports and those identifiec elsewhere in this

report the following factors among others could cause

actual results to differ materially from forward-looking

statements or historical performance the introduc

tion withdrawal success and timing of business initia

tives and strategies changes and volatility in politi

cal economic or industry conditions the interest rate

environment foreign exchange rates or financial and

capital markets which could result in changes in demand

for products or services or in the value of assets under

management 13 the relative and absolute investment

performance of BlackRocks investment products the

impact of increased competition the impact of capital

improvement projects the impact of future acquisi

tions or divestitures the unfavorable resolution of

legal proceedings the extent and timing of any share

repurchases the impact extent and timing of techno

logical changes and the adequacy of intellectual property

protection the impact of Legislative and regula

tory actions and reforms and regulatory supervisory or

enforcement actions of government agencies relating to

BlackRock Barclays PLC Bank of America Corporation

Merrill Lynch Co Inc or The PNC Financial Services

Group Inc lU terrorist activities and international hos

tilities which may adversely affect the general economy

domestic and local financial and capital markets specific

industries or BlackRock the ability to attract and

retain highly talented professionals fluctuations in

the carrying value of BlackRocks investments the

impact of changes to tax legislation and generally the

tax position of the Company BlackRocks success

in maintaining the distribution of its products the

impact of BlackRock electing to provide support to its

products from time to time the impact of problems

at other financial institutions or the failure or negative

performance of products at other financial institutions

and the ability of BlackRock to integrate the opera

tions of Barclays Global Investors
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REPORTS ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Managements Report on Internal ControL Over

FinanciaL Reporting

Management of BlackRock Inc the Company is

responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate

internal control over financial reporting Internal control

over financial reporting is defined in Rules 13a-15f and

5d-1 5f under the Securities Exchange Act of 934 as

amended as process designed by or under the super

vision of the Companys principal executive and principal

financial officers or persons performing similar func

tions and effected by the Companys board of directors

management and other personnel to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting

and the preparation of financial statements for external

purposes in accordance with accounting principles gener

ally accepted in the United States of America and includes

those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reason

able detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions

and dispositions of the assets of the Company

provide reasonable assurance that transactions

are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of

America and that receipts and expenditures of the

Company are being made only in accordance with the

authorizations of management and directors of the

Company and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention

or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the Companys assets that could have

material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over

financial reporting can provide only reasonable assurance

with respect to financial statement preparation and pre

sentation Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to

future periods are subject to the risks that controls may

become inadequate because of changes in conditions

or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Corn

panys internal control over financial reporting as of

December31 2009 In making this assessment man

agement used the criteria set forth by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in

Internal Control/n tegrated Framework

On December 2009 BlackRock acquired Barclays

Global Investors business BGI Managements assess

ment of and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal

control over financial reporting did not include review

of certain business process controls of BGI which are

relevant to the Companys 2009 consolidated financial

statements Management did not assess certain aspects

of BGIs internal control over financial reporting as SEC

guidelines permit excluding an acquired business from

such assessment when those acquisitions closed within

the year prior to the date of the financial statements and

time does not permit such assessment The aspects of

BGIs internal control over financial reporting that were

not assessed represent approximately 12% of total assets

at December31 2009 and approximately 7% of revenues

for the year ended December 31 2009

Based on this assessment management concluded that

as of December 31 2009 the Companys internal control

over financial reporting is effective

The Companys independent registered public accounting

firm has issued an attestation report on the effectiveness

of the Companys internal control over financial reporting

This report begins on page 64

March 10 2010
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Report of Independent Registered

Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

BlackRock Inc

We have audited the internal control over financial report

ng of BlackRock Inc and subsidiaries the Company
as of December 31 2009 based on criteria established

in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission As described in Managements Report

on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting manage
ment excluded from its assessment certain aspects

of the internal control over financial reporting of the

Barclays Global Investors business wnich was acquired

on December 2009 and whose financial statements

constitute 2% of total assets and 7% of revenues of the

consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for

the year ended December 31 2009 Accordingly our audit

did not include certain aspects of the internal control

over financial reporting of the Barclays Global Investors

business The Companys management is responsible

for maintaining effective internal control over financial

reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting included in the

accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control

Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express

an opinion on the Companys internal control over finan

cial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stan

dards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether effective internal control over financial report

ing was maintained in all material respects Our audit

included obtaining an understanding of internal control

over financial reporting assessing the risk that material

weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and

operating effectiveness of internal coritrot based on the

assessed risk and performing such olher procedures

as we considered necessary in the circ
We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis

for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting

is process designed by or under the supervision

of the companys principal executive and principal

financial officers or persons performing similar func

tions and effected by the companys board of directors

management and other personnel to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting

and the preparation of financial statements for external

purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles companys internal control over

financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that pertain to the maintenance of records that in

reasonable detail accurately and
fairly

reflect the trans

actions and dispositions of the assets of the company

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of finan

cial statements in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles and that receipts and expendi

tures of the company are being made only in accordance

with authorizations of managemeni and directors of the

company and provide reasonable assurance regarding

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisi

tion use or disposition of the companys assets that

could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control

over financial reporting including tne possibility of

collusion or improper managemeni override of controls

material misstatements due to error or fraud may not

be prevented or detected on timely basis Also projec

tions of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal

control over financial reporting to future periods are

subject to the risk that the controls may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions or that

the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures

may deteriorate

In our opinion the Company maintained in all mate
rial respects effective internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2009 based on the criteria

established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of

the Treadway Commission

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of

the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States the consolidated statement of financial condition

as of December31 2009 and the related consolidated

statements of income comprehensive income changes

in stockholders equity and cash flows for the year then

ended of the Company and our report dated March

2010 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consoli

dated financial statements

New York New York

March 10 2010
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Report of Independent Registered

Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

BlackRock Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated state

ments of financial condition of BlackRock Inc and sub

sidiaries the Company as of December31 2009 and

2008 and the related consolidated statements of income

comprehensive income changes in stockholders equity

and cash flows for each of the three years in the period

ended December 31 2009 These financial statements

are the responsibility of the Companys management

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the finan

cial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the stan

dards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assur

ance about whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatement An audit includes examining on

test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclo

sures in the financial statements An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe

that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion such consolidated financial statements

present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of BlackRock Inc and subsidiaries at Decem

ber 31 2009 and 2008 and the results of their opera

tions and their cash flows for each of the three years in

the period ended December 31 2009 in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of

the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States the Companys internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2009 based on criteria

established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of

the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 10

2010 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Companys

internal control over financial reporting

New York New York

March 10 2010
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

Dollaramounts in millions except per share data December 31

2009 2008

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $4708 $2032
Accounts receivable 1730 901

Due from related parties 189 309

Investments 1049 1429

Separate account assets 119629 2623

Collateral held under securities tending agreements 19335

Deferred mutual fund sates commissions net 103 135

Property and equipment net of accumulated depreciation of

$333 and $259 at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively 445 260

Intangible assets net of accumulated amortization of $466 and $324

at December31 2009 and 2008 respectively 17648 6441

Goodwill 12570 5533
Other assets 588 261

Total assets $177994 $19924

LiabiLities

Accrued compensation and benefits $1482 $826

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 845 545

Due to related parties 439 103

Short-term borrowings 2234 200

Convertible debentures 243 245

Long-term borrowings 3191 697

Separate account liabilities 119629 2623
Collateral

liability
under securities lending agreements 19335

Deferred tax liabilities 5526 1826

Other liabilities 468 299

Total liabilities 153392 7364

Commitments and contingencies Note 14

Temporary equity

Redeemable non-controlling interests 49 266

Permanent equity

BlackRock Inc stockholders equity

Common stock $0.01 par value

Shares authorized 500000000 at December 31 2009 and 2008 Shares issued

62776777 and 118573367 at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively Shares

outstanding 61896236 and 117291110 at December31 2009 and 2008 respectively

Series participating preferred stock $0.01 par value

Shares authorized 20000000 at December 31 2009 and 2008

Shares issued and 12604918 at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

Shares outstanding and 12604918 at December31 2009 and 2008 respectively

Series participating preferred stock $0.01 par value

Shares authorized 150000000 and at December31 2009 and 2008 respectively

Shares issued 112817151 and at December31 2009 and 2008 respectively

Shares outstanding 112817151 and at December31 2009 and 2008 respectively

Series participating preferred stock $0.01 par value

Shares authorized 6000000 and Oat December31 2009 and 2008 respectively
Shares issued 2889467 and at December31 2009 and 2008 respectively

Shares outstanding 2889467 and at December31 2009 arid 2008 respectively

Series participating preferred stock $001 par value

Shares authorized 20000000 and at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

Shares issued 11203442 and Dat December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

Shares outstanding 11203442 and at December31 2009 and 2008 respectively

Additional paid-in capital 22127 10473
Retained earnings 2436 1982
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 96 186
Escrow shares common at cost 868940 and 911266 shares held at

December31 2009 and 2008 respectively 137 143
Treasury stock common at cost 11601 and 370991 shares held at

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively 58

Total BlackRock Inc stockholders equity 26329 12069

Nonredeemable non-controlling interests 224 225

Total permanent equity 26553 12294

Total liabilities temporary equity and permanent equity $177994 $1 9924

See accompanying notes to coasolijated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year ended December31

amounts in millions except per share data 2009 2008 2007

Revenue

Investment advisory administration fees and securities lending revenue

Related parties $2616 $2962 $2640
Other third parties 1210 1295 1397

Investment advisory administration fees and securities lending revenue 3826 4257 4037
Investment advisory performance fees 202 177 350
BlackRock Solutions and advisory 477 393 190
Distribution fees 100 139 123
Other revenue 95 98 145

Total revenue 4700 5064 4845

Expenses

Employee compensation and benefits 1802 1815 1767
Distribution and servicing costs

Related parties 368 495 470
Other third parties 109 96 69

Amortization of deferred mutual fund sales commissions 100 130 108
Direct fund expenses 95 86 80
General and administration 779 665 799

Restructuring charges 22 38

Termination of closed-end fund administration

and servicing arrangements 128

Amortization of intangible assets 147 146 130

Total expenses 3422 3471 3551

Operating income 1278 1593 1294

Non-operating income expense
Net gain Ross on investments 42 573 504

Interest and dividend income 20 65 74

Interest expense 68 69 52

Total non-operating income expense 577 526

Income before income taxes 1272 1016 1820
Income tax expense 375 387 463

Net income 897 629 1357
Less

Net income loss attributable to redeemable non-controlling interests

Net income loss attributable to nonredeemable

non-controlling interests 20 154 362

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc $875 $784 $993

Earnings per share attributable to BlackRock Inc

common stockhoLders

Basic $6.24 $5.86 $7.53

Diluted $6.11 $5.78 $7.37

Cash dividends decLared and paid per share $3.12 $3.12 $2.68

Weighted-average common shares outstanding

Basic 136669164 129543443 128488561
Diluted 139481449 131376517 131378061

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended December31

Dollar amounts in millions 2009 2008 2007

Net income $897 $629 $1357
Other comprehensive income

Change in net unrealized gain loss from

available-for-sale investments net of tax111 15 19
Minimum pension liability adjustment

Foreign currency translation adjustments 74 237 29

Comprehensive income attributabLe to BLackRock Inc $987 $372 $1383

The tax benefit expense on the change in net unrealized gain loss from available-for sale investments was $8 $8 and $2 in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended December31

Dollaramounts in millions 2009 2008 2007

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income $897 $629 $1357

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash

from operating activities

Depreciation and other amort zation 239 236 202

Amortization of deferred mutual fund sates commissions 100 130 108

Stock-based compensation 317 278 188

Deferred income tax expense benefit 89 234 106

Net gains losses on non-trading investments 20 216 442
Purchases of other investments within consolidated funds 41 127 870
Proceeds from sates and maturities of other investments

within consolidated funds 285 342 597

Earnings tosses from equity method investees 30 294 84
Distributions of earnings from equity method investees 18 28 16

Other adjustments 13

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable 223 339 273
Due from related parties 159 112
Deferred mutual fund sates commissions 68 90 72

Investments trading 53 265 45
Other assets 50 115 80
Accrued compensation and benefits 218 237 172

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 165 227 33
Due to related parties 10 138
Other Liabilities 18 51 92

Cash flows from operating activities 1399 1916 587

Cash fLows from investing activities

Purchases of investments 73 417 521
Purchases of assets held for sale 59
Proceeds from sale of disposal group

41

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 260 122 266

Distributions of capital from equity method investees 89 15

Net consolidations deconsolidations of

sponsored investment funds 27 117

Acquisitions net of cash acquired and contingent payments 5755 16 592

Purchases of property and equipment 65 77 111

Cash flows from investing activities 55191 394 1068

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayments of short-term borrowings 400

Proceeds from short-term borrowings 2034 300 300

Repayments of long-term borrowings

Repayments of convertible debt

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 2495 694

Cash dividends paid 422 419 353

Proceeds from stock options exercised 18 24 70

Proceeds from issuance of common stock 2804

Repurchases of common stock 46 46 383

Merrill Lynch capital contribution 25

Net redemptions/distributions paid/subscriptions

received from non-controlling interests holders 255 207 400

Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation 33 59 119

Net borrowings/repayment of borrowings

by consolidated sponsored investment funds 70 203 114

Other financing activities

Cash flows from financing activities 6749 887 959

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

and cash equivalents 47 259 18

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2676 376 496

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 2032 1656 1160

Cash and cash equivalents end of year $4708 $2032 $1656

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Supplemental disclosUre of cash flow information is as follows

Year ended December 31

amounts in millions 2009 2008 2007

Cash paid for

Interest $52 $63 $30

Income taxes $503 $644 $376

Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing transactions is as follows

Year ended December 31

Dollar amounts in millions 2009 2008 2007

Issuance of common stock $767 $136 $179

Issuance of preferred stock $7842

Increase decrease in non-controlling interests

due to net consoLidations/deconsolidations of

sponsored investment funds $7 $280 1295
PNC capital contributions $6 $4 $175

Contingent common stock payment related to

Quellos Transaction $43 $_-

Common stock released from escrow agent

in connection with Queltos Transaction $6 $45
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December31 2009

INTRODUCTION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Business

BLackRock Inc together with its subsidiaries unless the

context otherwise indicates BlackRock or the Com
pany provides diversified investment management and

securities Lending services to institutional clients and to

individual investors through various investment vehicles

Investment management services primarily consist of

the management of fixed income cash management and

equity client accounts the management of number of

open-end and closed-end mutual fund families exchange

traded funds and other non-U.S equivalent retail prod

ucts serving the institutional and retail markets and

the management of other investments funds including

common trusts and alternative funds developed to serve

various customer needs In addition BlackRock provides

market risk management financial markets advisory and

enterprise investment system services to broad base of

clients Financial markets advisory services include valu

ation services relating to illiquid securities dispositions

and workout assignments including long-term portfolio

liquidation assignments risk management and strategic

planning and execution

On October 2007 BlackRock acquired certain assets

and assumed certain liabilities of the fund of funds

business of Quellos Group LLC Quellos for up to

$1719 million the Quellos Transaction BlackRock

paid Quellos $562.5 million in cash and issued 1191785

shares of BlackRock common stock valued at $188 mil

lion The common stock which is held in escrow for up to

three years is available to satisfy certain indemnification

obligations of Quellos under the asset purchase agree

ment The Quellos business was combined with the exist

ing BlackRock fund of funds business and the combined

platform comprises one of the largest fund of funds

platforms in the world

On January 2009 Bank of America Bank of America

acquired Merrill Lynch Co Inc Merrill Lynch In

connection with this transaction BlackRock entered into

exchange agreements with each of Merrill Lynch and The

PNC Financial Services Group Inc PNC pursuant to

which on February 27 2009 MerrilL Lynch and PNC each

exchanged portion of its BlackRock common stock it

held for an equal number of shares of non-voting pre

ferred stock See Note 19 Capital Stock for more details

on these transactions

On December 2009 BlackRock completed its

acquisition of Barclays Global Investors BGI from

Barclays Bank PLC Barclays the BGI Transaction

In exchange for BGI BlackRock paid approximately

$6.65 billion in cash and issued capital stock valued at

$8.53 billion comprised of 3031516 shares of BlackRock

common stock 26888001 shares of BlackRock Series

Participating Preferred Stock and 7647254 shares

of BlackRock Series Participating Preferred Stock to

Barclays See Note Mergers and Acquisitions for

more details on this transaction

On December 31 2009 equity ownership of BlackRock

was as follows

Bank of America/

Merrill Lynch

PNC

Voting

common stock

Ba rc lays

Other

Basis of Presentation

Capital stock

3.7% 34.2%

35.2% 24.5%

4.8% 19.8%

56.3% 21.5%

00.0% 100.0%

These consolidated financial statements have been pre

pared in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States GAAP and include the

accounts of the Company and its controlled subsidiaries

Non-controlling interests include the portion of consoli

dated sponsored investment funds in which the Company

does not have direct equity ownership Significant

accounts and transactions between consolidated entities

have been eliminated

The preparation of financial statements in conformity

with GAAP requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets

and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and

liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during

the reporting periods Actual results could differ from

those estimates
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents primarily consists of cash

money market funds and short-term highly Liquid invest

ments with original maturities at date of purchase of

three months or Less in which the Company is exposed

to market and credit risk Cash and cash equivalent bal

ances that are legally restricted from use by the Company

are recorded in other assets on the consolidated state

ments of financiat condition Cash balances maintained

by consolidated sponsored investment funds are not

considered legally restricted and are included in cash

and cash equivalents on the consolidated statements of

financial condition

Investments

Investments in Debt and Marketable Equity Securities

BlackRock holds debt and marketable equity investments

which pursuant to Accounting Standards Codification

ASC 320-10 InvestmentsDebt and Equity Securities

are classified as trading available-for-sale or held-

to-maturity based on the Companys intent to sell the

security or for debt security the Companys intent and

ability to hold the debt sec.urity to matLirity

Trading securities are those investments which are

purchased principally for the purpose of selling them in

the near term Trading securities are carried at fair value

on the consolidated statements of financial condition with

changes in fair value recorded in non-operating income in

the consolidated statements of income during the period

of the change

Available-for-sale securities are those securities which

are not classified as trading securities or held-to

maturity Availabte-for-sale securities are carried at fair

value on the consolidated statements of financial condition

with changes in fair value recorded in the accumulated

other comprehensive income component of stockholders

equity in the period of the change Upon the disposition of

an available-for-sale security the Company reclassifies

the gain or loss on the security from acumutated other

comprehensive income to non-operating income on the

Companys consolidated statements ot income

Held-to-maturity debt securities are recorded at

amortized cost in the consolidated statements of

financial condition

Equity Method

For equity investments where BlackRcck does not

control the investee and where it is nct the primary

beneficiary of variable interest entity VIE but can

exert significant influence over the financial and operat

ing policies of the investee the Company follows the

equity method of accounting in accordance with ASC 323

InvestmentsEquity Method and Joint Ventures Under the

equity method of accounting BlackRocks share of the

nvestees underlying net income or loss on investment

funds is recorded as net gain loss on investments within

non-operating income expense and as other revenue for

operating or advisory company investments since such

operating or advisory companies are considered to be

connected to BlackRocks core business The net income

of the investee is recorded based upon
the most current

information available at the time which may precede

the date of the statement of financia condition Distribu

tions received from the investment reduce the Companys

investment balance

Cost Method

For equity investments where Blackkock neither controls

nor ha5 significant influence over the investee and which

are non-marketable the investments are accounted for

using the cost method of accounting Under the cost

method dividends received from the investment are

recorded as dividend income within non-operating income

Impairments

The Companys management periodically assesses its

equity method available-for-sale and cost method of

accounting investments for impairment If circumstances

indicate that impairment may exist nvestments are eval

uated using fair values where availeble or the expected

future cash flows of the investment If the undiscounted

expected future cash flows are lower than the Companys

carrying value of the investment an impairment charge

is recorded in non-operating income in the consolidated

statements of income

When the fair value of available-for-sale securities is

lower than its cost the Company evaluates the securities

to determine whether the impairment is considered to be

other-than-temporary

In making this determination for equity securities the

Company considers among other factors the length of

time the security has been in loss position the extent

to which the securitys market value is less than its cost

the financial condition and near-term prospects of the

securitys issuer and the Companys ability and intent to

hold the security for length of time sufficient to allow

for recovery If the impairment is considered other-than-

temporary an impairment charge is recorded in non-

operating income in the consolidated statements of income

In making this determination for debt securities the

Company considers if it has the intent to sell the

security is more likely than not that it will be required

to sell the security before recovery or does not expect

to recover the entire amortized cost basis of the security

If the Company does not intend to sell security and it

is not more likely than not that it will be required to sell

the security but the security has suffered credit loss

the impairment charge is be separated into the credit

loss component which is recorded in earnings and

the remaining portion is recorded ir other compre

hensive income

The Company reviews its collateralized debt obligations

COO investments for impairment quarterly throughout

the term of the investment The Company reviews cash

flow estimates throughout the life of each CDO invest

ment If the net present value of the estimated future

cash flows is lower than the carrying value of the invest

ment and the estimated future cash flows are lower than

the previous estimate of cash flows an impairment is

considered to be other-than-temporary The impairment

loss is recognized based on the excess of the carrying

amount of the investment over its estimated fair value



BLACKROCK 73 NOTES

Consolidation

The accounting method used for the Companys equity

investments is generally dependent upon the influence

the Company has over its investee For investments

where BlackRock can exert control over the financial and

operating policies of the investee which generally exists

if there is 50% or greater voting interest the investee

is consolidated into BlackRocks financial statements

For certain investments where the risks and rewards

of ownership are not directly linked to voting interests

variable interest entities or VIEs an investee may

be consolidated if BlackRock together with its related

party relationships is considered the primary beneficiary

of the investee The primary beneficiary determination

will consider not only BlackRocks equity interest but

the benefits and risks associated with non-equity com

ponents of the Companys relationship with the investee

including capital support agreements debt investment

advisory and other similar arrangements in accordance

with ASC 810-10 Consolidation ASC 810-10

Pursuant to ASC 810-20 Control of Partnerships and

Similar Entities 81 0-20 the Company as general

partner or managing member of its funds generally is

presumed to control funds that are limited partnerships

or limited liability companies that are not deemed to be

VIEs The Company reviews such investment vehicles

to determine if such presumption can be overcome by

determining if third party partners or members of the

Limited partnership or limited
liability company have the

substantive ability to dissolve liquidate the investment

vehicle or otherwise to remove BlackRock as the generaL

partner or managing member without cause or have

other substantive participating rights

Consolidated Sponsored Investment Funds

From time to time the Company will maintain con

trolling interest in sponsored investment fund All of

the underlying investments held by consolidated spon

sored investment funds are carried at fair value with

corresponding changes in the investments fair values

reflected in non-operating income in the Companys

consolidated statements of income In the absence of

publicly available market value fair value for such

underlying investments are estimated in good faith by the

Companys management based on such factors as the

liquidity financial condition and current and projected

operating performance of the investment and in the case

of private investment fund investments the funds net

asset value When the Company no longer controls these

funds due to reduced ownership percentage or other

reasons the funds are deconsolidated and accounted for

under another investment accounting method In addi

tion changes in fair value of certain
illiquid

investments

held by these funds including direct investments in

equity or debt securities of privately held companies and

certain real estate products are recorded based upon the

most current information available at the time which may

precede the date of the statement of financial position

considering any significant changes in the operations of

the investment

Upon consolidation of various sponsored investment

funds on the Companys consolidated statements of

financial condition the Company retains the specialized

accounting principles of the underlying funds pursuant

to ASC 810-10

Separate Account Assets and Liabilities

Two wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company in the

United Kingdom are registered life insurance companies

that maintain separate accounts representing segregated

funds held for purposes of funding individual and group

pension contracts The separate account assets are not

subject to general claims of the creditors of BlackRock

These accounts and the related liabilities are recorded as

separate account assets and separate account liabilities

on the consolidated statements of financial condition

in accordance with the ASC 966-80 Financial Services

Separate Accounts

The net investment income and net realized and unreal

ized gains and losses attributable to separate account

assets supporting individual and group pension contracts

accrue directly to the contract owner and are not reported

as revenue or non-operating income in the consolidated

statements of income Policy administration and manage
ment fees associated with separate account products are

included in investment advisory administration fees and

securities lending revenue in the consolidated statements

of income

ColLateral Assets Held and Liabilities Under

Securities Lending Agreements

The Company facilitates securities lending arrangements

whereby securities held by separate account assets

discussed above are lent to third parties In exchange

the Company receives collateral principaLly cash and

securities ranging from 102% to 08/o of the value of

the securities lent in order to reduce credit risk Under

the Companys securities lending arrangements the

Company can resell or re-pledge the collateral and the

borrower can re-sell or re-pledge the Loaned securities

The securities lending transactions entered into by the

Company are accompanied by an agreement that entitles

and obligates the Company to repurchase or redeem

the transferred securities before their maturity These

transactions are not reported as sales under ASC 860

Transfers and Servicing ASC 860 because of the

obligation of the Company to repurchase the securities

As result the Company records the colLateral received

under these arrangements both cash and non-cash

as its own asset in addition to corresponding liability for

the obligation to return the collateral As with the securi

ties lending collateral discussed above the fair value of

the asset and related obligation to return the collateral

are recorded by the Company At December31 2009 the

fair value of loaned securities held by separate account

assets was approximately $18 billion and the collateral

held under these securities lending agreements was

approximately $1 9.3 billion The fair value of the collat

eral liability approximates the fair value of the collateral

assets and is recorded in collateral Liability under securi

ties lending agreements on the consolidated statements

of financial condition

Deferred MutuaL Fund Sates Commissions

The Company holds the rights to receive certain cash

flows from sponsored mutual funds sold without front

end sales charge back-end load shares The carry

ing value of these deferred mutual fund commissions is

being amortized over periods between one and six years

The Company receives distribution fees from these funds

and contingent deferred sales commissions CDSCs
upon shareholder redemption of certain back-end load
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shares which are recorded within distribution fees on

the consolidated statements of income Upon receipt of

CDSCs the Company records revenue and the remaining

unamortized deferred sales commissicn is expensed

In April 2007 the Company acquired from subsidiary

of PNC certain distribution financing arrangements to

receive certain cash flows from sponsored open-ended

mutual funds sold without front-end sales charge

The fair value of these capitalized assets is amortized

over periods up to six years The Company also acquired

the rights to related distribution fees from these funds

and CDSCs upon shareholder redemption of certain

back-end load shares prior to the end of the contingent

deferred sales period The Company paid $34 million in

exchange for the above rights which is reflected on the

consolidated statement of cash flows as an acquisition

within investing activities

The Company periodically reviews the iarrying value

of deferred mutual fund commission assets to deter

mine whether significant decline in the equity or bond

markets or other events or circumstances indicate that

an impairment in value may have occurred If indicators

of potential impairment exist the Company compares

the carrying value of the asset to the estimated future

net undiscounted cash flows related to the asset If such

assessments indicate that estimated future net undis

counted cash flows will not be sufficient to recover the

recorded carrying value the assets are adjusted to their

estimated fair value No such impairments were recorded

for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 or 2007

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accu

mulated depreciation Depreciation generally is recorded

using the straight-line method over the estimated useful

lives of the various classes of property and equipment

Leasehold improvements are amortized using the

straight-line method over the shorter of the estimated

useful life or the remaining lease term

Software Costs

BlackRock develops variety of risk management
investment analytic and investment system services

for internal use utilizing proprietary software which is

hosted and maintained by BlackRock The Company

follows ASC 350-40 Internal -Use Software ASC 350-40

ASC 350-40 requires the capitalization of certain costs

incurred in connection with developing or obtaining

software for internal use Capitalized software costs

are included within property and equipment on the

consolidated statements of financial condition and are

amortized beginning when the software project is

complete and put into production over the estimated

useful life of the software of three years

GoodwiLL and IntangibLe Assets

Goodwill which represents the excess cost of business

acquisition over the fair value of the net assets acquired

includes assembled workforce Intangible assets are

comprised of indefinite-lived intangible assets and finite-

lived intangible assets The value of contracts to manage

assets in proprietary open-end funds closed-end funds

and collective funds without specified termination date

is classified as an indefinite-lived intangible asset The

assignment of indefinite lives to such contracts is based

upon the assumption that there is no foreseeable limit on

the contract period to manage these funds due to the

likelihood of continued renewal at little or no cost

In addition trade-names/trademarks are considered

indefinite-lived intangibles as they are expected to gener

ate cash flows indefinitely In accordance with ASC 350

IntangiblesGoodwill and Other AGO 350 indefinite-

lived intangible assets and goodwill are not amortized

The value of contracts for separately managed accounts

and certain alternative funds which have finite lives

are amortized over the expected life of the contracts

The Company assesses its goodwill indefinite-lived

management contracts and trade names/trademarks

and finite-lived management contracts for impairment at

least annually In its assessment of goodwill for impair

ment the Company considers such actors as the book

value and market capitalization of the Company In its

assessment of indefinite-lived management contracts

and trade names/trademarks the Company considers

such factors as assets under management product mix

product margins and projected cash flows to determine

whether the values of each asset are impaired and

whether the indefinite-life classification is still appro

priate The fair value of indefinite-lived intangible assets

and goodwill is determined based on the discounted value

of expected future cash flows The fair value of finite-lived

management contracts and their remaining useful life is

reviewed at least annually to determine if circumstances

exist which may indicate potential impairment In addi

tion if circumstances exist the Company will perform

an impairment test using an undiscounted cash flow

analysis If the asset is determined to be impaired the

difference between the book value of the asset and its

current fair value would be recognized as an expense in

the period in which the impairment determined

Change in Method of Applying an Accounting Principle

During 2007 the Company changed the date of its annual

impairment tests for goodwill and indefinite-lived intan

gible assets to July 31St in order to provide additional

time for testing due to the significant increase in these

assets as result of recent acquisitions The Companys

management believes that this change in the method

of applying an accounting principle is preferable under

the circumstances and does not result in adjustments to

the Companys consolidated financial statements when

applied retrospectively nor would it result in the delay

acceleration or avoidance of recording potential future

impairment This change in the method of applying ASC

350 had no impact on the consolidated statements of

income for the year ended December31 2007

The impairment tests performed as of July 31 2009 2008

and 2007 indicated that no impairment charges were

required Due to the capital market events that occurred

in 2007 and 2008 the Company performed an additional

impairment test as of September 30 2008 which aLso

indicated no impairment charges were required

Assets and LiabiLities to be Disposed of by SaLe

In the course of the business of establishing real estate

and other alternative investment funds the Company

may purchase land properties and other assets while

incurring liabilities directly associated with the assets

together disposal group with the intention to sell the

disposal group to sponsored investment funds upon

their launch In accordance with the provisions of

ASC 360-10 Property Plant and Eguipment 360-10

the Company treats these assets and liabilities as
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disposal group measured at the lower of the carrying

amount or fair value Losses are recognized for any initial

or subsequent write-down to fair value and gains are

recognized for any subsequent increase in fair value but

not in excess of the cumulative Loss previously recognized

At December 31 2009 and 2008 the Company held dis

posal group assets of $46 million and $64 million in other

assets and related disposal group liabilities of $45 million

and $63 million of other liabilities respectively on its

consolidated statements of financial condition At Decem

ber 31 2009 and 2008 disposal group liabilities included

approximately $42 million and $58 million of borrow

ings directly associated with the disposal group assets

respectively During the year ended December 31 2009

and 2008 the Company recorded net loss of $2 mil

lion and $14 million respectively within non-operating

income expense on its consolidated statements of

income related to the disposal group respectively

Classification and Measurement of

Redeemable Securities

The provisions of ASC 480-10 Distinguishing Liabilities

from Equity ASC 480-10 require temporary equity

classification for instruments that are currently redeem

able or convertible for cash or other assets at the option

of the holder At December31 2009 and 2008 the

Company determined that $49 million and $266 mil

lion respectively of non-controlling interests related to

certain consolidated sponsored investment funds were

redeemable at the option of the holder for cash or other

assets resulting in temporary equity classification on the

consolidated statements of financial condition

The amount of temporary equity reLated to convertible

instruments is measured as the excess of the amount of

cash required to be exchanged in hypothetical settle

ment as of the balance sheet date over the current

carrying amount of the
liability component During the

year ended December 31 2009 the 2.625% convertible

debentures became convertible at the option of the

holders into cash and shares of the Companys common
stock The amount of cash required to be paid out in

hypothetical settlement exceeded the current carrying

amount of the
Liability component by less than $1 million

Non-Controlling Interests

Non-controlling interests on the consolidated state

ments of income includes the income/Ross allocated to

non-controlling interest holders of the Companys con
solidated sponsored investment funds Non-controlling

interests are not adjusted for taxes for consolidated spon
sored investment funds that are treated as pass-through

entities for tax purposes

Treasury Stock

The Company records common stock purchased for

treasury at cost At the date of subsequent reissuance

the treasury stock account is reduced by the cost of such

stock on the average cost method

Revenue Recognition

Investment Advisory Administration Fees and Securities

Lending Revenue

Investment advisory and administration fees are rec

ognized as the services are performed Such fees are

primarily based on pre-determined percentages of the

market value of the assets under management AUM
or in the case of certain real estate clients net operating

income generated by the underlying properties Invest

ment advisory and administration fees are affected by

changes in AUM including market appreciation or depre

ciation and net subscriptions or redemptions Investment

advisory and administration fees for investment funds are

shown net of fees waived pursuant to contractual expense

limitations of the funds or voluntary waivers Certain real

estate fees are earned upon the acquisition or disposition

of properties in accordance with applicable investment

management agreements and are generally recognized

at the closing of the respective real estate transactions

The Company contracts with third parties and related

parties for various mutual fund distribution and share

holder servicing to be performed on behalf of certain

funds managed by the Company Such arrangements

generally are priced as portion of the management fee

paid by the fund In certain cases the fund takes on the

primary responsibility for payment for services such that

BlackRock bears no credit risk to the third party The

Company accounts for such retrocession arrangements

in accordance with ASC 605-45 Revenue Recognition

PrincipalAgent Considerations ASC 605-45 and has

recorded its management fees net of retrocessions

Retrocessions for the years ended December 31 2009

2008 and 2007 were $61 million $762 million and $780

million respectively and were reflected net in invest

ment advisory administration fees and securities lending

revenue on the consolidated statements of income

The Company also earns securities lending revenue by

lending securities on behalf of clients primarily to bro

kerage institutions Such revenues are accounted for on

an accrual basis The net income earned on the collateral

is shared between the Company and funds or other third-

party accounts managed by the Company from which the

securities are borrowed

Performance Fees

The Company also receives performance fees or an

incentive allocation from alternative investment products

and certain separately managed accounts These perfor

mance fees are earned upon exceeding specified relative

or absolute investment return thresholds Such fees are

recorded upon completion of the measurement period

which varies by product or account

The Company receives carried interest from certain

alternative investments upon exceeding performance

thresholds BlackRock may be required to return all

or part of such carried interest depending upon future

performance of these investments BlackRock records

carried interest subject to such claw-back provisions

as performance fees on its consolidated statements of

income upon the earlier of the termination of the alterna

tive investment fund orwhen the likelihood of claw-back

is mathematically improbable The Company records

deferred carried interest liability to the extent it receives

cash or capital allocations prior to meeting the revenue

recognition criteria At December 31 2009 and 2008 the

Company had $13 million and $21 million respectively

of deferred carried interest recorded in other liabilities on

the consolidated statements of financial condition

BlackRock Solutions and Advisory

BlackRock provides variety of market risk manage
ment investment analytic enterprise investment system
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and financial markets advisory services to financial

institutions pension funds asset managers foundations

consultants mutual fund sponsors real estate invest

ment trusts and government agencies These services

are provided under the brand name BlackRock Solutions

and include wide array of risk management services

valuation of illiquid securities disposition and workouts

strategic planning and execution and enterprise invest

ment system outsourcing for clients Fees earned for

BlackRock Solutions and advisory serv ces are recorded

as services are performed and are determined using

some or all of the following methods fixed fees

percentages of various attributes of advisory AUM and

iii performance fees if contractual thresholds are met

The fees earned for BlackRock Solutions and advisory

services are recorded in BlackRock Solutions and advisory

on the consolidated statements of income

Other Revenue

The Company earns fees for transition management ser

vices comprised of referral fees or agency commissions

from acting as an introducing broker-dealer in buying

and selling securities on behalf of the Companys

customers Commissions and related clearing expenses

related to transition management services are recorded

on trade-date basis as securities transactions occur

and are reflected in other revenue on the consolidated

statements of income

The Company also earns commissions revenue upon the

sale of urut trusts and Class mutual funds Revenue is

recorded at the time of the sale of the product

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company applies the requirements within ASC 718-10

CompensationStock Compensation LASC 718-10 which

establish standards for the accounting for transactions

in which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for

goods or services primarily focusing on the account

ing for transactions in which an entity obtains employee

services in share-based payment transactions Entities

are required to measure the cost of employee services

received in exchange for an award of equity instruments

based on the grant-date fair value of the award The cost

is recognized over the period during which an employee is

required to provide service usually the vesting period in

exchange for the stock award

The Company measures the grant-date fair value of

employee share options and similar instruments using

option-pricing models If an equity award is modified after

the grant date incremental compensation cost is recog

nized in an amount equal to the excess of the fair value

of the modified award over the fair va.ue of the original

award immediately before the modific The grant-

date fair value of restricted stock units is calculated using

the Companys share price on the date of grant Compen
sation cost is recorded by the Company on straight-line

basis over the requisite service period for each separately

vesting portion of the award as if the award is in-substance

multiple awards Awards under the Companys stock-

based compensation plans vest over periods ranging

from one to five years Compensation cost is reduced by

the number of awards expected to be forfeited prior to

vesting Forfeiture estimates generalty are derived using

historical forfeiture information whei-e available and are

reviewed for reasonableness at least annually

The Company amortizes the grant-date fair value uf

stock-based compensation awards marIe to retirement

eligible employees over the required service period Upon

notifiation of retirement the Company acceleratee the

unamortized portion of the award over the contractually-

required retirement notification period if applicablo

The Company pays cash dividend equivaLents that are not

subject to vesting on outstanding restr cted stock units

RSUs granted prior to 2009 ASC 718-10 requires divi

dend equivalents on RSUs expectec to be forfeited to be

included in compensation and benefits expense Dividend

equivalents on shares expected to vest are recorded in

retained earnings

Distribution and Servicing Costs

Distribution and serviiing costs incude payments to third

parties and affiliates including Merrill Lynch and RNC

primarily associated with distribution and servicing of

client investments in certain BLackRock products Distri

bution and servicing costs are expensea when incurred

Direct Fund Expenses

Direct fund expenses which are expen as incurred

consist primarily of third party non- advisory expenses

incurred by BC ckRock reLated to certain funds toi the use

of certain index trademarks reference data for certain

indices custodial services fund adminstration fund

accounting transfer agent services shareholder report

ing services audit and tax services as well as other fund

reLated expenses directly attributable tc the non-udvisory

operations of the fund

Leases

The Company accounts for its operatins leases which

may include escalations in accordance with ASC 8b0- 10

Leases The Company expenses the lease payments

associated with operating leases evenLy during the lease

term including rent-f roe periods beginning on the com

mencement of the lease term

Foreign Exchange

Monetary assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries

having non-US dollar functional currencies are trans

lated at exchange rates at the date of the consolidated

statements of financial condition Non- rrionetary ossets

and habiLities of foreign subsidiaries having non-b

dollar functional currencies are translated at historical

exchange rates Revenues and expanses are translated

at average exchange rates during the period Gains

or losses resulting from translating foreign currency

financial statements into U.S dollars are included in

accumulated other comprehensive income separate

component of stockholders equity on the consolidated

statements of financial condition Gains or losses msult

ing from foreign currency transactions are included in

general and administration expense on the consolidated

statements of income For the years ended December 31

2009 2008 and 2007 the Company recorded gains

losses from toreign currency transactions of mil

lion $50 million and $1 million respectively

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset

and liability method prescribed by ASC 7L0-10 /mome
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Taxes ASC 740-101 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

are recognized for the future tax consequences attribut

able to temporary differences between the financial state

ment carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities

and their respective tax bases using currently enacted

tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are

expected to reverse The effect of change in tax rates on

deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income

in the period that includes the enactment date

Management periodically assesses the recoverability

of its deferred tax assets based upon expected future

earnings taxable income in prior carryback years future

deductibility of the asset changes in applicable tax laws

and other factors management determines that it is

not more likely than not that the deferred tax asset will

be fully recoverable in the future valuation allowance

will be established for the difference between the asset

balance and the amount expected to be recoverable in the

future This allowance will result in charge to income

tax expense on the Companys consolidated statements

of income Further the Company records its income taxes

receivable and payable based upon its estimated income

tax
liability

BlackRock adopted the provisions of ASC 740-10 related

to uncertainty in income taxes on January 2007 ASC

740-10 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income

taxes recognized in companys financial statements

ASC 740-10 prescribes threshold for measurement

and recognition in the financial statements of an asset or

liability resulting from tax position taken or expected to

be taken in an income tax return ASC 740-10 also pro

vides guidance on derecognition classification interest

and penalties accounting in interim periods disclosure

and transition

Excess tax benefits and shortfalls related to stock-based

compensation are recognized as additional paid in capital

and subsequent to the adoption of ASC 740-10 excess

tax benefits are reflected as financing cash flows on the

consolidated statements of cash flows If the Company
does not have additional paid-in capital credits cumula
tive tax benefits recorded to additional paid-in capitalL

the Company will record an expense for any deficit

between the recorded tax benefit and tax return benefit

At December31 2009 BlackRock had excess additional

paid-in capital credits to absorb potential deficits between

recorded tax benefits and tax return benefits

Earnings per Share tEPSi

As result of the retrospective adoption of the new

required provisions within ASC 260-10 Earnings per

Share ASC 260-101 on January 2009 EPS is calcu

lated pursuant to the two-class method as defined in

ASC 260-10 See Accounting Policies Adopted in the Year

Ended December31 2009 below for further informa

tion Basic EPS is calculated by dividing net distributed

and undistributed earnings allocated to common share

holders by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding Diluted EPS includes the determi

nants of basic EPS and in addition reflects the impact

of other potentially dilutive shares

Due to the similarities in terms between BlackRock

series and non-voting participating preferred

stock and the Companys common stock the Company

considers each series of non-voting participating pre

ferred stock to be common stock equivalents for pur

poses of earnings per common share calculations

In accordance with ASC 260-10 shares of the Companys

common stock are not included in basic earnings per

common share until contingencies are resolved and the

shares are released Shares of the Companys common
stock are not included in diluted earnings per common
share unless the contingency has been met assuming

that the contingency period ended on the date of the

consolidated statement of financial condition

Business Segments

The Companys management directs BlackRocks opera
tions as one business the asset management business

As such the Company operates in one business segment

as defined in ASC 280-10 Segment Reporting

Fair VaLue Measurements

BlackRock adopted the applicable provisions of ASC

820-10 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures ASC
820-101 as of January 2008 which require among
other things enhanced disclosures about assets and

liabilities that are measured and reported at fair value

The provisions of ASC 820-10 establish hierarchy that

prioritizes inputs to valuation techniques used to mea
sure fair value and requires companies to disclose the

fair value of their financial instruments according to fair

value hierarchy i.e Level and inputs as defined

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to

quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobserv

able inputs Additionally companies are required to

provide enhanced disclosure regarding instruments in

the Level category which have inputs to the valuation

techniques that are unobservable and require significant

management judgment including reconciliation of the

beginning and ending balances separately for each major

category of assets and liabilities

Financial instruments measured and reported at fair

value are classified and disclosed in one of the following

categories

Level InputsQuoted prices unadjusted in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities at the report

ing date Level assets include listed mutual funds

and equities

Level InputsQuoted prices for similar assets or

liabilities in active markets quoted prices for identical

or similar assets or liabilities that are not active and

inputs other than quoted prices that are observable

such as models or other valuation methodologies

Assets that generally are included in this category may

include debt securities short-term floating rate notes

and asset-backed securities securities held within

consolidated hedge funds certain limited partner

ship interests in hedge funds in which the valuations

for substantially all of the investments within the fund

are based upon Level or Level inputs restricted

public securities valued at discount as well as over

the counter derivatives including interest and inflation

rate swaps and foreign exchange currency contracts

that have inputs to the valuations that can be generally

corroborated by observable market data

Level InputsUnobservable inputs for the valuation

of the asset or liability which may include non-binding

broker quotes Level assets include investments for

which there is little if any market activity These inputs

require significant management judgment or estima

tion Assets included in this category generally include
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general and limited partnership interests in private

equity funds funds of private equity funds real estate

funds hedge funds and funds of hedge funds direct pri

vate equity investments held within consolidated funds

and certain held for sale real estate disposal assets

Level inputs include BlackRock capital accounts for its

partnership interests various alternative investments

including distressed credt hedge funds real estate and

private equity funds which may be adjListed by using the

returns of certain market indices The various partner

ships are investment corripanies which record their

underlying investments at fair value based on fair value

policies established by management of the underlying

fund Fair value policies at the underlying fund generally

require the fund to utilize pricing/vauation informa

tion including independent appraisals from third party

sources however in some instances current valuation

information for illiquid
securities or securities in markets

that are not active may not be availabLe from any
third

party source or fund management may conclude that the

valuations that are available from third party sources are

not reliable In these instances fund management may

perform model-based analytical valuations that may be

used to value these investments

The Companys assessment of the significance of par

ticular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety

requires judgment and considers factors specific to the

financial instrument

Fair Value Option

In February 2007 the Financial Accounting Standards

Board FASB issued new guidance within ASC 825-10

Financial Instruments ASC 825-10 The relevant provi

sions within ASC 825-10 permit entities to choose to

measure eligible financial assets and liabilities at fair

value Unrealized gains and losses on items for which

the fair value option has been elected are reported in

earnings The decision to elect the fair value option is

determined on an instrument by instrument basis must

be applied to an entire instrument and it is irrevocable

once elected Assets and liabilities measured at fair

value pursuant to ASC 825-10 are required to be reported

separateLy in the statement of financial condition from

those instruments measured using another accounting

method The Company adopted the applicable provisions

of ASC 825-10 on January 2008 however elected not

to apply the fair value option to any of its eLigible financial

assets or liabilities at that date Therefore the adoption of

the applicable provision of ASC 825-10 had no impact on

the Companys consolidated financiaL statements As of

December 31 2009 the Company bar not elected the fair

value option for any eligible financial assets or liabilities

however the Company may elect the fair value option

for any future eligible financial assets or liabilities upon

their initial recogniticin

DiscLosure of Fair VaLue

The disclosure requirements within ASC 825-10 require

disclosure of estimated fair values of certain financial

instruments both on and off the consolidated statements

of financial condition For financial instruments recog

nized at fair value in the statement of financial position

the disclosure requirements of ASC 820-10 also apply

The methods and assumptions are set forth below

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at either cost or

amortized cost which approximates fair value due to

their short term maturities Money market funds are

valued through the use of quoted market prices or $1

which is generally the net asset value of these funds

The carrying amounts of receivables accounts payable

and accrued liabilities approximates lair value due to

their short maturities

The fair value of marketable investments is based on

quoted market prices or broker quotes If investments

are not readily marketable fair values are primarily

determined based on net asset values of investments

in limited partnerships/limited Liability companies or by

the Company based on managements assumptions or

estimates taking into consideration financial inlorma

tion of the investment the industry of the investment

or valuation services from third party service providers

At December 31 2009 with the exception of certain

equity method and cost method investments that are

not accounted for under fair value measure the carry

ing value of investments approximated fair value See

Note Fair Value Disclosures for more information

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

ASC 815-10 Derivatives and Hedging 815-10

establishes accounting and reporting standards for deriv

ative instruments incwding certain derivatives embedded

in other contracts and for hedging activities ASC 815-10

generally requires an entity to recognize all derivatives as

either assets or Liabilities in the consolidated statements

of financial condition and to measure those investments

at fair value

The Company does not use derivative financial instru

ments for trading or speculative purpose The Company

uses derivative financial instruments primarily for pur

poses
of hedging exposures to fLuctuations in foreign

currency exchange rates of certain assets and liabili

ties and market exposures for certain investments

The Company may also use derivatives within separate

account assets and liabilities which are segregated

funds held for purposes of funding individual and group

pension contracts or in connection with capital sup

port agreements with affiliated investment companies

In addition certain consolidated sponsored investment

funds may also invest in derivatives as part of their

investment strategy

Changes in the fair value of the Companys derivative

financial instruments are recognized in current earnings

and where appLcablE are offset by the corresponding

gain or loss on the related foreign-denominated assets

or liabilities or hedged investments in the consolidated

statements of income

Reclassifications

Certain items previously reported have been reclassified

to conform to the current year presentation

Recent Accounting Developments

Accounting Policies Adopted in the Year Ended

December31 2009

Non-Controlling Interests

In December 2007 the FASB issued new requirements

within ABC 810-10 which established accounting and

reporting standards for non-controlling interest in

subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of subsidiary and

clarifies that non-controlling interest in subsidiary



BLACKROCK 79 NOTES

is an ownership interest in the consolidated entity that

should be reported as equity separate from the parents

equity in the consolidated financial statements In addi

tion consolidated net income should be adjusted to

include the net income attributed to the non-controlling

interests The Company adopted the applicable guidance

of ASC 810-10 on January 2009 which required retro

spective adoption of the presentation and disclosure

requirements for existing non-controlling interests

All other requirements of ASC 81 0-10 are applied prospec

tively The adoption of the applicable provisions of ASC

810-10 did not impact BlackRocks stockholders equity

on the consolidated statements of financial condition

Convertible Debt Instruments

In May 2008 the FASB issued new requirements within

ASC 470-20 which specify that for convertible debt

instruments that may be settled in cash
upon conversion

issuers of such instruments should separately account

for the liability and equity components in the statement

of financial condition The excess of the initial proceeds

of the convertible debt instrument over the amount allo

cated to the liability component creates debt discount

which should be amortized as interest expense over the

expected life of the Liability The applicable provisions of

ASC 470-20 are effective for financial statements issued

for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after

December 15 2008 and are to be applied retrospectively

At December 31 2009 and 2008 the Company had $243

million and $249 million principal amount of convertible

debentures outstanding respectively which were issued

in February 2005 bear interest at rate of 2.625% and

are due in 2035 The Company retrospectively adopted

the required paragraphs of ASC 470-20 on January

2009 resulting in total cumulative impact of $9 million

reduction to retained earnings at December 31 2008

The effective borrowing rate for nonconvertible debt at

the time of issuance of the 2.625% convertible deben

tures was estimated to be 4.3% which resulted in $18

million of the $250 million aggregate principal amount

of the debentures issued or $12 million after tax being

attributable to equity At December 31 2009 and 2008

less than $1 million and $4 million respectively of the

initial $18 million debt discount remained unamortized

and was amortized to the first put date of the convertible

debentures in February 2010 As result the Company

recognized approximately $4 million and $3 million of

additional interest expense in each of the years ended

December31 2009 and 2008 respectively

Earnings Per Share

In June 2008 the FASB issued new requirements within

ASC 260-10 which specify that all outstanding unvested

share-based payment awards that contain rights to

nonforfeitable dividends or dividend equivalents are con
sidered participating securities and should be included

in the computation of EPS pursuant to the two-class

method as defined in ASC 260-10 The new requirements

of ASC 260-10 are effective for fiscal years beginning after

December 15 2008 and interim periods within those

fiscal years All prior period EPS data presented must

be adjusted retrospectively Prior to 2009 the Company

awarded restricted stock and restricted stock units with

nonforfeitable dividend equivalent rights Restricted stock

and restricted stock units awarded in 2009 are not con

sidered participating securities as dividend equivalents

are subject to forfeiture prior to vesting of the award

The Company adopted the new requirements of ASC 260-10

on January 12009

The impact of retrospective adoption of ASC 470-20 and

ASC 260-10 to diluted EPS for common shares in 2007

and 2008 was decline of $0.16 and $0.13 respectively

Fair Value Measurements

In February 2008 the FASB issued new guidance within

ASC 820-10 which delayed the effective date of the

application of ASC 820-10 to fiscal years beginning after

November 15 2008 for all non-financial assets and

liabilities recognized or disclosed at fair value in the

financial statements on non-recurring basis Non

recurring non-financial assets and liabilities include

goodwill indefinite-lived and finite-lived intangible assets

and long-lived assets each measured at fair value for

purposes of impairment testing asset retirement and

guarantee obligations initially measured at fair value

and those assets and liabilities initially measured at fair

value in business combination or asset purchase The

adoption of the provisions of ASC 820-10 on January

2009 for non-recurring non-financial assets and liabilities

did not have material impact on the Companys

consolidated financial statements

Fair Value Measurements Disclosures and

Impairments of Securities

In April 2009 the FASB issued the following three provi

sions intended to provide additional application guidance

and enhance disclosures regarding fair value measure

ments and impairments of securities

The new provisions issued within ASC 320-10 Invest

mentsDebt and Equity Securities ASC 320-1

amend current other-than-temporary impairment

guidance in GAAP for debt securities to make the guid

ance more operational and to improve the presentation

and disclosure of other-than-temporary impairments

on debt and equity securities in the financial state

ments Under ASC 320-10 an other-than-temporary

impairment for debt securities is triggered if an

entity has the intent to sell the security it is more

likely than not that an entity will be required to sell

the security before recovery or an entity does not

expect to recover the entire amortized cost basis of the

security If an entity does not intend to sell security

and it is not more likely than not that the entity will be

required to sell the security but the security has suf

fered credit loss the impairment charge will be sepa

rated into the credit loss component which is recorded

in earnings and the remaining portion is recorded in

other comprehensive income ASC 320-10 does not

amend existing recognition and measurement guid

ance related to other-than-temporary impairments of

equity securities

The new provisions issued within ASC 820-10 Fair

Value Measurements and Disclosures ASC 820-10

provide additional guidance on determining when the

volume and level of activity for an asset or liability

has significantly decreased and includes guidance on

identifying circumstances that indicate transaction is

not orderly

The new provisions issued within ASC 825-10 Financial

Instruments ASC 825-10 amend the existing disclo

sure guidance about fair value of financial instruments

to expand the required qualitative and quantitative
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disclosures about fair value of financial instruments to

interim reporting periods for publicly traded entities

In addition the applicable guidance within ASC 825-10

amends ASC 270-10 Interim Reporting to require those

disclosUres in summarized financial information at

interim reporting periods

The adoption of all three of the above new provisions as

of April 2009 did not materially impact the Companys

consolidated financial statements

Business Combinations

In December 2007 the FASB issued new guidance within

ASC 805 Business Combinations ASC 805 and in April

2009 the FASB issued additional guidance within ASC

805 Accounting forAssets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed

in Business Combination ThatArise From Contingencies

ASC 805 retains the fundamental requirements that the

acquisition method of accounting the purchase method

be used for all business combinations and for an acquirer

to be identified for each business combination The new

provisions within ASC 805 further define the acquirer

establish the acquisition date and broaden the scope of

transactions that qualify as business combinations

Additionally the new requirements within ASC 805

change the fair value measurement provisions for assets

acquired liabilities assumed and any non-controlling

interest in the acquiree provide guidance for the mea

surement of fair value in step acquisition change the

requirements for recognizing assets acquired and liabili

ties assumed subject to contingencies provide guidance

on recognition and measurement of contingent consid

eration and require that acquisition-related costs of the

acquirer generally be expensed as incurred Reversal

of valuation allowances related to acquired deferred tax

assets and changes to liabilities for un-ecognized tax

benefits related to tax positions assumed in business

combinations that settled prior to the adoption of the new

requirements within ASC 805 affected goodwill If such

valuation allowances reverse or liabilities change subse

quent to the adoption of the new requirements within

ASC 805 such changes will affect the income tax provi

sion in the period of reversal or change

The new requirements within ASC 805 apply prospectively

to business combinations for which the acquisition date

is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting

period beginning on or after December 15 2008 The

Company adopted the new requirements within ASC 805

on January 2009 The adoption of the new requirements

within ASC 805 impacted the Companys consolidated

financial statements for the year ended December 31

2009 as the Company completed its acquisition of BGI

during 2009 and certain acquisition related costs in con

nection with the BGI Transaction have been expensed

as incurred See Note Mergers and Acquisitions for

further discussion

UsefuL Life of IntangibLe Assets

In April 2008 the FASB issued additional guidance

within ASC 350-30 General Intangibles Other than

Goodwill ASC 350-30 The required provisions within

ASC 350-30 amend the factors that should be considered

in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to

determine the useful life of recognized intangible asset

under the prior guidance within ASC 350 Intangibles

Goodwill and Other ASC 350-30 requires that an entity

shall consider its own experience in renewing similar

arrangements ASC 350-30 is intended to improve the

consistency between the useful life of an intangible asset

determined under prior requirements within ASC 350 and

the period of expected cash flows used to measure the

fair value of the asset under ASC 805 and other GAAP

The new requirements of ASC 350-30 are effective for

financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning

after December 15 2008 and interim periods within

those fiscal years The adoption on January 2009 of the

new requirements within ASC 350-3D did not materially

impact the Companys consolidated financial statements

DiscLosures about Derivative Instruments

In March 2008 the FASB issued new guidance within

ASC 815-10 ASC 81 5-1 expands the disclosure require

ments for derivative instruments and hedging activities

ASC 815-10 specifically requires enhanced disclosures

addressing how and why an entity uses derivative

instruments 21 how derivative instruments and related

hedged items are accounted for under ASC 815 and its

related interpretations and how derivative instruments

and related hedged items affect an entity financiai posi

tion financial performance and cash flows ASC 815-10

is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning

after November 15 2008 The adoption on January

2009 of the additional disclosure requirements of

ASC 815-10 did not materially impact the Companys

consolidated financial statements

Meaning of Indexed to Companys Own Stock

In June 2008 the FASB issued new guidance within

ASC 81 5-40 Derivatives and Hedging Contracts in Entitys

Own Equity ASC 81 5-40 The new requirements of

ASC 815-40 provide guidance for delermining whether an

equity-linked financial instrument dir embedded feature

is indexed to an entitys own stock To meet the definition

of indexed to its own stock an instruments contingent

exercise provisions must not be based on an observable

market other than the market for the issuers stock

and its settlement amciunt must be oased only on those

variables that are inputs to the fair value of fixed

for-fHedforward or option on an entitys equity shares

The adoption on January 2009 of the required provi

sions of ASC 815-40 did not change the classification

or measurement of the Companys financial instruments

Subsequent Events

In May 2009 the FASB issued ASC 855-10 Subsequent

Events ASC 855-10 which provides guidance to estab

lish general standards of accounting for and disclosures

of events that occur after the balance sheet date but

before financial statements are issued or are available

to be issued ASC 855-10 is effective for interim or fiscal

periods ending after June 15 2009 The Company adopted

ASC 855-10 on June 30 2009 The adoption of ASC 855-10

did not materially impact the Companys consolidated

financial statements

In February 2010 the FASB issued ASU 2010-09 Sub

sequent Events ASU 2010-09 effective immediately

which amends ASC 855-1010 clarify that an SEC filer is

not required to disclose the date through which subse

quent events have been evaluated in the financial state

ments The adoption of ASU 2010-09 did riot materially

impact the Companys consolidated financial statements

See Note 25 Subsequent Events for further discussion
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The FASB Accounting Standards Codification

In June 2009 the FASB issued Accounting Standards

Update ASU No 2009-1 Amendments Based on SFAS

No 168 The FASBAccounting Standards Codification and

the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

replacement of FASB Statement No 162 ASU 2009-1

ASU 2009-1 established the FASB ASC as the single

source of authoritative GAAP to be applied by nongov

ernmental entities Rules and interpretive releases of

the SEC under authority of federal securities taws are

also sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants

ALL other accounting Literature not included in the ASC

will become nonauthoritative ASU 2009-1 is effective

for financial statements for interim or annual reporting

periods ending after September 15 2009 The Company

adopted ASU 2009-1 on September 30 2009 As ASU

2009-1 does not change GAAP its adoption did not impact

amounts recorded or disclosures required as part of the

Companys consolidated financial statements

Measuring Fair VaLue of Certain ALternative Investments

In September 2009 the FASB issued ASU 2009-12 Invest

ments in Certain Entities That Calculate Net Asset Value per

Share or Its Equivalent ASU 2009-12 ASU 2009-12

amends ASC 820-10 to provide guidance on measur

ing the fair value of certain alternative investments The

amendments in this ASU permit as practical expedi

ent reporting entity to use the investments net asset

value per share NAy to measure the fair value of the

investment provided that the NAV is calculated as of the

reporting entitys measurement date ASU 2009-12 also

requires enhanced disclosures by major investment

category about the attributes of the investments within

the scope such as the nature of the restrictions the

amount of the unfunded commitments and the descrip

tion of the investment strategies of the investees ASU

2009-12 is effective for the interim and annual reporting

periods ending after December 15 2009 In the period of

adoption an entity must disclose any change in valuation

technique and related inputs and quantify the total effect

if practicable The adoption of the additional disclosure

requirements of ASU 2009-12 on December 31 2009

did not materially impact the Companys consolidated

financial statements See Note Fair Value Disclosures

for more information

Recent Accounting DeveLopments

New Consolidation Guidance for Variable Interest Entities

In June 2009 the FASB issued new requirements within

ASC 810-10 which amend the consolidation guidance for

variable interest entities under FIN 46R The amend

ments include the elimination of the exemption from

consolidation for qualifying special purpose entities

new approach for determining the primary benefi

ciary of VIE which requires that the primary beneficiary

have both the power to control the most significant

activities of the VIE and ii either the obligation to absorb

losses or the right to receive benefits that could poten

tially be significant to the VIE and the requirement to

continually reassess the primary beneficiary of VIE

In February 2010 the FASB issued ASU 2010-10 Amend

ments to Statement 167 for Certain Investment Funds

ASU 201 0-1 The ASU will indefinitely defer the

application of SFAS No 167 Amendments to FASB Inter

pretation No 46R for reporting enterprises interest in

an entity if all of the following conditions are met

the entity either has all of the attributes of an invest

ment company as specified in ASC 946-10 Financial

ServicesInvestment Companies ASC 946-10 it

is industry practice to apply measurement principles

for financial reporting that are consistent with those in

ASC 946-10 the entity is not securitization entity

an asset-backed financing entity or an entity formerLy

considered qualifying special-purpose entity and the

reporting enterprise does not have an obligation to fund

Losses significant to the entity

In addition the deferral applies to reporting entitys

interest in an entity that is required to comply or operate

in accordance with the requirement of Rule 2a-7 of the

Investment Company Act of 1940 for registered money

market funds

The amendments in this ASU clarify that for entities that

do not qualify for the proposed deferral related parties

should be considered when evaluating each of the criteria

for determining whether decision maker or service

provider fee represents variable interest

An entity that qualifies for the deferral will continue to be

assessed for consolidation under the overall guidance on

variable interest entities in ASC 810-10 before its amend

ment by SEAS No 167 or other applicable consolidation

guidance including guidance for the consolidation of

partnerships in ASC 810-20 The amendment does not

defer the disclosure requirements in SF45 No 167

The new provisions of ASC 810-10 and ASU 201 0-1 Dare

both effective for the beginning of an entitys first annual

reporting period that begins after November 15 2009 for

interim periods within that first annual reporting period

and for interim and annual reporting periods thereafter

The Company does not expect the adoption of new provi

sions of ASC 810-10 and ASU 2009-17 to impact net

income attributable to BlackRock Inc or its stockholders

equity however it is currently evaluating the impact to

its first quarter 2010 consolidated financial statements

as result of consolidating the assets and liabilities and

net income loss of certain VIEs in addition to cor

responding non-controlling interest
liability or asset and

allocation of net income loss to non-controlling interests

primarily related to collateralized debt obligations that it

manages which do not qualify for the deferral

Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements

In January 2009 the FASB issued ASU 201 0-06 Fair

Value Measurements and Disclosures ASU 201 0-06
ASU 2010-06 amends ASC 820-10 to require new disclo

sures with regards to transfers into and out of Levels

and and separate disclosures about purchases sales

issuances and other settlements within the Level fair

value rollforward ASU 2010-06 also clarifies existing fair

value disclosures about the appropriate level of disaggre

gation and about inputs and valuation techniques for both

recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements

that fall in either Level or Level The new disclosures

and clarifications of existing disclosures are effective

for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after

December 15 2009 except for the disclosures about

purchases sales and settlements in the rollforward of

activity in Level fair value measurements which are

effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15

2010 and for interim periods within those fiscal years

The adoption of the additional disclosure requirements

of ASU 2010-06 are not expected to materially impact

BlackRocks consolidated financial statements
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RG ERS AND ACQU IS 1110 NS

Barclays Global Investors

On December 2009 BlackRock acqLired from Barclays

all of the outstanding equity interests of subsidiaries of

Barclays conducting the investment management busi

ness of BGI in exchange for an aggregate of 37566771

shares of BlackRock common stock and participating

preferred stock subject to certain adjustments and

$6.65 billion in cash subject to certain adjustments

The fair value of the 37566771 shares at closing on

December 2009 was $8.53 billion at price of

$227.08 per share the closing price of BLackRocks

common stock on November 30 2009

The acquisition of BOI brings together market Leaders

in active and index strategies to create the preeminent

asset management firm which manages investments

on behalf of institutional and retail investors worldwide

The combined firms products include passively and

actively managed equities and fixed income cash

management and alternatives and will offer clients

diversified access to global markets through separate

accounts common trust tunds mutual funds exchange-

traded funds hedge fund and closed-end funds

The shares of capital stock issued to Barclays pursuant

to the BGI Transaction represented aporoximately

/4.8% of the outstanding shares of common stock and

approximately an aggregate l9.8% economic interest

in BlackRock immediately following the closing of the

transaction Barclays generally is resticted from

purchasing additional shares of BlackRock common

or preferred stock if it would result in 8arclays holding

more than 4.9/o of the total voting power of BlackRock or

more than 19.9% of the total capital stock of BlackRock

on fully diluted basis In addition Bamlays is restricted

from transferring 100% of its BlackRock capital stock for

one year after closing and 50% of its BlackRock capital

stock for the second year without the prior written

consent of BlackRock

The cash portion of the purchase price was funded

through combination of existing cash issuance of short-

term debt backed by short-term credit
facility

which

was arranged by Barclays related party and subse

quently terminated upon the issuance of long-term notes

in December 2009 and proceeds from the private issu

ance of 991/4652 capital shares at price of $140.60 to

group of institutional investors including PNC

The BGI Transaction was accounted for under the acquIsi-

tion method of accounting in accordance with ASC 805

Accordingly the purchase price was allocated to the

assets acquired and liabilities and non-controlling inter

ests assumed based upon their estimated fair values at

the date of the transaction Substantially all of the excess

of the final purchase price over the fair value of assets

acquired and liabilities arid non-controlling interests

assumed was recorded as non-deductible goodwill

summary of the recorded fair values of the assets

acquired and Labilities and non-controlling interests

assumed on December 2009 in this acquisition

is as follows

Estimate of

in mit/ions fair value

Accounts receivable

Investments

Separate account assets

Collateral held under securities

tending agreements

Property and equipment

Finite-lived intangible management

contracts assets

Indefinite-lived intangible management

contracts assets

Trade names/trademarks

indefinite-lived intangible assets

Goodwill

Other assets

Separate account liabilities

Collateral liability
under securities

lending agreements

Deferred tax liabilities

Accrued compensation and benefit

Other liabilities assumed

Non-controlling interests assumed

Total consideration

net of cash acquired

Summary of consideration net of cash acquired

Cash paid

Cash acquired

Capital stock at fair value

Total cash and stock consideration $14126

Finite-life management contracts have weighted

average estimated useful life of approximately 10 years

and are amortized on the straight-line method

The fair value of BGI finite-lived management contracts

consists primarily of separate accounts and custom

segregated funds and the fair vaLue of EIGI indefinite-lived

management contracts consists primarily of exchange

traded funds common and collective trusts and open-

end funds

The fair value of acquired trade names/trademarks

was determined using royalty rate based primarily on

normalized marketing and promotion expenditures to

develop and support the brands globally

The purchase accounting adjustments are preliminary

and subject to revision At this time except for the items

noted below the Company does not expect material

changes to the value of the assets acquired or liabilities

assumed in conjunction with the transaction Specifically

the following assets and liabilities are subject to change

Intangible management contracts were valued using

preliminary December 2009 AIiM and assumptions

The vaLue of such contracts may change primarily as

the result of updates to AUM and those assumptions

As management receives additional nformation

deferred income tax assets and liabilities and other

assets due rom and to related parties and other

liabilities may be adjusted as the result of changes in

purchase accounting and applicable tax rates

$593

125

16301

23498

205

163

9785

1403

6842

366

123498

885

660

112

$14126

$6650

8531
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The following unaudited pro forma combined financial

information does not purport to be indicative of actual

results of BlackRocks operations had the BOl Trans

action actually been consummated at the beginning of

each period presented Certain one-time charges that

are directly attributable to the BGI Transaction have

been eliminated The pro forma combined provision for

income taxes may not represent the amount that would

have resulted had BlackRock and BGI filed consolidated

income tax returns during the years presented

Unaudited

Dollar amounts in millions except per share data

Total revenue

Operating income

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc

Earnings per share attributable to BlackRock Inc common stockholders

Basic

Diluted

For the year ended

December31

20091hJ 2008

BlackRock and BGI costs included as pro forma

adjustments

For purposes of the pro forma financial information

above the following costs have been removed as they are

deemed to be one-time costs directly attributable to the

BGI Transaction

BlackRock results included $183 million of BlackRock

pre-merger transaction and integration costs in

conjunction with the BGI Transaction such as advisory

fees legal fees consulting expenses recorded within

general and administration expenses and compensa
tion expense which have been expensed as incurred by

BlackRock during the year ended December 31 2009

BGI results for the eleven months ended November 30

2009 included $299 million of costs related to accelera

tion of certain compensation costs that were triggered

due to the transaction

BGI costs and benefits not included as pro forma

adjustments

For purposes of the pro forma financial information

above the following items which are in BGIs results

and included in the pro forma results have not been

removed as they are not directly attributable to the

BOl Transaction

pre-tax expense of $2.285 billion for the year ended

December 31 2008 and pre-tax benefit of $1249 bil

lion for the eleven-month period ended November 30

2009 related to capital support of certain BGI cash

management products The liability related to such

capital support has not been assumed in the trans

action as it will remain with Barclays

BGIs tax expense for the year ended December31

2008 and the eleven-month period ended Novem

ber 30 2009 included non-recurring tax benefit of

approximately $695 million and tax expense of $381

million respectively related to the capital support

pre-tax expense of $29 million for the eleven-month

period ended November 30 2009 related to BGI

restructuring independent from the sale to BlackRock

pre-tax non-operating gain/Ross of $33 million and

$1 million for the year ended December31 2008 and

the eleven-month period ended November 30 2009

respectively related to valuation changes for certain

investments that were not acquired by BlackRock

If such costs and benefits were excluded the pro forma

diluted EPS for 2009 would have decreased by $4.37 and

for 2008 would have increased by $8.33

Impact Investing

In August 2008 the Company acquired Impact Invest

ing an Australia based software development company

specializing in equity portfolio management and analy

tical software tools The maximum remaining and total

consideration to be paid is not expected to be material to

the Companys consoLidated financial statements

Quellos Group

On October 2007 the Company closed the Quellos

Transaction and paid Quellos $562.5 million in cash and

issued 1191785 shares of BlackRock common stock

valued at $188 million The common stock was placed

in escrow for up to three years and is available to satisfy

certain indemnification obligations of Quellos under the

asset purchase agreement The value of the common

stock consideration was determined using the average

closing price of BlackRocks common stock ten days

before the Quellos Transaction announcement date

In addition Quellos may receive two contingent payments

upon achieving certain investment advisory base and

performance fee measures through December 31 2010

totaling up to $969 million in combination of cash

and stock During 2009 the Company determined the

first contingent payment to be $219 million of which

$11 million was previously paid in cash during 2008

Of the remaining $208 million $156 million was paid

in cash and $52 million was paid in common stock or

approximately 330000 shares based on price of $1 57.33

per share The second contingent payment of up to

$595 million is based on investment advisory fees

through 2010 and is payable in cash in 2011 Quellos may

also be entitled to catch-up payment in 201 if certain

investment advisory base fee measures are met through

201010 the extent that the value of the first contingent

payment is less than $374 million

The Quellos Transaction was accounted for under the

purchase method of accounting in accordance with

ASC 805 prior to the changes within ASC 805 which were

adopted on January 2009 Accordingly the purchase

price was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities

assumed based upon their estimated fair values at the

date of the transaction The excess if any of the final

$7676

$3712

$2382

$12.41

$12.23

Subsequent to the closing of the BGI Transaction on December 2009 BGI contributed $312 million of revenue $141 million of
operating income and

$94 million of net income attributable to BiackRock Inc

Includes the full year impact of the long-term notes issued in December 2009

$8805

$1126

$157

$0.83

$0.82
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purchase price which may include contingent consider

ation payments over the fair value of assets acquired and

liab lities assumed will be recorded as goodwill

Finite life intangible management contracts have

we ghted average
estimated useful Ide approximately

7.4 years and are amortzed on the stra ght-l ne method

As contingencies are resolved BlackRock common

shares hetd in escrow may be released from escrow

In April2008 and November 2009 280519 and 42326

common shares respectively were released from escrow

to Quellos accordance with the Quellos asset purchase

agreement which resulted in an adjustment to the recog

nized purchase price As alditional sha-es held in escrow

are released and if contingent considerat on payments

are made to Quellos addit onal purchase price consider

otion or employee compensation will be recorded

INVESTMENTS

Adjustments to goodwill related to tax benefits real red

from tax-deductible goodwill in excess of the initial book

goodwill established are discussed
ri

Note Goo will

Fund of Hedge Funds

On April 30 2003 the Company purchased an 80 riter

est in an investment manager of hedge fund of funds

for approximately $4 Ilion in cash On tober 2007

the Company paid $27 rn Ilion in cash to purchase the

remariing 200/o of the investment manager The pur

chase price of the remaining interest wa performance

based and was riot subject to moxirnum minimun or

the continued employment of former employees of Lie

investment manager with the Compeny As result of the

transaction in October 2007 $21 Ilion und $8 roil on of

additional goodwill and ndetin te- fe intsngihle asnts

respectively was recorded

summary of the carry ng value of total investments is as follows

001/dr aiuunts in millions

Available-for-sale investments

Held-to-maturity

Tradng nvestments

Other investments

Consolidated sponsored investment funds non cash management funds

Consolidated sponsored cash management funds

Equity method investments

Deferred compensatior plan hedge und equity method investments

Cost method investments

Total other investments

Total investments

At December 31 2009 the Company had $463 million

of total investments held by consolidated sponsored

investment funds of which $103 million and $360 million

were classified as trad ng investments and other invest

ments respectively

Available-for-Sale Investments

Carry ng value

December 31

2009 OO8

$73 $101

29

167 122

360 349

326

376 501

29 30

15

780 1206

$1049 $1429

At December 31 2008 the Company had $728 Si

of total investments held by consolidated sponsored

investment funds of which $53 millicn and $675 mill on

were classitied as trading investments and other invest

ments respect vely

summary of the cost and carrying value oC investments classified as available-for-sale is as foJows

lDollorarnounts in mi/hoer

December 31 2009

Available-for-sale investments

Equity securities

Sponsored investment funds

Collateralized debt obligations

Debt securities

Mortgage debt

Asset-backed debt

Total available-for-sale investments

$53 $2

10

$71 $3

Carry ng

Losses value

$13 $54

10

$tlJ $73

December31 2008

Available-tor-sale investments

Sponsored investment funds

Collateralized debt obligations

Other debt securities

$109 $93

Cost Gains

Gross unrealized

Total available-for-sale investments $119 $118 $101
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Available-for-sate investments includes seed investments

in BLackRock sponsored investment funds and debt

securities received upon closure of an enhanced cash

fund in lieu of the Companys remaining investment

in the fund and securities purchased from another

enhanced cash fund

During the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and

2007 the Company recorded other-than-temporary

impairments of $5 miLlion including $2 miLhon reLated

to credit loss impairments on debt securities $8 miL

lion and $16 miLlion respectiveLy which were recorded

in non-operating income on the consolidated

statements of income The $2 miLLion credit Loss impair

ment in 2009 was determined by comparing the esti

mated discounted cash fLows versus the amortized

cost for each individuaL security

The Company has reviewed the gross unreaLized losses of

$1 miLLion as of December31 2009 reLated to avaiLabLe

for-saLe equity securities of which Less than $1 miL

lion had been in Loss position for greater than twelve

months and determined that these unreaLized Losses

were not other-than-temporary primariLy because the

Company has the abiLity and intent to hoLd the securi

ties for period of time sufficient to aLlow for recovery

of such unrealized Losses As result the Company

did not record additionaL impairments on such

equity securities

summary of saLe activity in the Companys avaiLable-

for-sale securities during the years ended December 31

2009 2008 and 2007 is shown beLow

Year ended December31

amounts in millions

SaLes proceeds unsettled transactions

Net realized gain

Gross realized gains

Gross realized Losses

Net reaLized gain

Held-to-Maturity Investments

summary of the carrying vaLue of held-to-maturity investments is as follows

Dollar amounts in millions

HeLd-to-maturity investments

Foreign government debt

U.S government debt

Total_held-to-maturity investments

Trading and Other Investments

summary of the cost and carrying vaLue of trading and other investments is as foLLows

December 31 2009 December31 2008

in millions Cost Carrying vaLue Cost Carrying vaLue

Trading investments

Deferred compensation plan

fund investments

Equity securities

Debt securities

MunicipaL debt

Foreign government debt

Corporate debt

US government debt

TotaL trading investments $188

Other investments

ConsoLidated sponsored investment

funds cash management funds $380

ConsoLidated sponsored

cash management funds

Equity method 499

Deferred compensation pLan hedge fund

equity method investments 28

Cost method investments 15

TotaL other investments $922

$49 $42 $32 $29

112 97 109 75

10 11

15 15

$167 $162 $122

$360 $376 $349

333 326

376 752 501

29 39 30

15

2009 2008 2007

$100 $57 $112

$3 $2 $8

$5 $5 $8

Carrying vaLue

December31

2009 2008

$28

Held-to-maturity investments incLude debt instruments heLd for regulatory purposes and the carrying value of these

investments approximates fair vaLue

$29

$780 $1500 $1206
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Trading investments include certain deferred compensa
tion plan fund investments equity and debt securities

within certain consolidated sponsored nvestment funds

and equity and debt securities held in separate accounts

for the purpose of establishing an investment history

in various investment strategies before being marketed

to investors

Maturity Dates

1-5 years

5-10 years

10 years

At December31 2009 the debt securi/ies in the table

above primarily consisted of mortgage asset-backed

municipal corporate U.S and foreign government debt

securities portion of which are held by consolidated

sponsored investment funds which are consolidated in

EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENTS

Cost Method Investments

Cost method investments include non-marketabLe secu

rities including Federal Reserve Bank Stock that are

primarily held for reguLatory purposes

As of December 31 2009 there were no indicators of

impairments on these nvestments

2009

$28

$74

the Companys consoLidated statements of financiat con

dition In addition at December 2008 the debt securi

ties in the table above included floating rate notes and

asset backed securties held by consoUdated sponoored

cash management funds

BlackRock invests in hedge funds funds of hedge funds

real estate funds and private equity funds to establish

performance track record or for co-investment purposes

BlackRock accounts for certain of these investments

under the equity method of account ng in addition to other

accounting methods At December 31 2009 and 2008 the

Company held the following equity method investments in

its sponsored investment products

Dollararnounts in mi/Lions

Investments

Private equity

Real estate

Hedge funds/funds of hedge funds

Other investments

December 31 2009

Net BlackRocks Ownership

assets21 investments P/a

$574

1365

11450

434

$13823

Year ended

December 31 2009

The carrying value of debt securities classified as available-for-sale held-to-maturity trading and other investments

by maturity at December 31 2009 and 2008 is as follows

December31

Dollaramountsin mi/lions 2008

Maturity date

year
$329

14

5348Total

32

Net income

loss

$23

1588
2984

7%

3%

3%

1%

BlackRocks

portion

$2

108
120

$42

43

319

$405

December 31 2008

Dollar amounts in millions
--

Investments

Private equity

Rea/ estate

Hedge funds/funds of hedge funds

Other investments

Net BlackRocks Ownership

assets111 investments

$1419 $14

Year ended

December31 2008

Net income B/ackRocks

loss portion

$482 $63 13%

3857 150 4/o

7743 299 4%

134 19 14%

$12216 $531

$10

176

5645

25

$6 836

$14

L106

200

$298

The majority of the net assets of the equity
method investees are comprised of invesiments held for capital apprcciation offset sy habiltes which ma

include borrowings
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In addition due to BLackRocks ownership LeveLs

BlackRock has equity method investments in various

operating and advisory entities held for strategic pur

poses reLated to BlackRocks core business which are

recorded in other assets The table below incLudes

BLackRocks approximate 40% investment in DSP

BlackRock Investment Managers Pvt Ltd and its 42%

investment in Private National Mortgage Acceptance

Company LLC

The Company consolidates certain sponsored investment

funds primariLy because it is deemed to controL such

investments in accordance with GAAP The invest

ments that are owned by these consolidated sponsored

During 2009 BlackRock took necessary steps to grant

additionaL rights to the unaffiLieted investors in one

consoLidated sponsored investment fund which also

commenced in 2009 The granting of the additional

substantive rights resulted in decorisoLidation of this fund

and the elimination of $85 miLlion $76 miLlion and $9

miLLion of investments borrowings and nonredeemable

non-controLling interests respectiveLy In December 2008

BtackRock took necessary steps to grant additional rights

to the unaffiliated investors in three funds with net assets

at December31 2008 of approximateLy $210 miLLion

BLackRock deconsotidated these sponsored investment

funds upon the grant of these additionaL rights

BlackRocks total exposure to consoLidated sponsored

investment funds of $258 miLlion and $310 miLLion at

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectiveLy represents

investment funds are cLassified as other or trading invest

ments At December 31 2009 and 2008 the foLlowing

baLances reLated to these funds were consolidated in the

consolidated statements of financiaL condition

December31

2009 2008

$75

463

12

273 491

$258 $310

the value of the Companys economic ownership interest

in these sponsored investment funds VaLuation changes

associated with these consoLidated investment funds

are reflected in non-operating income expense and net

income Loss attributable to non-controLling interests

Less than $1 miLlion and $6 miLLion of borrowings by con
soLidated sponsored investment funds at December 31

2009 and 2008 respectively were incLuded in other Liabili

ties on the consoLidated statements of financial condition

The Company may not be readiLy able to access cash and

cash equivaLents held by consolidated sponsored invest

ment funds to use its operating activities In addition

the Company may not be readily able to sell investments

held by consoLidated sponsored investment funds in order

to obtain cash for use in its operations

December31

Dollaramounts in millions 2009 2008

Equity Method Investees

Assets
$99 $43

Liabilities 18 13

Equity $81 $30

BtackRocks investments111 $34 $12

Year ended December31

2009 2008

Net income loss of equity method investees $31 $3
BlackRocks portion $14 $2

In addition at December31 2009 and 2008 BlackRock had approximately $2 million and $2 million respectively of other
strategic equity method investments

recorded within other assets

CONSOLIDATED SPONSORED INVESTMENT FUNDS

Dollar amounts in millions

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Other net assets liabiLities

Non-controlLing interests

TotaL net interests in consolidated investment funds

$61

728
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FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES

Fair Value Hierarchy

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis at December 31 2009 were as follows

Quoted prices Significant
OIher

in active other Significant assets

markets observable unobservable not

for identical inputs inputs held at December 31

Dollar amounts in millions assets
fair value111 2009

Assets

Investments

Available-for-sale $53 $20 $- $73

Trading
118 49 167

Held-to-maturity
29 29

Other investments

Consolidated sponsored

investment tunds 22 338 360

Equity method 336 41 376

Deferred compensation plan

hedge fund equity method

investments
15 29

Cost method investments
-- 15 15

Total investments 193 84 687 85 1049

Separate account assets 99983 7599 1.292 755 119629

Collateral held under securities

lending areements
11.580 7755 19335

Otherassets21
11 46 57

Total assets measured at fair vaLue $111756 $25469 $2025 $840 $160070

Liabilities

Collateral liability
under securities

lending agreements $11580 $7755 $-- $- $19335

Comprised of
equity

method is vestments which include investment companies and other assets which in accordance with GAAi are noi accounted icr undc

fair value measure In accordance with GAAR certain equity method investees do not account for both their financial asseis and financial liabildie- nder tan

value measures therefore the Companyd idvestment in such equity
method investees may not reprasent fair value

Includes disposal group assets and company-owned and split-dollar
life insurance policies

Assets measured at air value on recurring basis at December 31 2008 were as follows

Quoted prices Significant Other

in active other Significant assets

markets observable unobservable not

for identical inputs inputs hEtld at December 31

Dollar amounts in millions assets Level Level fair value1t1 2008

Assets

Investments

Available-for-sale $63 $34 $4 $--- $101

Trading
113

--- 122

Other investments

Consolidated sponsored

investment funds cash

management funds 21 328 349

Consolidated sponsored

cash management funds 326 --- 326

Equity method 461 LO 501

Deferred compensation plan

hedge fund equity method

investments 10 20 --- 30

Total investments 176 400 813 40 1429

Separate account assets 2461 85 73 2623

Dtherassets12
64 -- 73

Total assets measured at fair value $2 $881 $1 13 $4125

Comprised of equity method investments which include investment companies and other assets which in accordance with GAvIP are not accountcu for uode

fair value measure In acccrdance with GAAP certain equity
method investees do not account for both their financial assets and financial liabilitie under iaii

value measures therefore the Companys investment in such equity
method investees may not represent

fan value

ld
Includes disposal group assets and company-swned and split-dollar

life insurance policies
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Separate Account Assets

BlackRock Pensions Limited and BlackRock Asset Man

agement Pensions Limited both wholly-owned subsidiar

ies of the Company are registered Life insurance compa
nies that maintain separate account assets representing

segregated funds held for purposes of funding individual

and group pension contracts and equal and offsetting

separate account non-financial liabilities

Money Market Funds within Cash and Cash Equivalents

At December31 2009 and 2008 approximately $1.4 biL

Lion and $0.1 billion respectively of money market funds

were recorded within cash and cash equivalents on the

consolidated statements of financial condition Money

market funds are valued through the use of quoted mar
ket prices Level input or $1 which is generally the

net asset value of the fund

Total net gains losses for the period included in earnings

attributable to the change in unrealized gains or

losses relating to assets still held at the reporting date

Do/tar amounts in millions

December 31 2007

Realized and unrealized gains/losses net

Purchases sales other settlements and issuances net

Net transfers in and/or out of Level

December31 2008

Total net gains losses for the period included in earnings

attributable to the change in unrealized gains or

losses relating to assets still heLd atth reporting date

Level 3Assets

Level assets recorded within investments which include

equity method investments and consolidated investments

of real estate funds private equity funds and funds of

private equity funds are valued based upon valuations

received from internal as well as third party fund man

agers Fair valuations at the underlying funds are based

on combination of methods which may include

third-party independent appraisals and discounted cash

flow techniques Direct investments in private equity

companies held by funds of private equity funds are

valued based on an assessment of each underlying

investment incorporating evaluation of additional

significant third party financing changes in valuations

of comparable peer companies the business environ

ment of the companies and market indices among other

factors Level assets recorded within separate account

assets may include single broker non-binding quotes

for fixed income securities

Investments Other assets

$1240

4091

11

29

$813

$13661 $H17

Realized and unrealized gains and Losses recorded

for Level investments are reported in non-operating

income expense on the consolidated statements of

income portion of net income loss for consolidated

investments is allocated to non-controlling interests to

reflect net income loss not attributable to the Company

Transfers in and/or out of Level are reflected as of the

beginning of the period when significant inputs including

market inputs or performance attributes used for the

fair value measurement become observable or when

the book value of certain equity method investments

no longer represents fair value as determined under

fair value methodologies

Changes in Level Investments Other Assets and Separate Account Assets Measured at Fair Value

on Recurring Basis for the Year Ended December 31 2009

Dollar amounts in millions Investments Other assets

December3l2008 $813 $64

Realized and unrealized gains/losses net 45 20
Purchases sales other settlements and issuances net1t1 1491

Net transfers in and/or out of Level 221

December 31 2009 $687 $46

Separate

account

assets

$4

1276

$1292

$92 $20 N/A121

N/A Not applicable

Purchases sales other settlements and issuances net include $1675 million related to LevelS separate accsunt assets acquired in the BG/ Transaciion in

December 20129

The net investment income and net
gains

and losses attributable to separate account assets accrue directly to the contract owner and ace not reported as

non-operating income expense on the consolidated statements of income

Changes in Level Investments and OtherAssets Measured at Fair Value

on Recurring Basis for the Year Ended December 31 2008

16

78

$64
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Investments in Certain Entities that CalcuLate Net Asset VaLue Per Share

As practical expedient BtackRock relies on net asset values as the fair value for certain investments The following

tabLe lists information regarding all investments that use fair vaLue measurement to account for both their financial

assets and financial LiabiLities in their calculation of net asset value per share or its equivalent

Total

unfunded Redemption Redemption

Dollar amounts in millions Fair value commitment frequency notice period

Consolidated sponsored investment funds

Private equity fund of fundst $312 $85 N/A N/A

Other fund of funds Monthly 39%L

Quarterly 51

Semi-annuaLLy and

AnnuaLLy IO% 30 20days

Equity method111

Private equity 51 72 N/A N/A

Real estate 36 65 N/A N/A

Hedge funds/funds of hedge funds/el 248 93 MonthLy 7%
Quarterly i9%

N/A 7L1% 15 90 days

Deferred compensation plan hedge

fund investments 29 MonthLy 3%
QuarterLy 97% 30 60 days

Total $683 $315

N/A not applicable

It
Comprised of equity method investments which inctude investment companies which in accordance with GAAF account for both heir inancial asset and

financial liabilities under tair value measures- ti erefore the Companys investment in such equity
method invextees approximates fair value

This category includes the underlying third party private equity funds within consolidated BlackRock sponsorea private equity funds of lurds The lAir values of

the investments in the third party funds have been estimated using the net asset value of the Companys ownership interest in partners capital in each fund in

the portfolio as well as other performance inputs These investments are not subject to redemption fiowever for certain funds the Company may sell or trans

fer its interest which may need approval by the general partner
of the underlying funds Due to the nature of the investments in this category the Company

reduces its investment via distributions that are received through the realization of the underlying assets of the funds It is estimu ted that the underlisq asset

of these funds would be liquidated over weighed average period of approximately years

Total remaining unfunded commitments to other third party funds is $85 million BlackRock is contractually obligated to fund only $54 million its reisraining

unfunded commitment balance included in the above table to the consolidated fund while the remaining balance would be funded by r.ipdal contribstisns from

non-controlling interest holders

fbi This category includes several consolidated funds of funds that invest in multiple strategies
to diversify risks Jhe fair values sf tIe investments in this rate

gory

have been estimated using the net asset value of the funds ownership interest in partners capital of each fund in the portfotis Investroemmls in this
r.itegory can

generally be redeemed as long as there are no restrictions in place by the underlying funds

ci This category includes several private equity funds that initially invest in non-marketable securities of private companies which ultimately nay become public in

the future The fair values of tfmese investments have been estimated using the net asset value of the Companys ownership interest in partners capitol at well

as other performance inputs The Companys investment in each fund is not subject to redemption and is normally returned through
dis.Iributions asa sesult ol

the liquidation of the undorlying assets of the private equity funds It is estimated that the investment in these finds would be liquidated .sver weighted .aver

age period of approximately years

di This category includes several real estate funds that invest primarily to acquire expand renovate finance hold for investmeit and ulbmately sell

producing apartment properties or to capital.ze on the distress in the residential real estate market The fair values of the investments in this
category

have

been estimated
using

the net asset value of the Companys ownership interest in partners capital The Companys investment in sach fund is not sutmiect ts

redemption and is normally returned through distributions as result of the liquidation of the underlying asset of the real estate funds It is estirriated that the

investments in these funds would be liquidated over weighted average period
of approimately 14 years

ei This category includes hedge tunds and funds hedge funds that invest primarily in equities fixed income securties distressed credit and mortgage instru

ments and other third party hedge funds The fair values of the investments in this category have been estimated using
the net asset value of the Corn panys

ownership interest in partners capital It is estimated that the investments in the funds that are not ssbject
to medemptions would be

lquidated over weighted

average period of less than 8years

ff1 This category includes investments in certain hedge funds that invest in energy and health science related equity securities hhe air values of the investments

in this category have beer estimated using the net asset value of the Companys ownership interest in partners capital as well as- pert ormasce inpst
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BLACKR9 NTES

In the normal course of business the Company is the

manager of various types of sponsored investment

vehicles including collateralized debt obligations and

sponsored investment funds which may be considered

VIEs The Company receives management fees or other

incentive related fees for its services and may from time

to time own equity or debt securities or enter into deriva

tives with the vehicles each of which are considered

variable interests The Company enters into these vari

able interests principally to address client needs through

the launch of such investment vehicles The VIEs are

primarily financed via capital contributed by equity and

debt holders The Companys involvement in financing

the operations of the VIEs is Limited to its equity interests

unfunded capital commitments for certain sponsored

investment funds and two capital support agreements for

two enhanced cash funds at December 31 2008 which

were terminated in 2009 due to closure of the funds

The primary beneficiary of VIE is the enterprise that has

variable interest combination of variable interests

including those of related parties that will absorb

majority of the entitys expected losses receive major

ity of the entitys expected residual returns or both In

order to determine whether the Company is the primary

beneficiary of VIE management must make significant

estimates and assumptions of probable future cash flows

and assign probabilities to different cash flow scenarios

Assumptions made in such analyses include but are not

limited to market prices of securities market interest

rates potential credit defaults on individual securities

or default rates on portfolio of securities realization of

gains liquidity or marketability of certain securities dis

count rates and the probability of certain other outcomes

V/Es in which BlackRock is the Primary Beneficiary

As of December31 2009

At December 31 2009 BlackRock was the primary bene

ficiary of one VIE private sponsored investment fund

Dollar amounts in millions

Sponsored enhanced

cash management funds

Other sponsored investment funds

Total

As result of consolidating the three private investment

funds at December31 2008 the Company recorded $383

million of net assets primarily investments and cash

and cash equivalents which in consolidation is offset by

$319 million of non-controlling interests which reflect

the equity ownership of third parties on its consolidated

statements of financial condition For the year ended

December31 2008 the Company recorded non-

operating expense of $12 million offset by $13 million

in which it had non-substantive investment due to its

de-facto third party relationships with other partners

in the fund Due to consolidation of this VIE at Decem

ber 31 2009 the Company recorded $54 million of net

assets primarily investments and cash and cash equiva

lents These net assets were offset on the Companys

consolidated statement of financial condition by $54 mil

lion of nonredeemable non-controlling interests which

reflect the equity ownership of third parties on the

Companys consolidated statements of financial condi

tion For the year ended December31 2009 the Company

recorded non-operating expense of $4 million offset

by $4 million net loss attributable to nonredeemable

non-controlling interests on its consolidated statements

of income The Company has no risk of loss with its

involvement with this VIE

As of December31 2008

During 2008 the Company determined it became the

primary beneficiary of two enhanced cash management

funds as result of concluding that under various cash

flow scenarios it absorbed the majority of the variability to

cover expected losses in the funds due to its equity owner

ship percentage of the funds along with its obligation

under the Companys capital support agreements with

the funds which were established to cover potential real

ized losses within the funds During 2008 the Company

contributed $1 million to the cash management funds to

cover realized losses As of December 31 2008 under the

terms of the capital support agreements BlackRock was

obligated to cover realized losses of up to $45 million

At December31 2008 the Company was the primary

beneficiary of three VIEs which resulted in consolidation

of three sponsored investment funds two cash

management funds and one private equity fund of funds

Creditors of the VIEs do not have recourse to the credit of

the Company

Maximum risk of loss

Capital

support

agreements Total

$45 $133

$45 $133

gain in non-controlling interests on its consolidated state

ments of income

The maximum risk of loss related to the capital support

agreements in the table above reflect the Companys total

obligation under the capital support agreements with the

two enhanced cash funds The fair value of the capital

support agreements recorded at December 31 2008 was

$18 million

VIE net

assets that the

Company

consolidates

Equity

interests

$328 $88

55

$383 $88
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V/Es in which BlackRock holds significant variable

interests or is the sponsor that holds variable interest

but is not the Primary Beneficiary of VIE

At December31 2009 and 2008 the Companys carrying

value of assets and liabilities and its maximum risk of

As of December31 2009

Dollar amounts in millions nvestments

CDOs $2

Other sponsored investment funds111

Total $16

includes common trusts

The size of the net assets of the VIEs that the Company

does not consolidate related to CDOs common trusts

and other sponsored investment funds were as follows

CDOs.approximately $8 billion comprised of

approximately $10 billion of assets and $18 billion of

liabilities primarily comprised of c1ebt obligations to

CDO debt holders

Other sponsored investments fundsapproximately

$1.5 trillion to $1.6 trillion

This amount includes approximately $1.1 trillion

of common trusts Each common trust has been

As of December31 2008

Dollar amounts in millions

CDOs

Other sponsored investment funds

Total

loss related to VIEs in which it holcs significant variable

interest or is the sponsor that holds variable interest

but for which it was not the primary beneficiary were

as follows

Variable interests on the consolidated

statement of financial condition

Other neli

assets

Receivables liabilities

aggregated separately and niay include common

trusts that invest in other common trusts

The net assets of the VIEs are primarily comprised

of cash and cash equivalents and investments offset

by liabilities primarily comprised of various accrual

for the sponsored investment vehicles

At December 31 2009 BlackRocks maximum risk ci

loss associated with these VIEs primarily relates to

BlackRocks equity investments management fee

receivables arid hi credit protection sold by BlackRock to

third party in synthetic COO transaction See Note

Derivatives and Hedging for further information

Variable interests on the consolidated

Investments

$4

$13

The size of the net assets of the VIEs that the Company

did not consolidate related to ODDs and other sponsored

investments funds was approximately $7.8 billion and

$6.1 billion respectively

The net assets of the VIEs are primarily comprised of

cash and cash equivalents and investments offset by

liabilities primarily comprised of deft obligations ODD
debt holders and various accruals for the sponsored

investment vehicles

statement of financial condition

Other net

assett

Receivables liabilities

$5

$L

Mo xi rn urn

risk of loss

$25

18

$43

At December31 2008 BlackRocks maximum risk of

loss associated with these VIEs primarly relates to

BlackRocks equity investments ii management fee

receivables arid iii credit protection sold by BlackRock to

third party in synthetic ODD transaction See Note

Derivatives and Hedging for further information

14

Maximum

risk of loss

$21

268

$2 $t2

254

$256 $289
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DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING

For the years ended December31 2009 and 2008 the

Company did not hold any derivatives designated in

formal hedge relationship under ASC 815-10

By using derivative financial instruments the Company

exposes itself to market and counterparty risk Market

risk from forward foreign currency exchange contracts

is the effect on the value of financial nstrument that

results from change in currency exchange rates The

Company manages exposure to market risk associated

with foreign currency exchange contracts by establishing

and monitoring parameters that limit the types and

degrees of market risk that may be undertaken At

December31 2009 the Company had two outstanding

forward foreign exchange contracts with two counter-

parties with an aggregate notional value of $100 million

During 2007 the Company commenced program to

enter into series of total return swaps to economi

cally hedge against market price exposures with respect

to certain seed investments in sponsored investment

products At December 31 2009 the Company had seven

outstanding total return swaps with two counterparties

with an aggregate notional value of approximately

$36 million

In December 2007 BlackRock entered into capital sup

port agreements up to $100 million with two enhanced

cash funds These capital support agreements were

backed by letters of credit issued under BlackRocks

revolving credit facility In December 2008 the capital

support agreements were modified to be up to $45 mil

lion and were no longer backed by the letters of credit

In 2009 the capital support agreements were termi

nated due to the closure of the related funds See

Note 13 Borrowings for further discussion During the

six months ended June 30 2009 the Company provided

approximately $4 million of capital contributions to the

funds under the capital support agreements BlackRock

determined that the capital support agreements

qualified as derivatives under 450 815-10 At Decem

ber 31 2008 the fair value of the derivative liabilities

related to the capital support agreements for the two

funds totaled approximately $18 million respectively

The fair value of these liabilities increased or decreased

as BlackRocks obligations under the guarantee fluctu

ated based on the fair value of the derivative Upon

closure of the funds the
liability

decreased $11 million

and the change in the
liability was included in general

and administration expenses

The Company acts as the portfolio manager in series

of credit default swap transactions referred to collec

tively as the Pillars synthetic COO transaction Pillars

The Company has entered into credit default swap

with Citibank N.A Citibank providing Citibank credit

protection of approximately $17 million representing the

Companys maximum risk of loss with respect to the pro

vision of credit protection The Companys management

has performed an assessment of its variable interest

in Pillars collateral management agreement and the

credit default swap under ASC 810-10 and has concluded

the Company is not Pillars primary beneficiary Pursu

ant to ASC 815-10 the Company carries the Pillars credit

default swap at fair value based on the expected future

cash flows under the arrangement

On behalf of clients that maintain separate accounts

representing segregated funds held for purpose of fund

ing individual and group pension contracts the Company

invests in various derivative instruments including

forward foreign currency contracts interest rate and

inflation rate swaps

The Company may at times consolidate certain spon
sored investment funds which utilize derivative instru

ments as part of the funds investment strategy The

change in fair value of such derivatives which is recorded

in non-operating income expense is not material to the

Companys consolidated financial statements

The following table presents fair value as of Decem

ber 31 2009 of derivative instruments not designated

as hedging instruments

assets 1501.0

Total $1501.2

Derivatives associated with separate account assets include interest rate inflation rate swaps futures and foreign currency contracts

The following table presents gains losses recognized in income for the year ended December 31 2009 on

derivative instruments

Amount of gain loss recognized

Do//ar amounts in millions Income statement location in income on derivative

Foreign exchange contracts General and administration expense

Total return swaps Non-operating income expense 10

Credit default swap Pillars Non-operating income expense

Capital support agreements General and administration expense

Do/tar amounts in millions

Foreign exchange contracts

Total return swaps

Credit default swap Pillars

Separate account derivatives11

Assets

Balance sheet

location

Other assets

Other assets

Other assets

Separate

account

Fair

value

$0.2

Liabilities

Balance sheet Fair

location value

Other liabilities

Other liabilities 0.4

Other liabilities 2.5

Separate

account

liabilities 15010

$1503.9

Total
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Net realized and unrealized gains anc Losses attribut

able to derivatives held by separate acount assets and

liabilities accrue directly to the contract owner and are

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

not reported as non-operating income the consolidated

statements of ncome

Property and equipment consists of the following

Dollar amounts in millions

Property and equipment

Land

Building

Building mprovements

Leasehold improvements

Equipment and computer software

Furniture and fixtures

Construction in progress

Gross property and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment net

Not ppl cable

Estimated useful

lifein years

N/A

39

Qualifying software costs of approx mately $31 million

$28 million and $25 million have been capitalized within

equipment and computer software for the years ended

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively and

are being amortized over an estimated useful life of

three years

GOODWILL

Depreciat on expense was $85 million $84 mill on and

$68 million for the years ended Deember 31 2009 2008

and 2007 respectively

Goodwill activity durng the years
ended December31 2009 and 2008 was as follows

Dollaramounts in millions

Beginning of year balance

Goodwill acquired related to

BGI

Due lbs

Impact Investing

Total goodwill acquired

Goodwill adjustments related to

Due lbs

83

Other

Total goodwill adjustments

End of year balance

During the year ended December 31 2009 goodwill

increased by $7037 million The increase relates primar

ily
to $6842 million of goodwill substantially all of which

is non-deductible related to the BGI Transaction $156

million cash payment $43 million common stock issu

ance related to the frst contingent payment and $6

million increase related to the release of shares held in

escrow in connection with the QuelLos Transaction offset

2009 2008

$5533 $5520

61342

55

61342 59

185

195

$12570 $5533

by $20 million decline related to lax benefits re lized

from tax-deductible goodwill in excess of book goodwill

At December 31 200 the balance of the QuelLo

tax-deductible goodwill in excess cf book goodwill was

approximately $379 Ilion Goodwill related to the

Quelbos Transaction LI continue to be reduced in future

periods by the amount of tax benefits realized from tax-

deductible goodwill ri excess of book goodwill

15

1-15

3-5

2-7

N/A

December 31

2009 2008

$4 $4

17 17

13 12

335 156

324 257

70 47

15 26

778 519

333 259

$445 $260
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Intangible assets at December 31 2009 and 2008 consisted of the foLlowing

Remaining

weighted-average

estimated

usefuL iife

Amortization expense for finite-Lived intangibLe assets

was $147 miLlion $146 miLLion and $130 miLLion in 2009

2008 and 2007 respectiveLy

Finite-Lived Acquired Management Contracts

On September 29 2006 in conjunction with the MLIM

Transaction the Company acquired finite-lived manage
ment contracts vaLued at $1135 miLLion primariLy associ

ated with $771 miLlion of contracts with institutional

separate accounts $348 million of contracts with retail

separate accounts $1 milLion of private equity accounts

and $5 miLLion in trade name intangibLes The initial

weighted-average estimated useful Life of these finite-Life

management contracts was approximateLy 10.1 years

On September 29 2006 in conjunction with the NBAM

transaction the Company acquired $13 miLLion of finite-

Lived management contracts primariLy associated of

December 31 2009

AccumuLated Net carrying

amortization amount

$8286

5960

917

1403

16566

403 949

62 128

466 1082

$466 $17648

Net carrying

amount

$4461

917

5378

institutionaL fixed income accounts The initiaL weighted-

average usefuL Life of these finite-life management

contracts was approximateLy nine years

On October 2007 in conjunction with the QueLLos Trans

action the Company acquired $161 miLLion of finite-Lived

management contracts primariLy associated with private

equity fund of funds and other contracts The initiaL

weighted-average usefuL life of these finite-Life manage

ment contracts was approximately 7.5 years

In August 2008 in conjunction with the Impact Investing

transaction the Company acquired $7 miLLion of finite-

Lived contracts associated primarily of $1 million of insti

tutionaL equity accounts and $6 million for intelLectual

property The initiaL weighted-average usefuL Life of these

finite-Life management contracts was approximately

9.5 years

Gross

carrying

Dol/aramounts in millions amount

Indefinite-lived intangible assets

Acquired management contracts

MutuaL funds/Collective funds N/A $8286

Exchange traded funds/Shares N/A 5960

ALternative investment funds N/A 917

Trade names/trademarks N/A 1403

TotaL indefinite-Lived intangibLe assets 16566

Finite-lived intangible assets

Acquired management contracts

InstitutionaL/RetaiL separate accounts 7.4 1352

ALternative investment accounts

and funds 5.1 190

Other111 8.6

TotaL finite-Lived intangible_assets
7.2 1548

TotaL intangibLe assets $18114

Remaining
December 312008

weighted-average Gross

estimated carrying AccumuLated

Dollaramounts in mt/lions useful iife amount amortization

Indefinite-lived intangible assets

Acquired management contracts

MutuaL funds N/A $4461

Alternative investment funds N/A 917

TotaL indefinite-Lived intangibLe assets 5378

Finite-Lived intangibLe assets

Acquired management contracts

InstitutionaL/RetaiL separate accounts 7.6 1187 280

ALternative investment accounts and funds 6.6 194 44

Otherhh 9.6

TotaL finite-lived intangible assets 7.7 1387 324

Total intangibLe assets $6765 $324

Other represents intellectual property in 2009 and 2008

N/A Not applicable

907

150

1063

$6441
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In April 2009 the Company acquired $2 miLLion of finite

lived management contracts with five-year estimated

usefuL Life associated with the acquisition of the R3

Capital Partners funds

In December 2009 in conjunction with the BGI Trans

action the Company acquired $163 miLLion of finite

Lived management contracts with weighted-average

estimated usefuL Life of approximately 10 years

Estimated amortization expense for finite-Lived intangibLe

assets for each of the five succeeding years is as foLlows

Do//ar amounts in mi//ions

2010

201

2012

2013 155

2014 149

Indefinite-Lived Acquired Management Contracts

On September 29 2006 in conjunction with the MLIM

Transaction the Company acquired indefinite-Lived man

agement contracts vaLued at $4/177 miLLion consisting of

$4271 miLlion for aLL retaiL mutuaL funds and $206 milLion

for alternative investment products

BORROWINGS

On October 2007 in conjunction with the Duel/os

Transaction the Company acquired $631 miLlion in

indetinite-Lived management contracts associated with

aLternative investment products

On October 2007 the Company purcHased the remain

ing 20% of an investment manager of fund of hedge

funds In conjunction with this transaction the Company

recorded $8 million in additional indefinite-lived

management contracts associated with alternative

investment products

On December 2009 in conjunction with the BGI

Transaction the Company acquired $9785 million in

$160 indetinite-Lived management contracts valued consisting

157 primariLy for exchange traded funds and common and

156 coLLective trusts

Indefinite-Lived Acquired Trade Names/Trademarks

On December 2009 in conjunction with the BGI

Transaction the Company acquired trade names/

trademarks primarily related to i5hares valued at

$1402.5 miLlion The fair value was determined using

royaLty rate based primarily on normalized marketing

and promotion expenditures to develop and support

the brands gLobalLy

Short- Term Borrowings

2007 Facility

In August 2007 the Company entered into five-year

$2.5 bilLion unsecured revoLving credil
facility the 2007

faciLity which permits the Company to request an

additionaL $500 miLLion of borrowing capacity subject to

lender credit approval up to maximum of $3.0 biLLion

The 2007
facility requires the Company not to exceed

maximum leverage ratio ratio of net debt to earnings

before interest taxes depreciation and amortiza

tion where net debt equaLs total debt Less domestic

unrestricted cash of to which was satisfied with

ratio of Less than ito at December 31 2009

The 2007 faciLity provides back-up Liquidity funds ongoing

working capitaL for generaL corporate purposes and funds

various investment opportunities At December 31 2009

the Company had $200 miLLion outstanding under the

2007
faciLity with an interest rate of O.44% and maturity

date during February 2010 During Feisruary 2010 the

Company roLled over $100 miLLion in borrowings with an

interest rate of O.43% and maturity date in May 2010

Lehman CommerciaL Paper Inc has $140 miLLion

participation under the 2007 FaciLity however BLackRock

does not expect that Lehman CommerciaL Paper Inc

wilL honor its commitment to fund additionaL amounts

Bank of America reLated party has $140 milLion

participation under the 2007 faciLity

In December 2007 in order to support two enhanced

cash funds that BLackRock manages BlackRock eLected

to procure two letters of credit under the existing 2007

faciLity in an aggregate amount of $100 miLLion In Decem

ber 2008 the letters of credit were terminated

Commercial Paper Program

On October 14 2009 BlackRock established com
mercial paper program the CP Program under which

the Company may issije unsecured commercial paper

notes the CP Notes on private placement basis up

to maximum aggregate amount outstanding at any

time of $3 biLLion The proceeds of the commercial paper

issuances were used for the financ ng of portion of the

801 Transaction Subsidiaries of Bank of America and

Barclays as weLl as other third parties act as dealers

under the CP Progranc The CP Program is supported by

the 2007 facility

The Company began issuance of CP Notes under the

CP Program on November 2009 As of December 31

2009 BLackRock had approximately $2 billion of out

standing CP Notes with weighted average interest rate

of O200/s and weighted average maturity of 23 days

Since December31 2009 the Company repaid approxi

mately $1.4 bilLion of CP Notes with proceeds from the

Long-term notes issued in December 2009 As of March

2010 BLackRock had $596 miLlion of outstanding

OP Notes with weighted average interest rate of 0.18/o

and weighted average maturity of 38 aays

Japan Commitment-line

In June 2008 BlackRock Japan Co Ltd wholLy owned

subsidiary of the Company entered into five biLlion

Japanese yen commitment-Line agieement with bank

ing institution Ithe Japan Commitment-Line The term

of the Japan Commitment-Line was one year and interest

accrued at the applicable Japanese short-term prime

rate In June 2009 BLackRock Japan Co Ltd renewed

the Japan Commitment-Line for term of one year
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The Japan Commitment-Line is intended to provide Liquid

ity
and

fLexibiLity
for operating requirements in Japan

At December 31 2009 the Company had no borrowings

outstanding on the Japan Commitment-Line

Convertible Debentures

In February 2005 the Company issued $250 miLLion

aggregate principaL amount of convertible debentures

Debentures due in 2035 and bearing interest at

rate of 2.625% per annum Interest is payabLe semi

annuaLLy in arrears on February 15 and August 15 of each

year and commenced August 15 2005

Prior to February 15 2009 the Debentures couLd have

been convertibLe at the option of the hoLder at Decem

ber 31 2008 conversion rate of 9.9639 shares of common

stock per one doLLar principaL amount of Debentures

under certain circumstances The Debentures would

have been convertible into cash and in some situations

as described beLow additionaL shares of the Companys

common stock if during the five business day period

after any five consecutive trading day period the trading

price per Debenture for each day of such period is Less

than 103% of the product of the Last reported saLes price

of BLackRocks common stock and the conversion rate of

the Debentures on each such day or upon the occurrence

of certain other corporate events such as distribution

to the holders of BLackRock common stock of certain

rights assets or debt securities if the Company becomes

party to merger consolidation or transfer of aLl or

substantiaLLy alL of its assets or change of controL of the

Company On February 15 2009 the Debentures became

convertible into cash at any time prior to maturity at the

option of the holder and in some situations as described

beLow additional shares of the Companys common stock

at the current conversion rate

At the time the Debentures are tendered for conver

sion for each one dolLar principal amount of Debentures

converted hoLder shaLL be entitled to receive cash and

shares of BLackRock common stock if any the aggregate

vaLue of which conversion value wilL be deter

mined by muLtipLying the appLicable conversion rate by

the average of the daiLy voLume weghted average price of

BLackRock common stock for each of the ten consecutive

trading days beginning on the second trading day imme

diateLy foLlowing the day the Debentures are tendered for

conversion the ten-day weighted average price The

Company wiLl deLiver the conversion value to holders as

foLLows an amount in cash principaL return

equaL to the lesser of the aggregate conversion vaLue

of the Debentures to be converted and the aggregate

principaL amount of the Debentures to be converted and

if the aggregate conversion vaLue of the Debentures

to be converted is greater than the principaL return an

amount in shares net shares determined as set

forth beLow equaL to such aggregate conversion vaLue

Less the principaL return net share amount The

number of net shares to be paid wiLL be determined by

dividing the net share amount by the ten-day weighted

average price In Lieu of deLivering fractionaL shares the

Company will deLiver cash based on the ten-day weighted

average price

The conversion rate for the Debentures is subject to

adjustments upon the occurrence of certain corporate

events such as change of control of the Company

each payment of quarterLy dividends greater than $0.30

per share the issuance of certain rights or warrants to

hoLders of or subdivisions on BLackRocks common

stock distribution of assets or indebtedness to

hoLders of BlackRock common stock or tender offer

on the common stock The conversion rate adjustments

vary depending upon the specific corporate event neces

sitating the adjustment and serve to ensure that any

economic gains reaLized by the Companys stockhoLders

are shared with the hoLders of the Debentures The initiaL

conversion rate of 9.7282 was determined by the under

writers based on market conditions and has been subse

quentLy revised to 10.0909 as result of dividends paid

by the Company that were in excess of $0.30 per share

If the effective date or anticipated effective date of certain

transactions that constitute change of control occurs

on or prior to February 15 2010 under certain circum

stances the Company wiLL provide for make-whoLe

amount by increasing for certain time period the

conversion rate by number of additionaL shares

of common stock for any conversion of Debentures in

connection with such transactions The amount of

additional shares will be determined based on the price

paid per share of BlackRock common stock in the trans

action constituting change of controL and the effective

date of such transaction However if such transaction

constitutes public acquirer change of controL the

Company may eLect to issue shares of the acquiring

company rather than BLackRock shares

Beginning February 20 2010 the Company may redeem

any of the Debentures at redemption price of 000/o

their principaL amount plus accrued and unpaid inter

est including contingent interest and accrued and unpaid

liquidated damages if any upon not more than 60 but

not Less than 30 days notice Holders of the Debentures

have the right to require the Company to repurchase the

Debentures for cash on February 15 2010 2015 2020

2025 and 2030 In addition holders of the Debentures

may require the Company to repurchase the Debentures

for cash at repurchase price equaL to OO% of their

principal amount pLus accrued and unpaid interest

incLuding contingent interest and accrued and unpaid

liquidated damages if any upon change of controL

of the Company or ii if BLackRocks common stock is

neither Listed for trading on the New York Stock Exchange

nor approved for trading on the NASDAQ

The Company is obligated to pay contingent interest

which is the amount of interest payabLe to holders of the

Debentures for any six-month period from February 15

to August 15 or from August 15 to February 15 with the

initiaL six-month period commencing February 15 2010

if the trading price of the Debentures for each of the ten

trading days immediateLy preceding the first day of the

appLicabLe six-month period equals 120% or more of the

principal amount of the Debentures During any period

when contingent interest is payabLe the contingent inter

est payabLe per Debenture wiLl equaL 0.25% of the aver

age trading price of the Debentures during the ten trading

days immediateLy preceding the first day of the appLicabLe

six-month interest penod

On October 16 2008 the Debentures became convertibLe

at the option of the hoLders into cash and shares of the

Companys common stock after the trustee determined

that the trading price for the debentures on each day
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of five consecutive trading day period was Less than

03/o of the product of the Last reported sate price of

the Companys common stock on such date and the

conversion rate on such date The conversion period

ended on October 30 2008 after the Debentures failed to

satisfy the trading price condition on October 24 2008

During the conversion period holders of $0.5 million of

Debentures elected to convert their holdings into cash

and shares

During 2009 subsequent to the debentures becoming

convertible on February 15 2009 into cash and shares

of the Companys common stock at any time prior to

maturity the holders of $7 million of Debentures elected

to convert their holdings into cash and shares In addition

during January and February 2010 hclders of $148 mil

Lion of debentures elected to convert their holdings into

cash and shares

The Company recognized $10 million in each of the years

ended December31 2009 and 2008 01 interest expense

comprised in both periods of $6 million and $7 million

related to the coupon and $4 million and $3 million

related to amortization of the discount for the years

ended December31 2009 and 2008 respectively

At December 31 2009 the estimated Fair value of the

convertible debentures was $486 million which was

estimated using market price at December 31 2009

Long- Term Borrowings

2017 Notes

In September 2007 the Company issued $700 million in

aggregate principal amount of 6.25/a senior unsecured

notes maturing on September 15 2017 2017

Notes Interest is payable semi-annually on March 15

and September 15 of each year or approximately

$44 million per year The 2017 Notes may be redeemed

prior to maturity at any time in whole or in part at the

option of the Company at make-whole redemption

price The 2017 Notes were issued at discount ot

$6 million which is being amortized over their ten-year

term The Company incurred approximately $4 million in

debt issuance costs which are included in other assets

on the consolidated statements of financial condition and

are being amortized over the term of the 2017 Notes

2012 2014 and 2019 Notes

In December 2009 the Company issued $2.5 billion in

aggregate principal amount of unsecured and unsubor

dinated obligations These notes were issued as three

separate series of senior debt securities including $0.5

biLlion of 2.25/j notes $1.0 billion cf 3.50% notes and

$1.0 billion of 5.0% notes maturing in December 2012

2014 and 2019 respectively Net proceeds of this offering

were used to repay borrowings under our commercial

paper program and for general coroorate purposes

Interest on these notes is payable semi-annually on

June 10 and December10 of each year beginning

June 10 2010 or approximately $96 miLlion per year

These notes may be redeemed prior to maturity at any

time in whole or in part at the option of the Company at

make-whole redemption price These notes were

issued coLlectively at discount of 35 million and are

being amortized over the term of the notes The Com

pany incurred approximately $13 million in debt issuance

costs which are included in other ossets on the consoli

dated statements of financial condition and are being

amortized over the terms of these notes

Carrying Value and Fair Value of Long-Term Borrowings

The carrying value and fair value estimated using an

applicable bond index at December 31 2009 of long-term

borrowings included the following

The carrying value and fair value estimated using an applicable bond index at December31 2008 of long-term

borrowings included the following

Dollar amounts in millions

Maturity amount

Unamortized discount

Carrying value

Fair value

2.25% 350% 625% 5.00% Total

notes notes notes notes long-term

Dollaramounts in millions due 2012 due 2014 due
2017

due 2019 borrowings

Maturity amount $500 $1000 $700 $3200

Unamortized discount

Carrying value $499 $999 $696 $997 $3191

Fair value $497 $987 $751 $987 $3222

$1000

625% Total

notes long-term

due 2017 Other borrowings

$700 $2 $702

$695 $2 $697

$655 $2 $657
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Operating Lease Commitments

Dollar amounts in millions

Year

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

Thereafter

Commitments

Investment Commitments

Dollar amounts in millions

Year of Expiration

2010

2011

2012

2014

Thereafter

Total

Contingencies

payments upon achieving certain investment advisory

revenue measures through December 31 2010 totaling

up to an additional $969 million in combination of cash

and stock The first contingent payment was paid in 2009

and the second contingent payment of up to $595 million

is payable in cash in 2011

Amount
During 2009 the Company determined the first contin

$135 gent payment to be $219 million of which $11 million

121 was previously paid in cash during 2008 Of the remaining

iii $208 million $156 million was paid in cash and $52 mil

108 Lion was paid in common stock or approximately 330000

90 shares based on price of $1 57.33 per share Quellos

538 may also be entitled to catch-up payment related to

103
the first contingent payment if certain performance mea
sures are met in 2011 as the value of the first contingent

payment was less than $374 million

In connection with the Impact Investing acquisition the

Company may be required to make several additional

contingent payments upon completion of certain operat

ing measures through 2010 totaling up to $12 million

Currently the payments are anticipated to be recorded as

employee compensation

On January31 2005 the Company closed the acquisition

of SSR the holding company of State Street Research

Management Company and SSR Realty Advisors Inc

renamed BlackRock Realty Advisors Inc Realty from

MetLife Inc MetLife for an adjusted purchase price

of $265 million in cash and 550000 shares of BlackRock

restricted common stock The stock purchase agreement

provides for two contingent payments For the first con

tingent payment MetLife received 32.5% of performance

fees earned as of March 31 2006 from large institu

tional real estate client In 2006 the Company incurred

and paid fee sharing expense of $34 million related to

this arrangement For the second contingent payment

on the fifth anniversary of the closing of the SSR Trans

action MetLife will receive an additional payment of

approximately $9 million based on the Companys
Amount

retained AUM associated with the MetLife defined

$70 benefit and defined contribution plans

11 Capital SupportAgreements

In December 2007 BlackRock entered into capital sup-

port agreements up to $100 million with two enhanced
173

cash funds These cap tat support agreements were

$311 backed by letters of credit issued under BlackRocks

revolving credit facility In December 2008 the capital

support agreements were modified to be up to $45 mil

lion and were no longer backed by the letters of credit

In January and May 2009 the capital support agreements

were terminated due to the closure of the related funds

During the six months ended June 30 2009 the Company

provided approximately $4 million of capital contribu

tions to the funds under the capital support agreements

At December31 2008 the derivative liability for the fair

value of the capital support agreements for the two

funds totaled approximately $18 million The fair value of

these liabilities increased and decreased as BlackRocks

obligation under the guarantee fluctuated based on the

fair value of the derivative Upon closure of the funds

The Company leases its primary office space under

agreements which expire through 2023 Future minimum

commitments under these operating leases are as follows

Rent expense and certain office equipment expense

under agreements amounted to $87 million $92 million

and $85 million for the years ended December31 2009

2008 and 2007 respectively

The above lease commitments incLude facilities which

currently are leased from Merrill Lynch related party

to BlackRock Future lease commitments on such leases

are $1 million per year in 2010 through 2014 and $3 mil

lion thereafter

The Company has certain investment commitments

relating primarily to funds of private equity funds real

estate funds and hedge funds Dates shown below

represent the expiration dates of the commitments

Amounts to be funded generally are callable at any point

prior to the expiration of the commitment The Company

has the following unfunded investment commitments

at December31 2009

2013

16

This amount excludes additional commitments made

by consolidated funds of funds to underlying third party

funds as third party non-controlling interest holders have

the legal obligation to fund the respective commitments

of such funds of funds

Contingent Payments Related to Business Acquisitions

On October 2007 the Company acquired the fund of

funds business of Quellos See Note Mergers and

Acquisitions for further discussion As part of this

transaction Quellos is entitled to receive two contingent
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the liability decreased $1 million while the change

in the liability was included in general and administra

tion expenses

Other Contingent Payments

The Company acts as the portfolio manager in series

of credit default swap transactions and has maximum

potential exposure of $17 million under credit default

swap between the Company and Citibank See Note

Derivatives and Hedging for further discussion of this

transaction and the related commitment

Legal Proceedings

From time to time BlackRock receives subpoenas or

other requests for information from various U.S federal

state governmental arid regulatory authorities in connec

tIon with certain industry-wide or other investigations

or proceedings It is BlackRocks policy to cooperate

fully with such inquiries The Company and certain of its

subsidiaries have been named as defendants in various

legal actions including arbitrations and other litigation

arising in connection with BlackRock activities Addi

tionally certain of the investment funds that the Company

manages are subject to lawsuits any cif which potentially

could harm the investment returns of the applicable fund

or result in the Company being liable to the funds for any

resulting damages

Management after consultation with legal counsel

currently does not anticipate that the aggregate liability

if any arising out of regulatory matter or lawsuits will

have material adverse effect on BlackRocks earnings

financial position or cash flows although at the pres

ent time management is not in position to determine

whether any such pending or threatened matters will

have material adverse effect on BlackRocks results of

operations in any future reporting period

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Indemnifications

In the ordinary course of business E3lackRock enter-s into

contracts pursuant to which it may agree to indemnify

third parties in certain circumstances he terms or

these indemnities vary from contract to contract

and the amount of indemnification liability if any

cannot be determined

Under the transaction agreement in the MLIM Trans

action the Company has agreed to indemnify Merrill

Lynch for losses it may incur arisinçr from any alleged

or actual breach failure to comply violation or other

deficiency with respect to any regulatory or fiduciary

requirements relating to the operation of BlackRocks

business any fees or expenses incurred or owed by

BlackRock to any brokers financial advisors or cornpa

rable other persons retained or employed by BlackRock

in connection with the MLIM Transaction and cortain

speciied tax ccvenants

Under the transaction agreement ir the BGI Transaction

the Company has agreed to indemnify Barclays for losses

it may incur arising from breach by the Company of

certain representations breach by the Company of any

covenant in the agreement liabilities of the entities

acquired in the transaction other than liabilities assumed

by Barclays or or which it is providing indemnification

and certain taxes

Management believes that the likelihood of any liabil

ity arising under these indemnification provisions

remote Management cannot estimate any potential

maximum exposure due both to the remoteness ci any

potential claims and the fact that items that would he

included within any such calculated claim would be

beyond the control of E3lackRock Consequently no

liability
has been recorded on the consolidated state

ments of financial condition

The components of the Companys stock-based compensation expense are comprised of the following

Year ended December 31

Dollar amounts in millions

Stock-based compensation

Restricted stock and RSUs

Stock options

Long-term incentive plans funded by PNC

Total stock-based compensation

Stock Award and Incentive Plan

Pursuant to the BlackRock Inc 1999 Stock Award and

Incentive Plan the Award Plan options to purchase

shares of the Companys common stock at an exercise

price not less than the market value of BlackRocks

common stock on the date of grant in the form of stock

options restricted stock or RSUs may be granted to

employees and non-employee directors maximum of

2008

$209 $122

10

59

$278

17000000 shares of common stock are authorized for

issuance under the Award Plan Of -his amount 2737416

shares remain available for future awards at Decern

ber 31 2009 Upon exercise of employee stock options

the issuance of restricted stock or the vesting of RSUs
the Company issues shares out of teasury to the

extent available

2009

$246

12

59

$317

2007

53

$188
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Stock Options

Stock option grants were made to certain employees

pursuant to the Award PLan in 1999 through 2003

Options granted have ten-year Life vest ratably over

periods ranging from two to five years and become

Outstanding at

December31 2006

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited

December 31 2007

Exercised

Forfeited

December31 2008

Exercised

Forfeited

December 31 20091

exercisabLe upon vesting Prior to the January 2007

grant described below the Company had not granted

any stock options since 2003 Stock option activity for

the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 is

summarized beLow

Weighted average

exercise price

$36.90

$167.76

$36.96

$37.36

At December31 260 approximately 2.6 mdlion options were vested or are expected to vest

On January 31 2007 the Company awarded options to

purchase 1545735 shares of BLackRock common stock

to certain executives as Long-term incentive compensa
tion The options wilt vest on September 29 2011 as

the Company had actuaL GAAP earnings per share in

excess of $5.20 in 2009 The options have strike price of

$1 67.76 which was the cLosing price of the shares on the

grant date Fair vaLue as calcuLated in accordance with

modified Black-Scholes modeL was approximateLy

$45.88 per option The fair vaLue of the options is being

amortized over the vesting period as exceeding the per

formance hurdles was deemed probabLe of occurring

Assumptions used in calcuLating the grant-date fair

vaLue for the stock options issued in January 2007 were

as foLLows

Exercise price

Expected term

Expected volatiLity

Dividend yieLd

Risk-Free interest rate

The Companys expected option term was derived

using the mathematicaL average between the

earliest vesting date and the option expiration date

in accordance with ASC 718 The Companys expected

stock volatiLity assumption was based upon historicaL

stock price fLuctuations of BLackRocks common

stock The dividend yield assumption was derived

using estimated dividends over the expected term

and the stock price at the date of grant The risk free

interest rate is based on the U.S Treasury yieLd at

date of grant

The aggregate intrinsic vaLue of options exercised

during the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and

2007 was $63 miLLion $113 miLLion and $268 miLLion

respectiveLy

Stock options outstanding and exercisabLe at December 31 2009 are as foLlows

Exercise

prices

share

$37.36

$43.31

$167.76

We
ig

hted

average

Options remaining

outstanding life

2.79

0.96

7.09

4.74

Weigh ted

average

exercise

price

$37.36

$43.31

$167.76

$98.59 1605800

Options ExercisabLe

Weighted

average

remaining

Life

2.79

0.96

Aggregate

intrinsic

vaLue of

exercisable

shares

$255

18

$273

FiscaL year 2008 incLuded cumuLative adjustment to the

estimated forfeiture rate for unvested stock options as

resuLt of additionaL data on actuaL forfeiture activity

As of December31 2009 the Company had $21 miLLion

in unrecognized stock-based compensation expense

reLated to unvested stock options The unrecognized

compensation cost is expected to be recognized over

remaining weighted-average period of 1.8 years

Restricted Stock and RSUs

Pursuant to the Award PLan restricted stock grants and

RSUs may be granted to certain empLoyees Restricted

Shares under

option

4457669

545735

3000

4101165 $86.19

$36.36

298635 $167.76

3140517 $88.82

490617 $34.92

$167.76

2641836 $98.59

$167.76

7.335

24.5%

.0%4.44%

8%

Options Outstanding

Do//ar amounts in mt//tons

Weighted

average

Options exercise

exercisable price

1309300

96500

1236036

2641836

1309300

96500

$37.36

$43.31

$37.77 2.66
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stock was issued for stock awards prior to 2006 RSUs

were issued for the majority of grants in 2006 2007 2008

and 2009 These restricted shares and RSUs vest over

periods ranging from one to five years and are expensed

on the straight-Line method over the requisite service

period for each separateLy vesting porlion of the award as

if the award was in-substance muLtipLe awards Prior to

2009 the Company awarded restricted stock and RSUs

with nonforfeitabLe dividend equivalent rights Restricted

stock and RSUs awarded in 2009 are not considered

participating securities as dividend equivalents are

subject to forfeiture prior to vesting of the award

Restricted stock and RSU activity for the years ended

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 is summarized beLow

Outstanding at

December 31 2006

Granted

Converted

Forfeited

December 31 2007

Granted

Converted

Forfeited

December31 2008

Granted

Converted

Forfeited

December31 200911

At December 31 2009 approximately 4.9 million awards are expected to vest

Unvested restricted

stock and units

151 5890

2551913

2741 64

84631

3709008

1618161

468046

70

4603953

1869849

21 8430

5360463

Weighted average

grant date fair value

$130.49

$16764

$104 15

$159.95

$158.01

$201.80

$146.69

$1 63.64

$1 74.24

$118.43

$17853

$1 57.21

$1 54.75

On January 25 2007 the Company issued approximately

901200 RSUs to employees in conjunction with their

annuaL incentive compensation awards The RSU awards

vest over three years through January 2010 The vaLue of

the RSUs was caLcuLated using BlackRocks cLosing stock

price on the date of grant or $1 69.70 The grant date fair

value of the RSUs is being amortized into earnings on the

straight-Line method over the requisite service period

net of expected forfeitures for each separately vesting

portion of the award as if the award was in substance

multipLe awards In addition in Januay 2007 the Com

pany granted 1559022 of RSUs as long-term incentive

compensation which wilL be funded by shares currently

heLd by PNC

In January 2008 and 2009 the Company granted 295633

and 23417 RSUs respectively as Long-term incentive

compensation which wiLl be partialLy funded by shares

currently heLd by PNC see Long-Term Incentive Plans

Funded by PNC beLow The awards cLiff vest five years

from the date of grant

In January 2008 and 2009 the Company granted

1212759 and 1789685 RSUs respectiveLy to empLoyees

as part of annuaL incentive compensaion under the

Award PLan that vest ratabLy over three years from the

date of grant

At December 31 2009 there was $291 million of totaL

unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested

restricted stock and RSUs As of December 31 2009

the unrecognized compensation cost is expected to be

recognized over remaining weighted average period of

1.6 years

In January 2010 the Company granted the folLowing

awards under the Award PLan

846884 RSUs to empLoyees as part of annuaL incentive

compensation that vest ratabLy over three years from

the date of grant

25631 RSUs to empLoyees that cLiff vest on Janu

ary 31 2012 Awards to certain individuals require

that BLackRock has actuaL GAAP earnings per share

of at least $6.13 in 2010 or $6 50 in 2011 or has

attained an aLternative performance hurdLe based

on the Companys earnings per share growth rate

versus certain peers over the term of the awards

The RSUs may not be sold before the one-year

anniversary of the vesting date

1497222 RSUs to employees that vest 50% on both

January31 2013 and 2014 Awards to certain individ

uals require that BlackRock has actuaL GAAP earnings

per share of at least $6.13 in 2010 or $6.50 in 2011 or

has attaineo an aLternative performance hurdLe based

on the Companys earnings per
Ehare growth rate

versus certain peers over the term of the awards

124575 shares of restricted common stock to

employees that vest in trenches on January 31 2010

2011 and 2012 The restricted common stock may

not be sold before the one-year anniversary of each

vesting date

Long-Term Incentive Plans Funded by PNC

Under share surrender agreement PNC committed to

provide up to 4000000 shares of BLackRock stock held

by PNC to fund certain BlackRock Long-term incentive

pLans LTIP In February 2009 the share surrender

agreement was amended for PNC to provide BLackRock

series non-voting participating preferred stock to fund

the remaining committed shares

The BLackRock Inc 2002 Long-Term Retention and

Incentive PLan the 2002 LTIP Awards permitted

the grant of up to $240 million in deferred compensa

tion awards of which the Company previoLisly granted

approximateLy $233 milLion ApproximateLy $208 milLion

of the 2002 LTIP Awards were paid in January 2007 The

2002 Awards were payable approximateLy 16 7% in

cash and the remainder in BLackRock stock contrbuted

by PNC and distributed to plan parlicipants Approxi

mateLy $6 milLion of previousLy issLied 2002 LTIP Awards

wilL resuLt in the settLement of BLackRock shares heLd by



BLACKROCK 103 NOTES

PNC through 2010 at conversion price approximating

the market price on the settlement date The fair vaLue

of the remaining 2002 LTIP Awards are accrued prior to

settlement over the remaining service period in accrued

compensation and benefits on the consolidated state

ments of financial condition

The settlement of the 2002 LTIP Awards in January 2007

resulted in the surrender by PNC of approximately mil

Lion shares of BLackRock stock Under the terms of the

2002 LTIP Awards employees elected to put approxi

mateLy 95% of the stock portion of the awards back to

the Company at total fair market value of approxi

mately $166 million On the payment date the Company

recorded capital contribution from PNC for the amount

of shares funded by PNC

For the shares not put back to the Company no dilu

tion resulted from the delivery of stock pursuant to the

awards since they were funded by shares held by PNC
and were issued and outstanding at December 31 2006

Put elections made by employees were accounted for as

treasury stock repurchases and are accretive to the Com
panys earnings per share The shares repurchased were

retained as treasury stock

During 2007 the Company granted additional Long-term

incentive awards out of the Award Plan of approximately

1.6 milLion RSUs that wiLL be settled using BlackRock

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

shares held by PNC in accordance with the share

surrender agreement The RSU awards will vest on

September 29 2011 the end of the service condition as

BlackRock had actual GAAP earnings per share in excess

of $5.20 in 2009 The value of the RSUs was calculated

using BlackRocks closing stock price on the date of

grant The grant date fair value of the RSUs is being

amortized as an expense on the straight-Line method over

the vesting period net of expected forfeitures The maxi

mum value of awards that may be funded by PNC prior to

the earlier of September 29 2011 or the date the perfor

mance criteria are met is approximately $271 million all

of which has been granted as of December 31 2009

Subsequent to September 29 2011 the remaining com
mitted PNC shares of approximately 1.3 million would

be available to fund future long-term incentive awards

Employee Stock Purchase Plan ESPPI

Effective January 2007 the terms of the amended ESPP

allow eligible employees to purchase the Companys

common stock at 95% of the fair market value on the last

day of each three-month offering period In accordance

with ASC 718-10 CompensationStock Compensation

the Company does not record compensation expense

related to employees purchasing shares under the

amended ESPP

Deferred Compensation Plans

Voluntary Deferred Compensation Plan

Effective January 2002 the Company adopted Voluntary

Deferred Compensation Plan VDCP which allows

participants to elect to defer between 1% and 100% of

that portion of the employees annual incentive compen
sation not mandatorily deferred under the Involuntary

Deferred Compensation Plan tIDCP The participants

must specify deferral period of one three five or ten

years The Company funds the obligation through the

establishment of rabbi trust on behalf of the partici

pants in the plan

Involuntary Deferred Compensation Plan

Effective January 2002 the Company adopted an IDCP

for the purpose of providing deferred compensation and

retention incentives to key officers and employees The

IDCP provided for mandatory deferral of up to 15%

of annual incentive compensation For annual incen

tive awards for fiscal years prior to 2005 the mandatory

deferral was matched by BLackRock in an amount equal

to 2O% of the deferral for employees with total compen
sation above certain Levels The matching contribution

related to the mandatory deferral vests on the third

anniversary of the deferral date The Company funds the

obligation through rabbi trust established on behalf

of the participants in the plan No mandatory deferrals

under the IDCP have been made since the annual incen

tive awards for fiscal year 2004

During 2008 the IDCP was Liquidated and all assets were

distributed to the existing participants

Rabbi Trust

The rabbi trust established for the IDCP and VDCP
with assets totaling $57 million and $49 million as of

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively is reflected in

investments on the Companys consolidated statements

of financial condition Such investments are classified

as trading and other investments The corresponding lia

bility balance of $57 million and $41 million as of Decem

ber 31 2009 and 2008 respectively is reflected in the

Companys consolidated statements of financial condition

as accrued compensation and benefits Earnings in the

rabbi trust including unrealized appreciation or depre

ciation are reflected as non-operating income or Loss

and changes in the corresponding liability are reflected

as employee compensation and benefits expense in the

consolidated statements of income

Other Deferred Compensation Plans

The Company has additional compensation plans for the

purpose of providing deferred compensation and reten

tion incentives to certain employees The final value of the

deferred amount to be distributed
upon vesting is associ

ated with the returns of certain investment funds The

Liability balances for these plans were $38 million and $9

million as of December31 2009 and 2008 respectively

and are reflected in the Companys statements of finan

cial condition as accrued compensation and benefits

SSR and Realty had deferred compensation plans which

allowed participants to elect to defer portion of their

annual incentive compensation or commissions for either

fixed term or until retirement and invest the funds in
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specified investments SER has funded portion of the

obligation through the purchase of company-owned Life

insurance CDLI policies to the benefit of SSR The

COLt assets are carried at fair value on the consolidated

statement of financial condition and at December 31

2009 and 2008 the value of the CDLI assets was $1 mil

lion and $9 million respectively which were recorded

in other assets Chanqes in the cash surrender value of

the CDLI policies are recorded to non-operating income

in the consolidated statements of income In addition

the Company has reccirded related obligation to repay

the deferred incentive compensation plus applicable

earnings to employees which totaled $1 million and

$9 million which were recorded in acci-ued compensation

and benefits on the consolidated statement of financial

condition as of December 31 2009 and 2008 respectiveLy

Changes in the Companys obligation under these plans

as result of appreciation of the underlying investments

in an employees account are recorded as compensation

and benefits expense in the consolidated statements

of income Both plans no longer allow participants to

defer portion of their annual incentive compensation

or commissions

Defined Contribution Plans

BlackRock Retirement Savings Plan

Certain of the Companys employees participate in the

BlackRock Retirement Savings Plan BRSP Under

the BRSP employee contributions of up to 6% of eligible

compensation as defined by the plan and subject to

Internal Revenue Code Limitations are matched by the

Company at 50% As part of the BRSP the Company also

will make an annual retirement contribution on behalf

of each eligible participant equal to nc less than 3% of

eligible compensation plus an additional amount deter

mined in the discretion of the Company not to exceed

2/o of eligible compensation for total contribution of

no more than 5% of eligible compensation The BRSP

expense for the Company was $24 million $33 million

and $31 million for the years ended December 31 2009

2008 and 2007 respetively Contributions to the BRSP

are made in cash and no new investments in BtackRock

stock or matching contributions of stcck are available in

the BRSP

BGI 401k Savings Plan

The Company assumed 401k Plan covering employees

of BGI the BGI Plan as result of he BGI Transaction

As part of the Barclays Global Investors Plan employee

contributions are matched at 200% of participants

pre-tax contributions up to 2/a of an employees base

salary and matched 00% of the next 2% of base salary

as defined by the plan and subject to Internal Revenue

Code limitations The maximum matching contribution

participant can receive is an amount equal to 6% of the

base salary The BGI Plan expense was immaterial to

the Companys financial statements for the year ended

December 31 2009

BG/ Retirement Plan

The Company assumed defined conribution money pur

chase pension plan BGI Retirement Plan as result

of the BGI Transaction All salaried employees of BGI and

its participating affiliates who are US residents and on

the US payroll are eligible to participate For participants

earning less than $100000 in base salary the Company

contributes 6/a of participants total compensation

base salary and performance bonus up to $100000 For

participants earning $100000 or more in base salary the

Company contributes 6% of participants base salary up

to $245000 These contributions ars 25% vested once the

participant has completed two years of service and then

vest at rate of 2S% fcir each additional year of service

completed Employees with five or mom years of service

under the BGI Retirement Plan are 100% vested in their

entire balance The BGI Retirement Plan expense was

immaterial to the Companys financial statements for the

year ended December 31 2009

BlackRock Group Personal Pension Plan

BlackRock Investment Management UK Limited BIMl
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company contributes

to the BlackRock Group Personal Pension Plan defined

contribution plan for all employees of BIM BIM contrib

utes between 6/a and 5% of each cmployees eligible

compensation

Research and Realty Plans

The Company assumed two 401k Plans covering

employees of SSR and Realty the Research Plan and

Realty Plan respectively as result of the SSR Trans

action Effective with the closing of the SSR Transaction

contributions ceased to all participant in the Research

Plan and selected participants in the Realty Plan and

the Research Plan was closed to nEw participants All

participants for which contributions ceased in either the

Research Plan or Realty Plan participated in the ISP

through September 30 2006 and became participants of

the BRSP thereafter For all employees who were active

participants in the Realty Plan employee contributions of

up to 3% of eligible compensation as well as an addi

tional 50% of the next 2% of eligible compensation sub

ject to Internal Revenue Code limitations were matched

by the Company

Effective November 2007 the Company merged the

assets of the Research Plan and select participant

accounts of the Realty Plan into thE BRSP

Defined Benefit Plans

Prior to the BGI Transaction the Ccimpany had sev

eral defined benefit pension plans in Japan Germany

Luxembourg and Jersey All accrued benefits under

these defined benefit plans are currently frozen and the

plans are closed to new participants In 2008 the defined

benefit pension values in Luxembourg were transferred

into new defined contribution plan for such employees

remciving future liabilities Otherwise participant benefits

under the plans will not change with salary increases or

additional years of service The unfunded liabilities are

immaterial to the Companys 2009 and 2008 consoLidated

statements of financial condition

Through the BGI Transaction the Company assumed

defined benefit pension plans in Japan and Germany

the Japan Plan and the Germans Plan which are

closed to new participants At December 31 2009
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the plan assets for these plans were approximately

$10 million and the unfunded obligations were less than

$3 million which were recorded in accrued compensation

and benefits in the consolidated statements of financial

condition Benefit payments for the next five years and in

aggregate for the five years thereafter are not expected

to be material

Defined benefit plan assets for the Japan Plan of approxi

mately $7 million are invested using total return invest

ment approach whereby mix of equity securities debt

securities and other investments are used to preserve

asset values diversify risk and achieve the target invest

ment return benchmark nvestment strategies and asset

allocations are based on consideration of plan Liabilities

and the funded status of the plan Investment perfor

mance and asset allocation are measured and monitored

on an ongoing basis The current target allocations for the

plan assets are 39-44% for equity securities 52-54% for

fixed income securities and 4-7% for cash Equity securi

ties include U.S and international equity securities and

fixed income securities include long-duration bond funds

Defined benefit plan assets for the Germany Plan of

approximately $3 million are invested in balanced

portfolio comprised of two major components an equity

portion and fixed income portion The expected role of

defined benefit plan equity investments is to maximize

the long-term real growth of fund assets while the role of

fixed income investments is to generate current income

provide for more stable periodic returns and provide

some protection against prolonged decline in the

market value of equity investments

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

Prior to the BGI Transaction the Company had require

ments to deliver post-retirement medical benefits to

closed population based in the United Kingdom For

the years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007

expenses for these benefits were immaterial to the

Companys consolidated financial statements

Through the BGI Transaction the Company assumed

requirement to deliver post-retirement medical benefits

to closed population of former BGI employees in the

United States and the United Kingdom

The post-retirement medical plan costs are developed

from actuarial valuations which include key assumptions

including the discount rate and health care cost trends

Material changes in retiree medical plan benefit costs

may occur in the future due to changes in these assump
tions changes in the number of plan participants and

increases in the cost of healthcare

Accrued post-retirement costs are included in accrued

compensation and benefits in the consolidated state

ments of financial condition At December 31 2009

the accumulated benefit obligation was approximately

$14 million and is unfunded For the one month ended

December 31 2009 expenses for these benefits were

immaterial to the Companys consolidated financial

statements Benefit payments for the next five years

and in aggregate for the five years thereafter are not

expected to be material The estimated impact of one

percentage-point change in the discount rate would be

change of less than $1 million on 2009 pension expense

and would change the projected benefit obligation by less

than $3 million

Determination of Related Parties

As result of the BGI Transaction Barclays acquired

approximately 19.8% of the total capital stock of

BlackRock See Note Mergers and Acquisitions

for further discussion The Company has considered

Barclays along with its affiliates to be related parties in

accordance with ASC 850-10 Related PartyDisciosures

ASC 850-1 since the closing of the BGI Transaction

based on its level of ownership At December31 2009

Barclays owned approximately 4.8% of the Companys

common stock and held approximately 9.8% of the

total capital stock

As result of the MLIM Transaction in 2006 the Company

considered Merrill Lynch along with its affiliates to be

related parties since the closing of the MLIM Trans

action based on its level of ownership At December 31

2009 Merrill Lynch owned approximately 3.7% of the

Companys voting common stock and held approximately

34.2% of the total capital stock

For the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

the Company considered PNC along with its affiliates

to be related parties based on the level of its ownership

of BlackRock capital stock At December31 2009 PNC

owned approximately 35.2% of the Companys voting

common stock and held approximately 24.5A of the total

capital stock

For the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

the Company considers its registered investment compa
nies which include mutual funds and exchanged traded

funds to be related parties as result of the Companys

advisory relationship In addition equity method invest

ments are considered related parties in accordance with

ASC 850-10 due to the Companys influence over the

financial and operating policies of the investee
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Investment Advisory and Administration Fees from Related Parties

Revenues for services provided by the Company to these and other related parties are as follows

Dollaramounts in millions

Investment advisory administration fees and

securities lending revenue

Merrill Lynch and affiliates

PNC and affiliates

Anthracite Capital Inc

Registered investment companies

Equity method investees

Other

Total investment advisory and administration fees

Investment advisory performance fees

method investees

BlackRock Solutions and advisory

Merrill Lynch and affiliates

PNC and affiliates

Equity method investees

Other

Total BlackRock Solutions and advisory

Other revenue

Merrill Lynch and affiliates

PNC and affiliates

Barclays and affiliates

Equity method investees

Other

Total other revenue

Total revenue from related parties

The Company provides investment advisory and admin

istration services to its open- and closed-end funds and

other commingled or pooled funds and separate accounts

in which related parties invest In addition the Company

provides investment advisory and administration services

to Merrill Lynch PNC and its affiliates for fee based on

AUM Further the Company provides risk management

services to PNC and Merrill Lynch The Company con

tracts with Merrill Lynch for various mutual fund distribu

tion and shareholder servicing to be performed on behalf

of certain non-U.S funds managed by the Company

Dollar amounts in millions

Expenses with related parties

Distribution and servicing costs

Merrill Lynch and affiliates

PNC and affiliates

Other

General and administration expenses

Merrill Lynch and affiliates

Barclays and affiliates

Anthracite Capital Inc

Other registered investment companies

Support of two private sponsored

enhanced cash fundsOther

Termination of closed-end fund administration and

servicing arrangements with Merr II Lynch

Total expenses with related parties

Year ended December 31

The Company records its investment advsory and admin

istration fees net of retrocessions therefore retrocessions

are not included in the table above Such retrocession

arrangements for the years ended December 31 2009

2008 and 2007 were $85 million $118 million and

$118 million respectively

Aggregate Expenses for Transactions with Related Parties

Aggregate expenses included in the consolidated state

ments of income for transactions vith related parties

are as follows

Year ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

$349 $464 $444

19 30 23

368 495 470

13 48

31

31 21

10 36

73 93

128

2009 2008 2007

$48 $76 $89

14

2563 2864 2542

2616 2962 2640

35

11

21 19

31 31

13 10 16

15

34 13 17

$2716 $3006 $2663

$441 $539 $691
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Certain Agreements and Arrangements with

Merrill Lynch and PNC

Global Distribution Agreement

On September 29 2006 BlackRock entered into global

distribution agreement with Merrill Lynch The global dis

tribution agreement provides framework under which

Merrill Lynch provides distribution and servicing of client

investments in certain BtackRock investment advisory

products Pursuant to the global distribution agreement

Merrill Lynch has agreed to cause each of its distributors

to continue distributing BlackRock covered products and

covered products of the former MLIM Business that it

distributed as of February 15 2006 on the same eco
nomic terms as were in effect on February 15 2006 or as

the parties otherwise agree For new covered products

introduced by BlackRock to Merrill Lynch for distribu

tion that do not fall within an existing category type or

platform of covered products distributed by Merrill Lynch

the Merritt Lynch distributors must be offered the most

favorable economic terms offered by BlackRock to other

distributors of the same product If covered product that

does not fall within an existing category type or platform

of covered products distributed by Merrill Lynch becomes

part of group or program of similar products distributed

by the Merrill Lynch distributors some of which are spon
sored by managers other than BlackRock the economic

terms offered by Merrill Lynch distributors to BlackRock

for the distribution of such covered products must be at

least as favorable as the most favorable economic terms

to which any such product is entitled

July 2008 Changes to Stockholder and

Global Distribution Agreements

In July 2008 the Company entered into an amended and

restated stockholder agreement and an amended and

restated global distribution agreement with Merrill Lynch

These changes to the stockholder agreement with Merrill

Lynch among other items provide Merrill Lynch with

additional
flexibility

to form or acquire asset managers

substantially all of the business of which is devoted to

non-traditional investment management strategies such

as short selling leverage arbitrage specialty finance

and quantitatively-driven structured trades ii expand

the definition of change in control of Merrill Lynch to

include the disposition of two-thirds or more of its Global

Wealth Investment Management business iii extend

the general termination date to the later of July 16 2013

or the date Merrill Lynchs beneficial ownership of

BlackRock voting securities falls below 20% and

iv clarify certain other provisions in the agreement

The changes in the global distribution agreement in rela

tion to the prior agreement among other things ii pro

vide for an extension of the term to five years from the

date of change in control of Merrill Lynch to January

2014 following Bank of Americas acquisition of Merrill

Lynch and one automatic 3-year extension if certain

conditions are satisfied ii strengthen the obligations

of Merrill Lynch to achieve revenue neutrality across

the range of BlackRock products distributed by Merrill

Lynch if the pricing or structure of particular products

is required to be changed iii obligate Merrill Lynch to

seek to obtain distribution arrangements for BlackRock

products from buyers of any portion of its distribution

business on the same terms as the global distribution

agreement for period of at least years and iv restrict

the manner in which products managed by alternative

asset managers in which Merrill Lynch has an interest

may be distributed by Merrill Lynch

The total amount expensed by BlackRock during 2009

2008 and 2007 related to Merrill Lynch distribution and

servicing of products covered by the global distribution

agreement including mutual funds separate accounts

liquidity funds alternative investments and insurance

products was approximately $337 million $456 million

and $437 million respectively

In connection with the closings under the exchange

agreements on February 27 2009 BlackRock entered

into second amended and restated stockholder

agreement with Merrill Lynch and an amended and

restated implementation and stockholder agreement

with PNC and third amendment to the share surren

der agreement with PNC See Note 19 Capital Stock for

further discussion

The changes contained in the amended and restated

stockholder agreement with Merrill Lynch in relation to

the prior agreement among other things revised the

definitions of Fair Market Value Ownership Cap and

Significant Stockholder and ii amended or supple

mented certain other definitions and provisions therein

to incorporate series preferred stock and series

preferred stock respectively The changes contained in

the amended and restated stockholder agreement with

PNC in relation to the prior agreement among other

things revised the definitions of Fair Market Value

Ownership Cap Ownership Percentage Owner

ship Threshold and Significant Stockholder and

ii amended or supplemented certain other provisions

therein to incorporate series preferred stock and

series preferred stock respectively

The amendment to the share surrender agreement with

PNC provided for the substitution of series preferred

stock for the shares of common stock subject to the share

surrender agreement

June 2009 Changes to SfockholderAgreements

In connection with the BGI Transaction certain additional

amendments were made to the amended and restated

stockholder agreements with Merrill Lynch and PNC

The amended and restated stockholder agreement with

Merrill Lynch was changed to among other things

amend or supplement certain definitions and pro

visions therein to incorporate series participating

preferred stock ii amend the provision relating to the

composition of BlackRocks Board of Directors and

iii add certain provisions relating to the U.S Bank

Holding Company Act

The amended and restated stockholder agreement with

PNC was changed to among other things revise the

definitions of Ownership Cap and Ownership Thresh

old ii amend or supplement certain other definitions

and provisions therein to incorporate series participat

ing preferred stock iii provide that none of the trans

fer restriction provisions set forth in the amended and

restated stockholder agreement with PNC shall apply to

the shares purchased by PNC as part of the financing for

the BGI Transaction iv amend the provision relating to

the composition of BlackRocks Board of Directors and

provide that the amended and restated stockholder

agreement with PNC shall terminate upon the later of

the five year anniversary of the amended and restated

stockholder agreement with PNC and the first date
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on which PNC and its affiLiates beneficiaLLy own tess than

5% of the outstanding BtackRock capitaL stock subject to

certain other conditions specified therein

Ot her Agreements

On September 29 2006 BlackRock er.tered into

transition services agreement with Merrill Lynch and

its controLLed affiLiates to aLLow BLackRock to transition

from relying on MerrilL Lynch for various functions for

the former MLIM Business and to allow Merritt Lynch

to transition from reLying on the former MLIM Business

for various functions The pricing for such services is

required to be consistent with historical practices The

totaL amount expensed by BtackRock br the years ended

December31 2009 2008 and 2007 relating to the transi

tion services agreement with MerrilL Lynch was approxi

mately $3 miLLion $1 miLLion and $5 miLLion respectiveLy

In connection with the MLIM Transaction MerriLL Lynch

has agreed that it wiLL provide reimbursement to

BLackRock for empLoyee incentive awards issued to

former MLIM employees who became BtackRock

empLoyees subsequent to the MUM Transaction Reim

bursements wiLL amount to 5O% of the total amount of

awards to former MLIM empLoyees between $100 miLLion

and $200 miLLion The Company is entitLed to invoice

MerriLL Lynch foLLowing its determination of the portion

of awards entitLed to reimbursement br given caLendar

year Through January 2007 the Company had issued

totaL eLigibLe incentive compensation to quaLified

employees in excess of $200 miLLion In August 2009

MerriLL Lynch reimbursed $25 milLion to BtackRock

for employee incentive awards issued to former MLIM

empLoyees who became BtackRock empLoyees subse

quent to the MLIM Transaction Upon receipt the

reimbursement was recorded as capitaL contribution

Effective September 29 2006 the Company Leases certain

office buiLdings from MerriLL Lynch The Lease agreements

expire by 2018 Rent expense
of $2 Ition $5 miLlion and

$18 miLLion for the years ended December 31 2009 2008

and 2007 respectiveLy was recorded reLated to office

buiLdings Leased from MerriLL Lynch

MerriLL Lynch and certain of its affiLiates have been

engaged by the Company to provide recordkeeping

administration and trustee services to the BRSP The

compensation to MerriLl Lynch and its affiLiates for

these services paid by the Company was not materiaL

Termination of Closed-end Fund and

Servicing Arrangements

On September 28 2007 the Company insourced certain

cLosed-end fund administration and servicing arrange

ments in place with MerriLl Lynch In connection with

this insourcing the Company terminated 40 agreements

with MerriLl Lynch with originaL terms ranging from 3D to

40 years and made one-time payment to MerriLL Lynch

of $128 miLLion on October31 2007 The payment is

reported as termination of cLosed-end fund administra

tion and servicing arrangements on the consolidated

statement of income As result of these terminations

MerriLL Lynch was discharged of any further duty to pro

vide the services and BlackRock was discharged from any

further payment obLigation

Certain Agreements and Arrangements with Barclays

Barclays Amended and Restated

Stock Purchase Agreement

On November 30 2009 BLackRock Barclays Bank PLC

and BarcLays PLC Limited purposes entered into

an Amended and Restated Stock Purchase Agreement

Amended and Restated Stock Purchase Agree

ment The Amended and Restated Stock Purchase

Agreement amended and restated lhe terms of the

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of June 16 2009

by and among BlackRock BarcLays and Barclays PLC

Limited purposes which provided for the acquisition

by BLackRock of 801 from BarcLays The revised terms

reLate among other things to the amount of cash and

capitaL required to be heLd by the various BGl entities

at the cLosing of the acquisition and to the post-closing

purchase price adjustment mechanism On December

2009 BLackRock completed its acquisition of BGI pursuant

to the Amended and Restated Stock Purchase Agreement

Barclays StockholderAgreement

In connection with the compLetion of its acquisition ot

801 BlackRock entered into Stockhoder Agreement

dated as of December 2009 Barclays Stockholder

Agreement with BarcLays and BarcLays BR Holdings

SarI HoLdings and together with Barclays the

Barclays Parties Pursuant to the terms of the Barclays

StockhoLder Agreement the Barclays Parties agreed

among other things to certain transter and voting restric

tions with respect to shares of BlackRock common stock

and preferred stock owned by them ann their aftiliates to

Limits on the abiLity of the BarcLays Parties and their atfili

ales to acquire additionaL shares of BLackRock common

stock and preferred stock and to certain other restric

tions In addition the BarcLays Stockholder Agreement

contains certain provisions reLatinç to the composition ot

BLackRocks board of directors including requirement

that BLackRocks board must consist 01 not more than

19 directors with two directors designated by the

BarcLays Parties

Other Agreements

BarcLays and certain of its affiliates have been engaged

by the Company to provide the use of certain indices

for certain BLackRock investments funds and to provide

indemnification to cLients reLated to potential Losses

in connection with lending of client securities For the

year ended December31 2009 such amounts were

not material

Receivables and Payables with Related Parties

Due from reLated parties was $189 million and $309

milLion at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

and primarily represented tax indemnification asset

due from Barclays at December31 2009 receivables tor

investment advisory and administration services provided

by BLackRock and other receivables from certain nvest

ment products managed by BLackRock Due from related

parties at December31 2009 incLuded $72 million of

tax indemnification asset due trom Barclays $57 million

due from certain funds $48 million in receivables trom

Bank of America/Merrill Lynch PNC arid Barclays and
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$1 2.5 miLLion in Loan receivabLes from Anthracite Capital

Inc Anthracite see beLow Due from reLated parties at

December31 2008 included $200 million and $40 million

in Loan receivabLes and unsettLed redemptions respec

tiveLy from warehouse entity estabLished to Launch

certain private equity funds of funds and Anthracite see

below and $20 miLlion in receivables from MerriLl Lynch

and PNC

Accounts receivabLe at December 31 2009 and 2008

includes $492 milLion and $253 million respectiveLy

reLated to receivables from BLackRock mutual funds

and iShares for investment advisory and administra

tion services

Due to reLated parties was $439 milLion and $103 miLLion

at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectiveLy and primar

iLy represented payabLes and accrued LiabiLities under the

Merrill Lynch gLobal distribution agreement and assumed

LiabiLities from the BGI Transaction Due to related parties

at December 31 2009 included $330 million and $95 mil

Lion payable to BarcLays and MerriLL Lynch respectiveLy

The payabLe at December 31 2009 to Barclays incLuded

non-interest bearing notes that were assumed by

BLackRock at the close of the BGI Transaction reLated to

certain acquired tax receivables and other contractuaL

NET CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

items Due to related parties as of December31 2008

incLuded $78 miLlion payabLe to MerrilL Lynch and

$5 miLLion payabLe to PNC for fund distribution and

servicing costs

Loan Commitments with Anthracite

At December31 2009 the Company was committed to

provide financing of up to $60 miLLion untiL March 2010

to Anthracite speciaLty commerciaL reaL estate finance

company that is managed by subsidiary of BlackRock

The financing is coLlateralized by Anthracite pledging its

ownership interest in reaL estate debt investment fund

which is aLso managed by subsidiary of BLackRock

At December31 2009 $33.5 million of financing was

outstanding and remains outstanding as of March 10

2010 which is past its final maturity date of March

2010 At December31 2009 the value of the coLLateral

was estimated to be $1 2.5 milLion which resuLted in

$21 miLlion reduction in due from related parties on the

Companys consoLidated statement of financiaL condition

and an equal amount recorded in generaL and administra

tion expense in the year ended December31 2009 The

Company has no obLigation to Loan additionaL amounts to

Anthracite under this faciLity

The Company is required to maintain net capitaL in certain

regulated subsidiaries within number of jurisdictions

which is met in part by retaining cash and cash equiva

Lent investments in those jurisdictions As resuLt such

subsidiaries of the Company may be restricted in their

ability to transfer cash between different jurisdictions and

to their parents AdditionaLLy transfer of cash between

internationaL jurisdictions including repatriation to the

United States may have adverse tax consequences that

couLd discourage such transfers At December 31 2009

the Company was required to maintain approximately

$857 milLion in net capitaL at these subsidiaries including

BlackRock InstitutionaL Trust Company NationaL Asso

ciation BTC and is in compLiance with all appLicabLe

reguLatory minimum net capitaL requirements

Broker-Dealers

BLackRock Investments LLC and BLackRock Capital

Markets LLC BlackRock Execution Services and

BLackRock Fund Distribution Company are registered

broker-deaLers and wholly-owned subsidiaries of

BlackRock that are subject to the Uniform Net Capital

requirements under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

which requires maintenance of certain minimum net

capitaL leveLs

Banking Regulatory Requirements

BTC whoLly-owned subsidiary of the Company is

chartered as national bank whose powers are Limited

to trust activities BTC is subject to various regulatory

capitaL requirements administered by the FederaL banking

agencies FaiLure to meet minimum capital requirements

can initiate certain mandatory and possibLy additional

discretionary actions by regulators that if undertaken

couLd have direct materiaL effect on the Companys

consolidated financial statements Under the capitaL

adequacy guideLines and the regulatory framework

for prompt corrective action the Company must meet

specific capitaL guideLines that invoke quantitative

measures of the Companys assets liabiLities and

certain off-baLance sheet items as caLcuLated under

the reguLatory accounting practices BTCs capitaL

amounts and classification are also subject to quaLitative

judgments by the regulators about components risk

weightings and other factors

To be categorized as adequateLy capitaLized BTC must

maintain minimum TotaL risk-based Tier risk-based

capital to risk weighted assets and Tier Leverage

ratios capitaL to average assets as set forth in the

table below BTC has sufficient capital to be considered

adequateLy capitaLized
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CAPITAL STOCK

For capital

ade2uacy

puruose

Tobcv

ipitalizer1 ncier

prona

root On

prov

Ratio cunt Rub

Capital Stock Authorized

BlackRocks authorized common s-m $0.01 par value

was 500000000 shares at December 31 2009 At

December 31 2009 and 2008 BlackRock hod 20000005

series non-voting participating preferred shares

$0.01 par value authorized At December 31 2009

BlackRock had 50500300 series non-vot ng partici

pating preferred shams $0.01 par value authorized

At December 31 2009 EilackRock had 6000000

ser es non-voting participating preterred shares

$0.01 par value author zed At December 31 2009

BlackRock had 20OCO000 series non-voting part ci

pating preferred shares $0.01 par value authorized

Common Shares Held in Escrow

On October 2007 the Sompany acc uired the fund of

funds business ot Ocellos See Note Mergers and

Acquistions for further discussion The Company issued

1191785 shares of E3lackRock common stock that were

placed into an escrow account The common shares held

in escrow had no dilutive effect for In Apr 2008

280519 common shares were releasad to Due/los

accordance with the Duel/os asset porchase agreement

which resulted in an adjustment to the recognized pur

chase price and had dilutive effect in 2008 En November

2009 42326 additional common shares were released

and will have dilutive effect in 2009 The remaining

8689/10 common shares may have dilutive effect in

future periods based on the timing of the release of

shares from the escrow account in accordance with

the Quellos asset purchase agreement

February 2009 Capital Eichanges

On January 2009 Dank of America acquired Merrill

Lynch connection th th transat on BlackRock

entered into exchanqe agreements osith each of Mer

rill Lynch and PNC pursuant to wb cbr each agreed to

exchange portion of the BlackRock common stock it

held for an equal number of shares cf non voting par

tcipating preferred stock On February 27 2009 Merrill

Lynch exchanged ii 49865000 shares of BlackRocks

common stock for like number of shares of BlackRocks

series non-voting paricipating preferred stock and

ii 12604918 shares of ackR ks rios pri i-rr ed

stock for Ii ke number of sharcc of ser is ei rred

stock and PNC exchanged rj 820 shanco

BlackRocks cortrrnorr stork for ike of are

of series preferred stock end 800467 bar

BlackRockc cuimrnon stock for ke amber ors

of ackRock ser non-vo
ncj pa pat

preferred 5t0

Belcw is suirimdry dese ript or ot fbi cc cob ft

preferred stock isin the exchonqo

The series iron-cot ng par tiriput ng Pr
ferre ck

is non-voting except as other misc
Pr

ded cv it ph

ible low

part cipate ire div en3 or trs -era ral tr

the common stock

benefits from liquidat on pee fe ren $0

share and

is mandatorily convertible to Blacklioc core to

uoon transler to an ur relatert carty

The series iron-cot ng partic pat nq pr
nferre eck

non vot
rrg

exceat as otherw orded 0/

cable law

participate dividends on bus per erotic iua

the cornmon stock

benefits from quidatron pr etc-rem of $4 pci

share and orriy
onvortible to RIo kRock on mon

stock upon
the termination it the or- qation PNC

under to share surrender aoreemer th B10 kRock

Capital Stock Activities Related to BG/ Tansacton

In Jane 2009 the Coinparry sS i-4 to at

investor 213 713 shares of Bin kRor conrrn

stock at $140 oO er share Tin $200 nt lion
Inn

cci

cm tO issuinc was seP to OntO n/icr cc

purchase of BC 0cc Note -rce cc ii no

for further di usio

Ctn December 2009 pursuan to sep etc ot cc pro

cha agreements entered nt or Jui 11 21/ end

June 12 200 as amended RI kRo Cd ar

The following schedule provides BTCs regulatory capital amounts and ratios at December 31 20 mdl as

required capital amounts to be consicered well capitalized under prompt correct action provis no of er fion 38 the

Federal Deposit Insurance Act

Do/tar amounts in me lions

December 31 2009

Total Capital to Risk Weighted Asset

Tier capital to Risk Weighted Assets

Tier capital to Average Assets

Ratio Amount

Act cal

moo rat

$629

$629

$629

86.0%

86.0%

48.9%

$59 8.0%

$29 4.0/a

$51 4.0/o

$73 10.0%

$44 6.0%

$64 5.0%
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of 8637519 shares of common stock 5587232 shares

of series non-voting participating preferred stock and

3556188 shares of series non-voting participating

preferred stock coLlectiveLy the Financing Shares to

certain institutionaL investors including the saLe of the

3556188 shares of series non-voting participating

preferred stock to PNC each at price of $140.60 per

share The Company received approximateLy $2.5 biLlion

in totaL consideration from the sate of the Financing

Shares which was aLso used to fund the cash portion of

the purchase of BGI

In addition on December 2009 the Company issued

7647524 of series non-voting participating preferred

stock to BarcLays as part of the consideration for the

purchase of BGI

Below is summary description of the series preferred

stock issued in the sales to PNC and Barclays

The series non-voting participating preferred stock

is non-voting except as otherwise provided by appLi

cabLe Law

Escrow

Common Common

Shares Shares

January 12007 117381582

Net issuance of common

shares related to
employee

stock transactions

Issuance of common stock to

escrow agent in connection

with Queflos Transaction 1191785

PNC CliP capital
contribution

December 31 2007 18573367

Net issuance of common shares

related to employee
stock

transactions and convertible

debt conversions

Release of common stock from

escrow agent in connection

with Quettos Transaction

PNC LTIP
capital

contribution

December31 2008 118573367

Issuance ot shares to

institational invesfors 10771232

Issuance ot shares to Barclays 3031516

Issuance at common oh ares for

contingent
consideration 330361

Release of common stock to

escrow agent
in connection

with Quellos Transaction 42326

Net issuance of common shares

related to employee
stock

transactions and convertible

debt conversions 696788

Exchange
of

preferred
shares

series tsr series

Exchange
of common shares for

preferred shares series

Exchange of common shares for

preferred shares series 2889467

PNC LTIP capital contribution

December 31 2009 62776777 868940

participates in dividends on basis generally equal to

the common stock

benefits from Liquidation preference of $0.01 per

share and

was converted to series preferred stock 20 days

after an information statement in connection with the

Amended and Restated Purchase Agreement was

maiLed by the Company to holders of its common

stock See Note 25 Subsequent Events for further

discussion

Cash Dividends

During the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and

2007 the Company paid cash dividends of $3.12 per

common/preferred share or $422 miLLion $3.12 per

common/preferred share or $419 miLLion and $2.68 per

common/preferred share or $353 miLLion respectively

The Companys common and preferred shares issued and

outstanding and related activity consist of the foLlowing

1107577

12604918

67737000

2889.467

--

61896236 112817151 2889467 11203442

Preferred

Shares

Series

Shares Issued

Treasury Preferred Preferred Preferred

Common Shares Suares Shares

Shares Series Series Series

12604.918

617175

1322022 12604918

.-
617175

Shares Outstanding

Preferreo Preferred Preferred

Common Snares Shares Shares

Shares Sees Series Series

116408897 12604918

116059560 12604918

280519

Preferred

Shares

Series

976103 976103

280519

1260A918 117291110 12604718

5587232 3556188 10771232 5587232 3556188

26888001 7647254 3031516 26888001 7647254

330341

42326

410789

12604918 2604918

67737000

2.889467

111601 112817151 2889467 11203442



BLACKROCK 12 NOTES

RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

During the fourth quarter of 2008 the Company reduced

its workfurce globally by approximate.y 95 This action

was the result of cost cutting initiative designed to

streamline operations enhance competitiveness and

better position the Company in the asset management

marketplace The Company recorded pre-tax restruc

turing charge of approxirnatety $38 million $26 million

after-tax for the year ended December 31 2008 This

charge was comprised of $34 million of severance and

associated outplacemenl costs $3 of expenses

related to the accelerated amortization of previously

granted equity-based compensation swards and

$1 million of expenses related to legal services for

the year ended December 31 2008

During the three months ended March 31 2009 the

Company continued to reduce its workforce globally This

action was the result of business reerigineering efforts

designed to streamline operations enhance competi

tiveness and better position the Company the asset

management marketptace The Company recorded

pre-tax restructuring charge of $22 million $14 million

after-tax for the three rrionths ended March 31 2009

This charge was comprised of $15 million of severance

and associated outplacement costs $4 million of property

costs associated with the lease payments for the remav

ing term in excess of the estimated subLease proceeds

and $3 million of expenses related to the accelerated

amortization of previcusly granted stock-based mpen

sation awards

The following table presents rollforward of the om

panys restructuring Liability wb cb included within

othe- liabilities on the Companys consolidated state

ments of financial condihon at December 31 200

Do//ar amounts in mi//ions

Liability as of December 31 2007

Additions

Cash payments

Non-cash charges

Lability as of December 31 2008

Additions

Cash payments

Non-cash charges

LiabiLity as of December 31 2009

The components of income tax expense for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 -e to tows

Year ended December31

Do//ai amounts in mi//ions

Current ncome tax expense

Federal

State and locaL

Foreign

Total net current inccme tax expense

Deferred ncome tax expense benefit

Total net deferred income tax expense benefit

Total income tax expense

2009 2/108 2007

$342 $396 $327

36 49 48

86 175 194

464 620 569

17 160 39

160 21

122 52 58

89 233 06

$375 $387

Income tax expense has been based cm the following components of income before taxes Less net nccme loss

attributable to non-controlLing interests

Year ended December 31

38

14

21

22

$6

INCOME TAXES

Federal

State and local

Foreign

Do//ar amounts in mi//ions

Dome st

Foreign

2009

$899

351

$463

2007

$733

723

2008

$654

517

Tots $1250 $1171 $145s
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reconciliation of income tax expense with expected federal income tax expense computed at the applicable federal

income tax rate of 35% is as follows

Year ended December31

Dollar amounts in millions

Statutory income tax expense

Increase decrease in income taxes

resulting from

State and local taxes net of federaL benefit

Impact of foreign state and local tax rate

changes on deferred taxes

Effect of foreign tax rates

Other

Income tax expense

2009 2008

$438 35% $410

$375 30% $387

0/3 2007

35% $510 35%

39

50
37 36
11

33% $463 32%

Deferred income taxes are provided for the effects of

temporary differences between the tax basis of an asset

or liability
and its reported amount in the Companys

consolidated financial statements These temporary

differences result in taxable or deductible amounts in

future years

The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are

shown below

December31

Dollaramounts in millions 2009

Deferred tax assets

Compensation and benefits

Unrealized investment losses

Loss carryforwards

Other

Gross deferred tax assets 731

Less deferred tax valuation allowances 641

Deferred tax assets net of valuation allowances 667

Deferred tax liabilities

Goodwill and acquired indefinite-lived intangibles

Acquired finite-lived intangibles

Other 56

Gross deferred tax liabilities 6170

$5503

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded net when

related to the same tax jurisdiction At December 31

2009 the Company recorded on the consolidated state

ment of financial condition deferred income tax assets

within other assets and deferred tax liabilities of $23 mil

lion and $5526 million respectively At December 31

2008 the Company recorded on the statement of financial

condition deferred income tax assets within other assets

and deferred tax liabilities of $1 million and $1826 mil

lion respectively

During third quarter 2009 legislation was enacted pri

marily with respect to New York City corporate income

taxes effective January 2009 which resulted in

revaluation of deferred income tax assets and liabilities

As result the Company recorded one-time deferred

income tax benefit of $45 million in 2009

The Company had deferred tax asset related to unreal

zed investment losses of approximately $163 million and

$157 million as of December 31 2009 and 2008 respec

tively reflecting the Companys conclusion that based on

the weight of available evidence it is more likely than not

that the deferred tax asset will be realized During 2008

the Company incurred investment losses of $573 million

primarily related to unrealized losses on investments

Substantially all of the investment losses relate to

investments held by subsidiaries in the United States

After the allocation of net loss attributable to non-

controlling interests of $155 million the net loss on

investments was $418 million portion of net loss is

expected to be ordinary if recognized and as result will

not be subject to any limitations Realized capital losses

may be carried back three years and carried forward five

years and offset against realized capital gains for federal

income tax purposes The Company expects to be able

to carry back portion of its unrealized capital losses

when realized hold certain fixed income securities over

period sufficient for them to recover their unrealized

losses and to generate future capital gains sufficient

to offset the unrealized capital losses

As of December 31 2009 the Company had foreign net

operating loss carryforward of $14 million which expires

on or before 2016 In addition at December 31 2009

the Company had U.S capital loss carryforwards of

$125 million whch were acquired in the BGI Transaction

and which will expire on or before 2013

At December 31 2009 and 2008 the Company had

$64 million and $14 million of valuation allowances

respectively recorded on the consolidated statements

of financial condition The year over year increase in

the valuation allowance primarily related to U.S capital

21 25

45
81
42

$395

163

55

118

Net deferred tax liabilities

2008

$216

157

12

67

452

14

438

1866

333

54

2253

$1815

5786

328
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Loss carryforwards acquired in the BOl Transact on

which may be subject to utilization restrictions and cer

tain foreign deferred tax assets

Goodw II recorded in connection with the Ouellos Trans

action nas been reouced during the period by the amount

of tax benefit realized from tax-deductible goodwill See

Note 11 Goodwill for further discuss on

Current income taxes are recorded net in the consoli

dated statements ot naricial condition when related

to the same tax jurisdict on As of Decomber 31 2009

the Company had curren income taxes receivable and

payable of $271 million and $96 million respectively

recorded in other assets and accounts payable and

accrued liabilities respectively As of December 31 2008

the Company had current income taxes receivable and

payable of $44 mill on and $120 million respectively

recorded in other assets and accounts payable and

accrued liabilities respectively

The Company does not pmvide the deterred taxes on

the excess of the nancizl reporting over tax bas son its

nvestments in foreign Sc bsidiaries that are essentially

permanent in durat on The excess totaled $778 million

and $561 million as of December 31 2009 and 2008

respectively The determ nat on of the additional deferred

Dollar amounts in millions

Balance at January

Additions for tax positions of prior years

Reductions for tax positions of prior years

Additions based on tax positions related to current year

Lapse of statute of limitations

Settlements

Foreign exchange translation

Positions assumed in BCI Transactior

Balance at December31

Included in the balance of unrecognized tax benefts at

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively are

$184 million $60 million and $41 mil.ion of tax benefits

that if recognized would affect the effective tax rate

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related

to income tax matters as component of income tax

expense Related to the ijnrecognized tax benefits noted

above the Company accrued nterest and penalties of

$8 million during 2009 and in total as of December31

2009 has recognized liability for interest and penal

ties of $48 million of which $28 million was assumed in

the BOl Transaction During 2008 the Company accrued

interest and penalties of $5 million and in total as of

December 31 2008 had recognized liability for interest

and penalties of $11 million During 2007 the Company

accrued interest and penalties of $2 million and in total

as of December 31 2007 had recognized liability
for

interest and penalties of $6 million

Pursuant to the Amended and Restatad Stock Purchase

Agreement the Company will be indemnified by Barclays

for $72 million of unrecognized tax benefits which is

reflected as an offsetting asset in due from related par

ties on the Company statements of financial condition

BlackRock is subject to IJ.S federal income tax as well as

income tax in multiple jL
risdictions The tax years after

taxes on the excess have not been provided because it is

not practicable due to the complexi es associated with Is

hypothetical calculat din

As result of the adoption of ASC 740 mlateci

uncertainty income taxes the Compay mcogni/ed

approximately $15 million increased noome ta

reserves related to uncertain tax pcs lions Approx mately

$14 million of this increase related to taxes that mId

affect the effective tax rate if recogruzed and this ort on

was accounted for as reduction to the January 2007

balance retained earnings The remaining $1

lion balance if disallowed would not afte the annuc

effective tax rate and recorded deferred tax mets

which is reflected in other assets on fbi iompanc

consolidated statements of financial condition Total

gross unrecognized tax benefits at Jan cry 210 were

approximately $52 mi on The total amount of unrecog

nized tax benefts that recognized would have affected

the effective tax rate at January 2007 was appr

mately $26 million

The following tabular reconciliation pre mnts the total

amounts of gross unrccognized tax berictits whiol are

recorded other liab lit es on the oncolidated st ite

ments of financial cordit on

2009

$114

11

11

63

16

117

$285

2008 2007

$66 52
12

11

24

$114 $66

2004 remain open to IJ.S federal tate and local income

tax examinaticn and the tax years aftei 2005 rema open

to income tax exam netion in the Un ted Kingdom With

few exceptions as of December 31 2009 the Conrpany

is no longer sLibject to U.S federal state local or oreign

exanninations ny tax authorities for years before 2005 The

Internal Revenue Service is currently exam ning the Oem

panys 2016 arid 2007 tax years fhs Ccmpany currently

under audit in several state and fore grr ur sdictir is

As or December 2309 tic reasonably possibly tne

total amounts of unrecognized tax ben-fits will do reaso

within the next twelve months Until fo mal resn itions

are reached between the Company and tax author ties

the determination of possible audit s- ttlement range

with respect to the impact on unrecognized tax benef ts

not practicable The Company doer fbi anticipate that an

possible adjustments resulting mm nse aud ts wouid

result in maerial change to Is conso idated financ al

stat mont

Prior to September 29 2006 BlockRo Had filed

selected state and municipal income tax returns with one

or more PNC subsidiaries on ronbirod or unitary basis

When BlackRock was ncluded ii gre ps comb ned

or unitary state or municipal income tax filing
ti PNC

subsidiaries BlackRocks share of tine ability qer orally

was an allocation to E3lackRock of porn ntage Qi the
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total tax Liability based upon BlackRocks level of activity

in such state or municipaLity PNC and BLackRock have

entered into tax disaffiliation agreement that sets forth

each partys rights and obLigations with respect to income

tax payments and refunds and addresses related matters

such as the fiLing of tax returns and the conduct of audits

or other proceedings invoLving cLaims made by taxing

EARNINGS PER SHARE

authorities As such the Company may be responsible

for its pro rata share of tax positions taken by PNC

for unaudited tax years which may be subsequently

chalLenged by taxing authorities Management does

not anticipate that any such amounts would be materiaL

to the Companys operations financiaL position or

cash flows

The folLowing table sets forth the computation of basic earnings per common share

Year ended December31

Dollaramounts in millions 2009 2008 2007

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc aLLocated to

Common shares

Participating RSUs 22

Total net income attributable to BlackRock Inc $875

Weighted-average common shares outstanding 136669164

Basic earnings per share attributable to BlackRock Inc

common stockholders $6.24 $5.86

Dollar amounts in millions

Net income attributable to BlackRock Inc allocated to

Common shares

Participating RSUs
______ _______

Total net income attributable to BlackRock nc

Weighted-average common shares outstanding

Dilutive effect of stock options and non-participating

restricted stock units

Dilutive effect of convertible debt

Dilutive effect of acquisition-related contingent

stock payments

Total weighted-average shares outstanding
_______

Diluted earnings per share attributable to BlackRock Inc

common stockholders

Due to the similarities in terms between BlackRock

series and non-voting participating preferred

stock and the Companys common stock the Company

considers the series and non-voting participat

ing preferred stock to be common stock equivalent for

purposes of earnings per share calculations As such the

Company has included the outstanding series and

non-voting participating preferred stock in the calcula

tion of average basic and diluted shares outstanding for

the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

For the years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007

1240998 1336911 and 1545735 stock options respec

tively were excluded from the calculation of diluted

earnings per share because to include them would have

an anti-dilutive effect

Shares issued in Quellos Transaction

On October 2007 the Company acquired the fund of

funds business of Quellos See Note Mergers and

Acquisitions for further discussion The Company issued

1191785 shares of BlackRock common stock that were

placed into an escrow account The common shares

issued had no dilutive effect for 2007 In April 2008

280519 common shares were released to Quellos in

accordance with the Quellos asset purchase agreement

which resulted in an adjustment to the recognized pur

chase price and had dilutive effect in 2008 In November

2009 42326 additional common shares were released

and had dilutive effect in 2009 The remaining 868940

common shares may have dilutive effect in future

periods based on the timing of the release of shares from

the escrow account in accordance with the Quellos asset

purchase agreement

$853 $759 $968

25 25

$784 $993

129543443 128488561

The following table sets forth the computation of diluted earnings per common share

$7.53

Year ended December31

2009 2008 2007

$853 $759 $968

22 25 25

$875

136669164

1519570

1292715

$784 $993

129543443 128488561

11 72081

254284

1736978

1033789

406709 118733

139481449 131376517 131378061

$6.11 $5.78 $7.37
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Companys management directs BlackRocks opera

tions as one business the asset management business

As such the Company believes it operates in one busi

ness segment in accordance with ASC 280-10

amounts in millions

Equity

Fixed income

Multi-asset

Alternative nvestment products

Cash management

Total investment advisory administration fees securities lending

revenue and pertormance fees

BlackRock Solutions and advisory

Distribution fees

Other revenue

Total revenue

The follow ng table Ilustrates investment adv sor

administration tees securities lending avenue ar

performance fees BlackRock Soiutions and advinor

distribution fees and other revenue tor hr year_ coded

December31 2009 2008 and 2007

Year ended Dece iber 31

The following table ill ustrates the Companys total rev

enue and long-lived assets including goodwill and prop

erty and equipment for the years ended December 2009

2008 and 2007 by geographic region These amounts are

Amer cas primarily is comprised of the United States

Canada Brazil and Mexico while Europe primarily is

aggregated on legal entity bas and dn not oar sa ly

reflect where tOe customer is sourred or where meet

is physically located

Year ende December 31

comprised of tee United Kingdom and As a-Pac pri

manly is comprised or Japan Australia and Hong kong

2009

$1468

921

499

515

625

4028

477

100

95

2008

701

879

527

619

708

4534

393

139

98

2007

1925
903

428

508

523

387

190

123

144

$4700 $5064

Dollar amounts in millions 2009 2008 2007

Revenues

Americas $3309 3538 3070

Europe 1179 1360 1490

Asia-Pacific 212 r66 285

Total revenues $4700 $5064 4845

Long-Lived Assets

Americas $12895 $5714 15695

Europe 46 27

Asia-Pacific 74 52

Total long lived assets $13015 $5793 5786
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24 SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA unaudited

Quarter

Dollaramounts in millions except persfiare data 1St 2nd 3rd

2009

4th

The first quarter of 2009 and fourth quarter of 2008

include the impact of $22 million and $38 million

pre-tax expense related to restructuring charges

respectively

The fourth quarter of 2009 includes incremental reve

nue and expenses reLated to the operations of BGI

25 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The second third and fourth quarters of 2009 incLude

$15 million $16 million and $152 million of pre-tax BGI

transaction and integration costs respectively

The third quarter of 2009 includes $45 million tax

benefit related to Local income tax Law changes

London Lease

In January 2010 the Company entered into an agreement

with Mourant Co Trustees Limited and Mourant Prop

erty Trustees Limited as Trustees of the Drapers Gardens

Unit Trust for the Lease of approximateLy 292418 square

feet of office and ancillary including retaiL space located

at Drapers Gardens 12 Throgmorton Avenue London

EC2 United Kingdom

The term of the lease will begin on February 17 2010 the

Effective Date and will continue for twenty five years

with the option to renew for an additional five year term

The lease provides for total annual base rental payments

of 13541595 exclusive of value added tax and other

Lease charges or approximately $21666552 based on

an exchange rate of $1.60 per payable quarterly

in advance The annual rent is subject to increase on

Close

$0.78

$143.32

$88.91

$130.04

$0.78

$183.80

$119.12

$175.42

Revenue $987 $1029 $1140 $1544

Operating income $271 $261 $357 $389

Net income $62 $244 $334 $257

Net income attributable to BLackRock Inc $84 $218 $317 $256

Earnings per share attributable to BLackRock Inc

common stockholders

Basic $0.63 $1.62 $2.31 $1.65

Diluted $0.62 $1.59 $2.27 $1.62

Weighted-average common shares outstanding

Basic 130216218 130928926 133266379 152062468

Diluted 131797189 133364611 135902241 155040242

Dividend Declared Per Share

Common stock price per share

High

Low

2008

Revenue

Operating income

Net income

Net income attributable to BLackRock Inc

Earnings per share attributable to BlackRock Inc

common stockholders

Basic

Diluted

Weighted-average common shares outstanding

Basic 128904253 129569325 129793939 129888110

Diluted 131620744 132032538 132270351 131605739

Dividend Declared Per Share

Common stock price per share

High

$0.78

$220.17

$1 59.45

$216.82

$0.78

$241.66

$206.00

$232.20

$1300

$396

$246

$241

$1387

$405

$254

$274

$1313

$454

$196

$217

$1064

$338

$67
$52

$1.81

$1.77

$2.04

$2.00

$1.62

$1.59

Low

Close

$0.39

$0.39

$0.78

$231.99

$165.72

$204.18

$0.78

$227.51

$171.86

$1 77.00

$0.78

$249.37

$1 56.20

$194.50

$0.78

$195.00

$94.78

$134.15
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each fifth anniversary of the Effective Date to the then

open market rent with the rent payable from the first

review date being sub ect to minimum increase to

5321072 per annum exclusive of value added tax or

approximately $24513.71 based on an exchange rate of

$1.60 per and maximum increase to 6875291 per

annum exclusive of value added tax or approximately

$27000466 based on an exchange rate of $1.60 per

El The lease will include an initial rent free per od for

thirty six 36 months and twenty two 22 days following

the Effective Date

Helix Financial Group LLC

In January 2010 the Company completed the acquisition

of substantially all of Ihe net assets of Helx Financial

Group LLC which provides advisory valuation and

analytics solutions to commercial real estate lenders

and investors rhe total considention ad for the

acquisition is not material to the Company cons idated

financial staternents

Capital Exchanges

In January 2011 600000 common shares were cx hanged

for Series Preferi ed Stock and all 11 ies

Preferred Stock outstanding at Decernh 11 2100 were

exchanged for Series Preferred Sock

Additional Subsequent Event Review

In addition to the subsequent event uded in tI note

to the financial statements the omparry ondutc

review for sdditional subsequent evenC iird detxro nod

that rio additional suh events had occur re that

would require accrual or additior 3l oure

MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER

MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES unaudited

BtackRocks common stock is listed the NYSE and is

traded under the symbol BLK At the close of business

on January 31 2010 there were 441 common stock

holders of record Common stockholders include institu

tional or omnibus accounts that hold common stock for

multiple underlying investors

Hi Ci

BlackRocks closing common stock price as of March

2010 was $21 9.83

Dividends

On February 25 2010 the Board of Directors approved

an increase of BlackRocks quarterly dividend to $1.00 to

be paid on March 23 2010 to stockholders of record on

March 82010

The follow ng table sets forth for ha psi cds nd teO

the high and low reported sale pnces po iod ond osing

prices for the ommorr stock and dividends declared per

share for the common stock as rcportel on the NiCE

Barclays Merrrll Lynch PNC and their rcspect ye iffrl

ates along with other nstitutional invectors receive

dividends on the non-voting participatirrg preferrei stock

that they hold equivalent to the divi iends eceivc

common stockholders

Cash
Common stock price ranger

osing dend

Lov prce ared

2009

First Quarter $143.32 $88.91 $130.04 $0.78

Second Quarter $183.80 $119.12 $175.42 $0.78

Third Quarter $220.17 $159.45 $216.82 $0.78

Fourth Quarter $241.66 $206.00 $232.20 $0.78

2008

First Quarter $231.99 65.72 $204 18 $0 78

Second Quarter $227.51 71 So $177 00 $0 78

Third Quarter $249.37 $1 56.20 $194 50 $0 78

Fourth Quarter $195.00 $94.78 $134 15 $078



COMMON STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

ci

ci

ndex 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06

BlackRock Inc 10000 142.39 201.83

SNL Asset Manager 100.00 127.18 147.49

Russell 2000 00.00 04.55 23.76

Period Ending
________

12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/09

292.85 184.56 326.08

167.89 79.79 129.44

121.82 80.66 102.58

The SNL Asset Manager Index currently comprises the following companies Affiliated Managers Group Inc AllianceBernstein Holding L.P Alternative Asset

Management BKF Capital Group Inc BlackRock Inc Blackstone Group L.P Brookfielddsset Management Calamos Asset Management/nc Cohen

Steers Inc Diamond Hill Investment Group Eaton Vance Corp Epoch Holding Corp Federated Investors Inc Fortress Investment Group LLC Crank/in

Resources Inc GAMCO Investors Inc GLG Partners Inc HennessyAdvisors Inc Integrity Mutual Funds Inc INVESCO Ltd Janus Capital Group Inc

Legg Mason Inc Och-Ziff Capital Management Pzena Investment Management GEl Investments Co Rowe Price Group Inc Triplecrown Acquisition Corp

Li Global Investors Inc Value Line Inc V/P Stewart Co Ltd Waddell Peed Financial Inc Westwood Holdings Group Inc
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The following graph compares the cumulative total stockholder return on BlackRocks common stock from

December31 2004 through December31 2009 with the cumulative total return of the Russell 2000 Index

2000 and the SNL Asset Manager Index The graph assumes the investment of $100 in BlackRocks

common stock and in each of the two indices on December31 2004 and the reinvestment of all dividends

if any The following information has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable but neither its

accuracy nor its completeness is guaranteed The performance graph is not necessarily indicative of future

investment performance

TOTAL RETURN PERFORMANCE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Laurence Fink

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer BlackRock Inc

Abdtatif AL-Hamad 14

Director General/Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Arab Fund for Economic and

Socia DeveLopment

Mathis CabiaLLavetta

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors Swiss Reinsurance Company Ltd

Dennis Dammerman 13

Former Vice Chairman of the Board and Executive Officer General Electric Company and

Chairman and CEO GeneraL ELectrrc CapitaL Services Inc

WiLliam Demchak
Senior Vice Chairman The PNC FinanciaL Services Group Inc and PNC Bank

Robert Diamond Jr

President of BarcLays PL.C

Kenneth Dunn Ph.D

Dean and Professor of FinanciaL Economics at the David Tepper SchooL of Business at

Carnegie MeLlon University

Murry Gerber 1121

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer EDT Corporation

James Grosfeld

Former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Putte Homes Inc

Robert Kapito

President BLackRock Inc

David Komansky

Former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer MerriLL Lynch Co Inc

Sallie Krawcheck

President of GlobaL WeaLth Investment Management Bank of America

Mark Linsz

Corporate Treasurer Bank of America

Sir Deryck Maughan

Partner and Head of FinanciaL Insbtutions Group KohLberg Kravis Roberts

Thomas OBrien

Former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer The PNC FinanciaL Services Group Inc

Linda Gosden Robinson 24

Chairman Robinson Lerer Montgomery LLC

James Rohr

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer The PNC FinanciaL Services Group Inc

John Varley

Group Chief Executive of BarcLays PL.C

Audit Committee

Execontive Committee

Management DeveLopment Compensation Committee

Nominating Governance Committee
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CORPORATE IN FORMATION

Corporate Headquarters

BlackRock Inc

55 East 52nd Street

New York NY 10055

810-5300

Stock Listing

BlackRock Inc.s common stock is traded on the New
York Stock Exchange under the symbol BLK At the

close of business on January31 2010 there were 426

common stockholders of record including institutional

omnibus accounts

Internet Information

Information on BlackRocks financial results and its

products and services is available on the Internet at

www Is kroc .com

FinanciaL Information

BlackRock makes avaiLable free of charge through

its website at www.blackrock.com under the heading

Investor Relations its Annual Report to Stockhold

ers Annual Report on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports

on Form 10-0 Current Reports on Form 8-K its Proxy

Statement and Form of Proxy and all amendments to

those reports as soon as reasonably practicable after

such material is electronically filed with or furnished to

the Securities and Exchange Commission The Com
pany has included as Exhibit 31 to its Annual Report on

Form 10-K for fiscal year 2009 with the Securities and

Exchange Commission certificates of the Chief Execu

tive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company

certifying the quality of the Companys public disclosure

and the Company has submitted to the New York Stock

Exchange certificate of the Chief Executive Officer

of the Company certifying that he is not aware of any

violation by the Company of New York Stock Exchange

corporate governance listing standards

Inquiries

BlackRock will provide free of charge to each stock

holder upon written request copy of BtackRocks

Annual Report to Stockholders Annual Report on Form

10-K Quarterly Reports on Form 10-0 Current Reports

on Form 8-K Proxy Statement and Form of Proxy and

all amendments to those reports Requests for copies

should be addressed to Investor Relations BlackRock

Inc 55 East 52nd Street New York NY 10055 Requests

may also be directed to 810-5300 or via e-mail to

invrelldblackrock.com Copies may also be accessed

electronically by means of the SECs home page on the

Internet at www.sec.gov Stockholders and analysts

should contact Investor Relations at 810-5300

or via e-mail at invrelldblackrock.com News media

representatives and others seeking general information

should contact Corporate Communications at

810-5300 or via e-mail at invrelldblackrock.com

Dividend Policy

The declaration of and payment of dividends by

BlackRock are subject to the discretion of our Board of

Directors On February 25 2010 the Board of Directors

approved quarterly dividend of $1.00 which was

paid on March 23 2010 to stockholders of record on

March 2010

Registrar and Transfer Agent

BNY Mellon Shareholder Services

480 Washington Boulevard

Jersey City NJ 07310-1900

851-9677

Common Stock Prices

The table below sets forth by quarter the range of high and low sale and quarter-end closing prices for BlackRocks

common stock

Stock Price Ranges

Closing Dividends

2009 High Low Price Declared

First Quarter $143.32 88.91 $130.04 $0.78

Second Quarter $183.80 $119.12 $175.42 $0.78

Third Quarter $220.17 $159.45 $216.82 $0.78

Fourth Quarter $241.66 $206.00 $232.20 $0.78

2008

First Quarter
$231.99 $165.72 $204.18 $0.78

Second Quarter
$227.51 $171.86 $177.00 $0.78

Third Quarter $249.37 $156.20 $194.50 $0.78

Fourth Quarter $195.00 94.78 $134.15 $0.78
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IMPORTANT NOTES

Past performance is not indicative of Future resuLts The performance information refLects alL benhmark-based

cLient accounts and products managed by BlackRock other than ETFs and structured products Source of performance

information is BtackRock Inc and peer medians are based in part on data from Mornngstar Inc for non-U.S funds

Fund performance refLects the reinvestment of dividends and distributions but does not refLect fees or saLes charges

If fees or sates charges were refLected the performance information shown couLd have differed signifcantLy

The SP 5OO Index is widely recognized unmanaged index of common stock prices of industriaL utdity transriortation

and financial companies in U.S markets

The MSCI World Index is free fLoat-adjusted market capitaLization weighted index that designed to measure the

equity market performance of deveLoced markets

Opinions expressed through page 23 are those of BLackRock Inc as of April 2010 and are subject to change



BLACKROCK OFFiCES WORLDWIDE

Corporate Headquarters

BtackRock Inc

55 East 52nd Street

NewYork NY 10055

5300

EUROPE

MIDDLE EAST LATIN A1ER1CA

UNITED STATES CANADA AFRICA ASA PAC1FC IBERiA

Attanta GA Newport Beach CA Amsterdam Beijing Madrid

B1oomfied Hitts MI Patm Beach FL Brussets Brisbane Mexico City

Boston MA Phsladetphia PA Dubai Hong Kong Santiago

Charlotte NC Phoenix AZ Edinburgh Metbourne Sao Pauo

Chicago IL Pittsburgh PA Frankfurt Mumbai
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Headquartered in New York City BlackRock has offices in 24 countries and major presence in key global markets

including the United States and Canada Europe the Middle East and Africa Asia Pacific and Latin America and Iberia
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